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Report from President
ZR{BS

Dear Members,

Towards the end of the year 2011, | take much pleasure to share with you a wide variety of events of the Institute as
follow:

Local Affairs & Registered Practices Events

First Hand Sale Task Force

A taskforce has been formed to review the 1) Property Information and Show Flat, 2) Sales Arrangement and
Practices as well as 3) Enforcement Mechanism and Penalties. We have made suggestions including the certification
by Authorized Persons to be on factual matters only, to request for clarification on parties to be responsible for
the tasks in this new legislation. The final report and recommendations were submitted to Legislative Council in
October this year.

Lunch Meeting with HKIA Registered Practices
A series of lunch meetings with HKIA Registered Practices (RPs) were held in April, May and June. The Institute
listened to RPs'voice on their current practice situation, while shared with them the Institute’s recent works.

Informal Gatherings between Registered Practices and Buildings Department/Planning Department/
Lands Department

Upon invitation from Board of Practices, Planning Department and Lands Department joined two informal
gatherings and shared views on application to Town Planning Board and comments to Buildings Department on
approval of GBPs, and submissions to and approval by Lands Department respectively with our Registered Practices.

Professional Assessment

New initiatives of HKIA-ARB Professional Assessment

With the aim to make the Professional Assessment (PA) more effective and user-friendly while without
compromising the standard of HKIA Members for local registration as well as future possible mutual recognition of
professional qualification with other architectural institutes, the Institute had a review on the current PA system and
approved a series of new initiatives to take effect from PA2012. Major changes include introduction of open-book
assessment for Papers 1 — 5, increasing the number of assessments of Papers 3, 4 and 5 each year and reduction of
number of hours of Paper 7. To let the prospective PA candidates, Office Supervisors and Advisers to have a better
understanding on the new changes, two briefing sessions were organized on 20 September and 27 September and
were attended by over 200 candidates with a small number of Advisers and Office Supervisors.

Mainland and External Affairs

CEPA

CEPA legal examination 2011 organized by the Department of Housing and Urban-Rural Development of
Guangdong Province was held on 24 September 2011 in Guangzhou. 169 HKIA members who have had attained
PRC Class | Architect Qualification took the exam and all of them got a straight pass. The 100 % passing rate
will surely leave a mark at the history of HKIA. We will continue to work with the Government and Mainland
counterparts to realize our aspiration in registration for practice on the Mainland.

2011 Mainland and Hong Kong Construction Industry Forum

| represented the Institute to attend this forum on 27-30 May. 18 HKIA members attended the forum and shared
with over 360 mainland and Hong Kong delegates on the theme Preservation and Development of Historical &
Cultural Cities.

Qianhai Visit

On 12 July 2011, the Institute organized a visit to Qianhai for Registered Practices (“RPs"). The visit aimed to give
a better understanding on competitive edges of Hong Kong Architects and Architectural Practices to Qianhai
authorities.

17 representatives coming from 9 Registered Practices, Department of Architecture of HKU and allied institutes
including the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, the Hong Kong Institute of Planners and the Hong Kong Institute
of Landscape Architects joined the visit. Each Registered Practice was given opportunity to present its company
profile and significant projects at the sharing session.

ARCASIA Forum 16th

The 32nd ARCASIA Council Meeting cum ARCASIA Forum 16th, organized by the Vietnam Association of Architects,
was held from 15 - 20 August 2011 in Da Nang, Vietnam.
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UIA Congress 2011, Tokyo
A 12-member delegation of HKIA joined the international congress. HKIA also showcased the Annual Awards 2010
award winning project at the congress exhibition.

Community Services

30-Hour Famine

Led by the Community Development Committee members who have provided professional advices to World
Vision, organizer of 30-Hour Famine, 47 HKIA volunteers participated in the onsite installation and construction of
the exhibition space for the event on 14 and 15 April 2011 at Aberdeen Sports Ground.

4th Hong Kong Volunteer Award - IDEA

We are pleased that the IDEA, whose aims to building better schools in Cambodia for local poor children, was
awarded with the 4th Hong Kong Volunteer Award organized by the Agency of Volunteer Services. The project was
funded by HKIA's Young Architect Project Fund. The Institute is proud of the achievements and young architects’
dedication to helping the underprivileged around the world.

HKIA 55th Anniversary

HKIA 55th Anniversary Conference (5 November 2011)

With the theme entitled “Megalopolis and Architecture”, the conference took place on Saturday, 5 November
2011, from 9am — 5pm at Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre. It aimed to explore the development of
megalopolis and its components — the architecture with particular reference to Hong Kong and Pearl River Delta
region and other similar developments in the world.

We were very glad to have the presence of Honourable Donald TSANG, the Chief Executive of HKSAR Government
as the Guest of Honour to officiate the opening ceremony. We invited keynote speakers from HKSAR Government
and different parts of the world, as well as prominent leaders in the profession, building industry and society to join
our panel discussion.

We had a record high audience over 570 attendants.

HKIA 55th Anniversary Ball - Remember When in the 50s (5 November 2011)

The HKIA 55th Anniversary Ball was held on the same evening of the Conference, with The Honourable Stephen
Lam, the Chief Secretary for Administration of the HKSAR Government as the Guest of Honour. The Ball was the
highlight of the HKIA 55th Anniversary celebration which provides a platform for networking and most importantly,
for our guests, supporters, collaborators and members to remember how well our architects have done to make
Hong Kong a different city since the inception of HKIA in 1956.

HKIA Architecture Week 2011 - Students Visit

We organized student visits to 13 Registered Practices, Hong Kong Housing Authority, Architectural Services
Department and Department/School of Architecture of The University of Hong Kong and The Chinese University
of Hong Kong respectively from 3 October - 4 November 2011. Over 470 students and teachers from 25 secondary
schools participated in the programme and positive feedback was generated.

HKIA 55th Anniversary Photographic Competition

We were in receipt of more than 80 submissions in the captioned competition. In the Student Category, we
received 23 entries in total from 12 applicants while in the Open Category we got 58 entries from 17 applicants.
Resultsgmd prize presentation ceremony were made at the HKIA 55th Anniversary Conference scheduled for 5
November 2011.

About Institutional Activities

HKIA Council Brainstorming Session
In order to set priorities to job-tasks amongst all the Boards and Committees, the Council held a brainstorming
session to hear opinions and needs from our Members and Registered Practices, on 10 December 2011,

Dominic K K Lam, FHKIA, RA
President
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Board of Local Affair (BLA) Environment & Sustainable
RS F5E Development Committee
oD | v = ] =5
LEUNG So Wan Susan, Chair BRE (EFEFE) RERASHEERZSS
TSENG Yen Wei William, Deputy Chair ~ Z3E& (BIEFE) LAW Kin Chung Christopher, Chair BRED (FF)
LAM Kwong Ki Dominic (ex-officio) MXE (EXRZS) NG Cheuk Yee John, Deputy Chair e (EEE)
CHIWuh Cherng Daniel (ex-officio) BB (ERES)
CHAN Hon Wan Edwin IRRE Heritage & Conservation Committee
CHAN Sui Tung Tony PERImER SERYYIREEES
HAI Tuen Tai Freddie AR
LAM Chung Wai Tony Wiz LAM Chung Wai Tony, Chair whig (EE)
LAM Hong Ki Connie MERIH
LAM Ping Hong Robert MRE Planning & Lands Committee
LAM Wo Hei A PHREREEE
LAU Kwing Lam Glenn Zl Ak
LAW Kin Chung Christopher EED YU Franklin, Chair RIEL (/)
LEE Chung Ming = (heg HAI Tuen Tai Freddie, Deputy Chair BRinER (BIE5E)
LEUNG Kit Man Andy R
NG Wing Shun Vincent RKIE
TAM Wai Lam William FBER
WONG Kam Sing BiRE
YIM Shun See BB
YU Franklin RIEL

Buildings Committee
BEMEHEZEES

LEUNG Kit Man Andy, Chair REX (FF)
CHAN Sui Tung Tony, Deputy Chair FRIneR (B/E/E)

Competition Committee
BEFGIHLBEERESE

LAM Hong Ki Connie, Chair WRiH (EF)
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Board of Educational Affairs (BEdA)
HBESBBEL

CHEN Marvin, Chair

YIM Shun See, Deputy Chair

LAM Kwong Ki Dominic (ex-officio)
CHI'Wuh Cherng Daniel (ex-officio)
FUNG Yin Suen Ada (Advisor)

HUI Man Bock Bernard (Advisor)

BRIAS (£/B)
BRE (BIERE)
M (ERES
B (ERES
REE (Ff)
HXE (B

CHAN Yuen Ning Janice PRIGEIS
CHU Hoi Shan Paul N
HO Puay Peng Ep:29n:s
HO Kin Wai Stephen (Ef=da0
HO Man Yiu Ivan s
KWONG Sum Yee Anna BBvE
LAI Siu Kin Rembert ZRHRER
LERNER Ralph Bennett RER
MO CHU Kwok Wah Julie EXREIE
POON Sing Chi Stephen R
SOLOMON Jonathan Daniel

WAI Chui Chi Rosman (=g
WONG Po Lung John FERE
YEUNG Suet Sum May L ENNY
YIP Shing Lam Sherman TERLAR
YIU Chin Pang Benjamin BrRlS

Continuing Professional
Development Committee

RFEEERREEE

YEUNG Suet Sum May, Chair
HO Kin Wai Stephen, Deputy Chair

2 (FE)
TZEE EIEE)

Education Development &
Accreditation Committee

HERRRIBEES

WONG Po Lung John, Chair
FONG Suet Yuen Carolin, Deputy Chair

IEE R
hER EIEE)

- 1

(ﬁ:’dA/ and its Committee

Membership Admission Committee

SREFEES

CHAN Yuen Ning Janice, Chair PRIEIS (F5E)
KWOK Shuk Fun Silina, Deputy Chair RS (EIEE)

Professional Assessment Committee
BEAFNEES
LAl Siu Kin Rembert, Chair ZURER (F[E)

AU YEUNG Ming Sze Phiyona, Deputy Chair BREzBR5F (BI£/%)
YIM Shun See, Deputy Chair BB (EEE)

Education & Careers Promotion Working
Group
HEREBESEITIF/NE

YIU Chin Pang Benjamin, Chair

WERIE (%)
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Board of Internal Affairs (BIA) Quality Building Awards
AECESCE 2011 Organizing Committee

R 728 44 = = o
LU Hing Yiu Bryant, Chair SER (£E) EHRERAR01Z8E
KAM Heung Wah Briena, Deputy Chair ~ H&@%E (8/Z£/E) CHAN Chi Sing Rex, Representative REE (KX
LAM Kwong Ki Dominic, ex-officio MK (ERES) CHOI Kam Lung Franky, Representative — 2%i388 (1£Z%)
CHIWuh Cherng Daniel, ex-officio BBHH (ERES) NG Cheuk Yee John, Representative mNE (KX
FUNG Yin Suen Ada (Advisor) BEE ()
CHAN Chi Sing Rex REE Welfare and Young Members Committee
CHAN Kwok Kuen Klephen Iiﬁ R EEES
CHOI'Wun Hing Donald E2y/N T
LAU Man Kwan Julia 2B WONG Ching Long Jerome, Chair BB (FE)
LU Lam Leslie B
NGAN Man Ho BRI Young Architect Committee
POON Mei Ting Vanessa BER EFEREMEES
SUN Polly FRIMEE
WONG Ching Long Jerome SHER CHAN Kwok Kuen Klephen, Co-Chair PREURE (BEE/E)

POON Mei Ting Vanessa, Co-Chair BER (BFE)

Annual Awards 2010 Committee
2010FEFIREEST

LAU Man Kwan Julia, Chair BE (FE)

55th Anniversary Ball Committee

SSEFRESES
LU Hing Yiu Bryant, Co-Chair SEWR (BFE)
NGAN Man Ho Murphy, Co-Chair BRNGE (BEFERE)

Media Resources & Publication Committee

ERRENEZEES
CHAN Chi Sing Rex, Co-Chair WREE (BEE)
CHOI'Wun Hing Donald, Co-Chair RBRE (BB
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Board of External Affairs (BExA)
NIRRT

LU Lam Leslie, Chair BM  (FE)

YU Franklin, Deputy Chair REYL BIFE)
NGAN Ka Sin Ellen, Deputy Chair BB @EE)
LAM Kwong Ki Dominic, ex-officio M (ERES)
CHIWuh Cherng Daniel, ex-officio B (ERES

CHAN Kwok Kuen Klephen IR EE
CHAN Yuk Yin Celine REE
CHEUNG Kong Yeung Thomas RES
CHOI Kam Lung Franky ZEiREE
CHU Hoi Shan Paul KB
DEE Josie FER
HO Kin Wai Stephen (EfE)
IU Che Wei Trevor &R
KWAN Kwok Lok Joseph RAELE
KWONG Sum Yee Anna BBivE
SIU Kwok Kin Stanley mER
TANG Wai Man Tony 511E8%

Academic Exchange Committee
BMRXREES

CHU Hoi Shan Paul, Chair KBl (FF)

ARCASIA / CAA Committee
NEEENHRE / KRR EREE

CHEUNG Kong Yeung Thomas, Chair RES (EE)
CHEUNG Ka Ho Ferdinand, Deputy Chair RERZ (BIE/E)

Community Development Committee

tERRIIREES

CHAN Kwok Kuen Klephen, Co-Chair
CHAN Kai Chung Calvin, Co-Chair

FREIE (BEE/R)
PREUER (BFE®)

ts Committee
e 4t

/

Overseas Excursion Organizing
Committee
BINEREEES

DEE Josie, Co-Chair
HUGH Patrick Errol, Co-Chair

FRR BER)
EER (BERE)

UIA Committee
BIRZEMFEEES

HO Kin Wai Stephen, Co-Chair
U Che Wei Trevor, Co-Chair

R (BEE)
nEE BELE)

Venice Biennale 2010 Steering
Committee

0 BEHEFREEREEERES
B (R

b

CHOI Kam Lung Franky, Co-Chair

NGAN Ka Sin Ellen, Co-Chair BRE WEE)
HUGH Patrick Errol, Co-Deputy Chair TR HaZERE)

LAU Pak Kin, Co-Deputy Chair 20 (BEERE)
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Board of Practices (BP) Legal & Finance Committee

HEEHE LERUBEES

SO Ching, Chair w®mis (F®) LAU King Chiu Henry, Chairman BE (B
HUI Man Bock Bernard, Deputy Chair ~ 3FXi& (BIZ£/E)

LAM Kwong Ki Dominic, ex-officio MR (ERES) Membership Committee

CHIWuh Cherng Daniel, ex-officio BB (ERES) NIEELEE

CHE Kwai Leung Chris BEFR

HO Man Yiu lvan pve LAU Kam Sing Dickie, Chair REs (F/E)
KAN Cho Yau Kenneth [t

KWOK Wing Chun Michael EIf 3 Practice Issues Committee

KWONG Sum Yee Anna BB BT/ NEMIESEIRRES

LAM Ping Hong Robert MRR

LAU Kam Sing Dickie 259K KAN Cho Yau Kenneth, Chair &R (EF)
LAU King Chiu Henry 2583 LEUNG Hing Yee Joan, Deputy Chair REE EEE)
LAU Kwing Lam Glenn EINQEY

LU Yuen Cheung Ronald ST Management Committee for Band 3
KRUMMECK Stefan Wilhelm Practices

SHEN Edward ks e e G e

SZE Kyran HEZRER

TAM Kam Yip Antonio memw LU Yuen Cheung Ronald, Chair s (£F)
TSE SiWing Vivien it |

Business Promotion Committee

FHHEEEREZ

TSE Si Wing Vivien, Chair #LHE FR)

Contract & Dispute Resolution Committee

BRESHRAEUNDSHEES

SHEN Edward, Chair mEE (FE)
LAIYip Hung Alex, Deputy Chair RER (ETEE)
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Board of Mainland Affairs (BMA)

A BF5E
CHENG CHAN Ching Ying Elizabeth, Chair 88285 (£/E)
CHIWuh Cherng Daniel, TR

Co-Deputy Chair & ex-officio
CHOW Tak Nin Thomas, Co-Deputy Chair BiEFE (BEIE/E)
WXl (ERES)

LAM Kwong Ki Dominic, ex-officio

CHAN Hong Ming Dennis PEREREA
CHAU Yuet Chu BBk
KWOK Wing Chun SPERiR
LI Kwok Hing Felix S EH
LU Hing Yiu Bryant SEE
POON Sing Chi Stephen R
PUN Ka Fun Peter ERE
SHEN Edward TIRE
TAM Tin Fong Martin EESNi

Liaison Committee
MBREE=E

PUN Ka Fun Peter, Chair

BRE (£F)

Eastern China Liaison Group

R/ E

CHAU Yuet Chu, Convenor

BRIKX (BFEA)

Southern China Liaison Group

IR /\E

CHOW Tak Nin Thomas, Convenor

BRE (FEA)

Northern China Liaison Group

FEJCRHER/\E

PUN Ka Fun Peter, Convenor

BRE (FEA)

S (B ﬁﬁa

(BHEIEBREMNZES)

its Committee
F,

7/d

N
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CEPA Issues Committee
CEPAEHEES

SHEN Edward, Chair mige (FE)

Special Projects Committee

HIRREEZES

CHOW Tak Nin Thomas, Chair

BRE (FB)
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HKIA Merit Award of Hong Kong - Residential Building FEEEENZZIERNB R - FEEE
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HKIA Merit Award of Hong Kong - Community Building B ZEEMBE BEARER - TEEE
Additional Columbarium at Diamond Hill &G BREZE

HKIA Merit Award of Hong Kong - Community Building FE2ZEEME2T BEANEBRERE - TEESE
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HKIA Annual Awards 2010\

EEREMES B DEEE

The Village at Sanlitun =EdVil lage
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Ground Floor Expansion
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WE, THE UNDERSIGNED being met together on the third
day of September in the year one thousand nine hundred
and fifty-six and being desirous of forming a Society in
the Colony of Hong Kong for the general advancement
of Civil Architecture and for promoting and facilitating
the acquirement of the knowledge of the various Arts
and Sciences connected therewith DO HEREBY BAND
OURSELVES TOGETHER IN A SOCIETY TO BE KNOWN AS THE
HONG KONG SOCIETY OF ARCHITECTS and do undertake
as Foundation Members to subscribe to the funds and
be bound by the Rules of the Society AND DO FURTHER
DECLARE AND AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

1. that the Society shall consist of Members, Honorary
Members, Associates, Graduates and Students;

2. that the Society shall elect and be governed by a
Council consisting of a President, two Vice-Presidents,
and such other Officers and Members of Council as it
may decide;

3. that the Society shall make such Rules for its own good
governance and the conduct of its members as it may
from time to time think fit;

4. that the Society shall have power in its corporate name
to acquire, hold and dispose of property and funds
and shall to this end comply with Ordinances of the
Government of Hong Kong;

5. that the Society shall invite and have as its Patron a
person of eminence in colony.

1. JTMallorie 15. W Elder Levie
2. JSHirst 16. J C Charter

3. DGFarrow 17. AM JWright
4. RJPhillips 18. J B Aitken

5. Faitfone Wong 19. TCYuen

6.  WW C Shewan 20. Wm Sing

7. Pak CKwong 21. HS Luke

8. Stanley Kwok 22. William Ling
9. TS CFeltham 23. Bjorn Nedberg
10. GGDjou 24. G Hollmann
11. Koon Hing Cheang  25. W G Gregory
12. A JBrandt 26. GDSu

13. AV Alvares 27. David P Crease
14.  Patricia Mayne

Subscribed by the Foundation Members at the Second
Inaugural Meeting of the Society on 3rd September, 1956

Y BIMRERFTZ AT > RATTI966FIF3BEE » b
PRI — (B8 - UBEE RINIVZERE - SLI5H2EAEE
BVEIMTAIRI R0 o FFIFELLBASEEER - RIB (TEEIRAI)
HEEY TEBRRENAG s UITEE "Rg, ) - BERBNIS
25 MERY BEFETMBIA -

— NEH8E  XEEE  MWREE BXHLEE kKB
SEHEMN;

Z BLESEEENE - BEEERH—PER MBI
£ DR EEMBENSEEMN;

= NERITERERREEREEGENFFETL
IERARET

9 NBRERUSIOENEBIUTHEA - B - 158 ~ REZ
BNgR THEERESE;

h BHEERBEDRIZALTEEASERA -

1. JTMallorie 15. W Elder Levie
2. JSHirst 16. J C Charter

3. DG Farrow 17. A M JWright
4. RJPhillips 18. J B Aitken

5. Faitfone Wong 19. TCYuen

6.  WWCShewan 20. Wm Sing

7. PakCKwong 21. HS Luke

8. Stanley Kwok 22. William Ling
9. TSCFeltham 23. Bjorn Nedberg
10. GGDjou 24. G Hollmann
11. Koon Hing Cheang 25. W G Gregory
12, AJBrandt 26. GDSu

13. AV Alvares 27. David P Crease

14.  Patricia Mayne

BIe @ E7E1956F9F38 2R A ST SFHEED o
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Historical Note

RESEENED

Formation

On 3rd September, 1956, 27 architects gathered and formed
a Society "for the general advancement of Civil Architecture
and for promoting and facilitating the acquirement of the
knowledge of the various Arts and Sciences.” Thus The
Hong Kong Society of Architects was formed. On 7th May,
1957, the first amendments were made, to stand for over
two and a half years. During this period the membership of
the Society increased by 50% and recognition as an Allied
Society was given by Royal Institute of British Architects. In
accord with this growth further amendments were made
to come into effect on 3rd November, 1959. By the end of
1962, the Society expanded to a membership seven times
as large as that first body of foundation members.

The changes of name from Society to the Institute was
effected in 1972 after a great deal of preparatory work, and
has initiated a new phase of activity in the Institute’s affairs.
Members will use the professional affix — Architect HKIA
and describe themselves as Member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Architects. Associates will describe themselves
as Associate of The Hong Kong Institute of Architects in full.
No abbreviation of this is permitted.

Purpose

The two main purposes of the Institute are to continue
to raise both the standard of architecture in Hong Kong
and the standard of professional services offered by its
members.

Code of Professional Conduct

In addition to the responsibilities of architects as
professionals under law, members of the institute are
governed by a Code of Professional Conduct. This Code
aims to provide the standard of professional conduct and
self-discipline required of the members of the Institute in
the interest the general public.

Discipline

A member whose conduct is found to be in contravention
of the Code or dishonouring the principle of the Code is
liable to reprimand, suspension or expulsion. This ensures
that the public receives from HKIA members only the
highest standard of professional service.

The Hong Kong Institute of Architects - Annual Report 2011
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Service to the Public

The Institute also serves the public by applying the
collective expertise of its members in an advisory role to
government and to the building industry. Today, HKIA is
represented in numerous consultative or advisory bodies
ranging from a working group which counsels the drafting
of new building and planning legislation to a committee
which formulates standard contracts for use in the building
industry.

Architectural Education

In the field of education, the Institute works closely with the
two Universities, namely, the University of Hong Kong and
the Chinese University of Hong Kong and offers courses and
counsel in professional practice and practical experience in
architecture.

Professional Qualification

Every year, candidates aspiring to the professional
qualification of Architect sit a professional examination held
by the Institute. Successful candidates receive recognition
not only from professional bodies in Hong Kong but also in
UK, Australia, Canada, USA and other countries.

International Participation

In recent years, the Institute takes Hong Kong to the fore in
international circles through its active participation in the
International Union of Architects (UIA), the Commonwealth
Association of Architects (CAA), and the Architects Regional
Council of Asia (ARCASIA).

Organization

Today, The Hong Kong Institute of Architects has around
160 Fellows, more than 2600 Members and over 500
Associates and Graduate Members. The Institute is
governed by a Council consisting of a President, two Vice-
Presidents, an Honorary Secretary, an Honorary Treasurer,
eight Ordinary Members of the Council, the Immediate
Past President (ex-officio member) and the Chairmen of the
Boards. The Boards, appointed by the Council, are formed
to deal with specific areas in the objectives of the Institute.
They are the Board of Educational Affairs, Board of External
Affairs, Board of Internal Affairs, Board of Local Affairs, Board
of Practices and Board of Mainland Affairs. These Boards in
turn appoint Committees to deal with matters within the
area of responsibility of the Boards.
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Historical Note
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Past Presidents of HKIA

1956 GDSu

1957 GDSu

1958 A M JWright

1959 H G F Robinson
1960 W Szeto

1961 W G Gregory

1962 G Chadwick Dovey
1963 G Chadwick Dovey
1964 WK Lee

1965 H Cedric Astbury
1966 T L Kwok

1967 Alan Fitch

1968 Alfred V J Alvares
1969 lan James Campbell
1970 Leslie Chao Ouyang
1971 Jon A Prescott

1972 Jon A Prescott

1973 Jackson C S Wong
1974 Jackson C S Wong
1975 Andrew Lee King Fun
1976 Andrew Lee King Fun
1977 William W T Hsu
1978 William W T Hsu
1979 Lawrence KY Lo
1980 Lawrence KY Lo
1981 Ronald CY Poon
1982 Ronald CY Poon
1983 Edward ST Ho
1984 Edward ST Ho
1985 Edwin Wong

1986 Edwin Wong

1987 James H Kinoshita
1988 James H Kinoshita
1989 Christopher Haffner
1990 Christopher Haffner
1991 Stephen S C Poon
1992 Stephen S C Poon
1993 Dennis WK Lau
1994 Dennis WK Lau
1995 W N Chung

1996 W N Chung

1997 Tao Ho

1998 Tao Ho

1999 Barry F. Will

2000 Barry F. Will

2001 Patrick S S Lau

2002 Patrick S S Lau

2003 John P L Wong
2004 Edward Shen

2005 Bernard VW F Lim
2006 Bernard VW F Lim
2007 RonaldY C Lu

2008 RonaldY C Lu

2009 Anna SY Kwong
2010 Anna SY Kwong
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The First Quarterly General Meeting 2011

Honorary Secretary Report - 31 March 2011
WNFEF—FZEASERBUWSREBS - 2011538318

Board of Practices (BP)

1. Happy Gatherings for Registered Practices
The Board proposed to organize forums for Registered Practices. Tentative
topics suggested include:
- Special caution / What We Need to Take Note on A&A Works
- Experience in Running Jobs in China / Legal Liability of Setting Up Jobs in
China / China Taxation
- Sharing Insight on Architectural industry / Hong Kong by Senior Architect
+ Do and NOT DO on Buildings Maintenance

2. Meeting with Registered Practices
To discuss the pressing issues affecting architectural practices today and
what the Institute should be doing for the Registered Practices, the Board of
Practices is organizing a series of lunch meeting with top management of
RPs.The Board aims to meet 10 to 15 RPs at each session.

3. HKIA CPD Seminar by Board of Practices - Building Information
Modeling from Design to Submission
The Board of Practices has organized a seminar on Building Information
Modeling from Design to Submission on 22 February 2011. The seminar
comprises two sessions, Freedom of design by Maya and Revit, from
Animation to Architecture and How to create government submission plan
quicker and smarter by BIM.

HEEHT

1. RISERETS
HESHICRERMRE - HEBEEFWT ¢
- IRRIVETIRRTIESIR
© RPEBEXHZIERDZE / RPEETIRRBEIEEAE / PEO
Tl
- DEEREFEMRRET /| SBBERRER
- BFHBIIEEE

2. HBATEEMTES
PESHMERNIBERE—RIFES  sIRRSHEZRLINEBER
RERTSE - BHETEIG R 02 1MUATEELFSHE ©

3. HXBHHENSHERMNSBSHETRESEE-BREGURE - 1€
ETEIEREL
MEBFER20115F28228 B 3 —REIRERRE MRS B0
FE o BERSMIBES - BiStMaya and Revi tEREBEI T ENBEI R R0
BE RUMEEREEIRIA T BB RBBOIBUTIES ©

éﬁ*/yﬁae}ﬁbrt 2011

CPD Site Visit to One LaSalle
8-Jan-11

//CPD Seminar Series - (1) Statutory Planning
Procedures, (2) An Experience Sharing on
Unauthorized Building Works and Exempted
Works, (3) Requirements on GBP Submissions
and Application of Fire Engineering Approach in
Building Design
13-Jan-11

The Hong Kong Institute of Architects - Annual Report 2011

21



Honorary Secretary’s Quar
2011 EE%?%W%E%’?E\ e —

P

4. JMHO Mediation Seminar on Role and Function of Architect in

Mediation on 3 March 2011

The Joint Mediation Helpline Office JMHO) and HKIA have jointly organized
a Mediation Seminar on Role and Function of Architect in Mediation on 3
March 2011. The seminar was opened to the public and was well-received.
At the seminar, speakers shared with the audience architect’s role in
construction mediation, general characteristics in construction mediation,
special considerations and skill and preparation and equipping before and
during the Mediation Meeting.

el 5. Renewal of Registered Practices

& ,,_g“’ N x A To simplify the procedure, renewal of corporate membership, HKIA
| TheHong Kon .. “waof Archite w LR consultant list of Registered Practices for minor works updating and renewal
: for listing under the List of Band 3 Architectural Consultants of HKIA were
combined into one form. As of 16 March 2011, 120+ RPs have completed
their renewal of corporate membership.

e Fme 4. 201MEFE3HE3OMEHERIRIIE RN EREMEFENPFRERS
Meeting with Tsing Hua University LR
postgraduates o } R N . - ~
17-Jan-11 20113338 - MERRRRPSENSBEEMBS SRS —NEER

FEIE SRR POIFREBSEE o ENEEHARFEMILEZEND o BEP
EARSHRTROSEEERRPREFOAS - RBEXRROVFS - B8
PHVERANELS » DUREITRAERIBIESS o

5. ANABEFEH
RBILTHE  BESERBNNISEER  SERENSE P/ B TIZR
DERE-ARFEEABENRINSH - #EL2011F3R168 » 9120 ATE
BEeEMtfingsE -

CPD Seminar on WHAT LAST by Tod Williams
20-Jan-11
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6. Promotion of the Simplified Chinese Website ) SR W e A
In order to increase web traffic of the Simplified Chinese Website, Business ' : i —
Promotion Committee implemented Search Engine Optimization (SEO) to
the website such that it could secure a better ranking in the mainland search
engine. The implementation of the SEO commenced in December 2010
and the services shall last for 18 months. At present, 6 keyword ranking were
achieved in top 10 at Google and Baidu.

7. Dissemination of Mainland E-news to Registered Practices
Further to discussion at BP meeting in January 2011, apart from to Council,
the Mainland E-news has also been distributed to Registered Practices by the
Beijing Office for their information every week on Monday and Thursday.

8. HKIA International Standard Online Library
HKIA has renewed the subscription of the IHS International Standard Online
Library for 2011. 23 Registered Practices have subscripted to the captioned
scheme.

HKIA Annual Awards 2010 Site Visit
6. IHERERGEEDPIHEIS 21-Jan-11
RIESHR/PRBIENRE S - EFHEEZESEITILSSIZEIL - IR
SHAILTEAhAVIEE S| ZEPHEER - 201051235 EREIES3IZ g
FHERPS18EA - BRl » ML NMEERF TRIRNSENE S S| BHDER
Bt o

7. ARIAZTERMHAMETR
PESHER—BOEFEPRE @ IERAFRER S REMBEIARE S IRIEHX
HIESE  EERGE-BOFXIETMELITBE -

8. BEEEMBZEIRFRERLBESE
EBREMSSCKERFTR011FIHEFEER L BEE - 8R2F88
BIESm 3 LifistE -

Cou

rxcfl"/g/ilr/ifmer with Liaison Office of the

4

‘oﬂ@s overnment in the HKSAR
ALy \ B
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Board of Local Affairs (BLA)

1.  Submission of Written Views / Response to Local Affairs
The Institute delivered the following written views regarding various local
affairs listed below :
Public consultation on redevelopment of CGO West Wing to Planning
Department on 31 December 2010.
Press release on the new / revised JPNs and PNAPs for the
implementation of new measures to foster a quality and sustainable
[ A/ , = built environment on 1 February 2011,
§i CPB-Site Visjt/to Garden City Cyber Port in + Update of the Codes of Practice for Minimum Fire Service Installations
7 f?ﬁfzﬁ(’%ﬂamy B“ild;ﬁ 2t Sl and Equipment and Inspection, Testing and Maintenance of Installations
utside Horg Kopg Category ) ) )
, g/ L= : and Equipment to Fire Services Department on 7 February 2011
Equal Opportunities Commission's Formal Investigation Report on
Accessibility in Publicly Accessible Premises to Panel on Welfare Services
on the Legislative Council on 9 March 2011.
Exemption of the Institute under the Competition Bill to Development
Bureau on 19 January 2011 and 16 March 2011.
Public consultation on Putting in place a regulatory framework for
property management industry to Home Affairs Department on 15
March 2011.
Stage 1 public engagement on development of Lok Ma Chau Loop to
Planning Department on 19 March 2011.
Stage 2 public engagement on Lung Tsun Bridge remnants to CEDD on
19 March 2011.

AHBF5E

1. AWEBRREEER/OESMER

SEEHMUTAMBHRENTEBRR

© R2010F128318 - @REENERFPRIINCEBEARBHEER
8o
R2011E2818 » SAHT TEERERE - HSUFERRRE ) M
TEMHIEINH/IBEIFRREUMEREXRBERR -
R201152878 » BEH (RIEREZEHEERZBEEER R RBIIR
BV AERRETR)) DEMERERER
R2011E3[9IB » BIDEBRBNBHEE SN T SHEEESHARIGMH
NEEREERSEXRBEER -
DRIFR2011EE1 B198%020114F38168 @ RIFEER, (RBEHEZE) |
HREXFESHOBRIXREESER -

-+ IR201ME3A158 » 7t TERIIMEEIRTENRERE ) ARBHIRI
BHREERER -

© R201ME3F198 - IREIER TEHEMNIEESERER TR, £
—BEATRSEREXTR -

© R01ME3I[19B  MEATRES "EECHENRE L EBEAR
L e

HKIA Spring Reception
21-Feb-11
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2 Nominations

- The following 8 members were nominated by the Institute to
Development Bureau and were appointed to Appeal Board Panel under
Construction Workers Registration Ordinance :
CHAN Chung Yee Albert, CHEUNG Chi Nam Jason, IP Ka Wai Kelvin, HO
Kin Wai Stephen, LOK Man Fai Felix, LUl Chun Wan Alex, TONG Yee Hang,
WONG Ching Long Jerome.
Mr LAW Kin Chung Christopher was nominated to the CUHK to serve as
a member of the Project Advisory Committee for a project under
Research Grant Council Theme-based Research Scheme 2010.

+ Council nominated the following 3 Members to serve on the =% :
Subcommittees under the Steering Committee on Regulation of the Sale & 5‘& PR S AN
of First-hand Private Residential Properties by Legislation : @ @inistitute of Architects
- Subcommittee on Property Information and Show Flats : N T ([

Ms LEUNG So Wan Susan = W ﬁ/
- Subcommittee on Sales Arrangements and Practices : ¢

Mr HUI Man Bock Bernard ! [ A
- Subcommittee on the Enforcement Mechanism and Penalties : :
MrTSENG Yen Wei William

Briefing of Lung Tsun Stone Bridge Remnants
24-Feb-11

2 RE
EERFERBRBUTIREES @ UWDRE (REETAGEMEL) BEER
FZLHREEBEE : RaE  Rom  ERE  ORE BXE -SEE B
DUE ~ H=IEA ©
CERRPALEESSRDEASTEPXABZIENTEE
B
- EEERBMU TR EERTERRERERIDIRE —FTETYERESE
ZEEEMVMEEEBES
- DESNRTHEMNMERES : RRELT
- WELHRISIVMEEZEES : FTXBSE
- HEHMRIRSIRVMVERES  SHERSTE

LHEES

ol

Qinghai Delegates visit to HKIA
28-Feb-11
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3 Events
The following events were organized by BLA and its various Committees :

- Briefing on International Design for the Passenger Terminal Building
of Liantang / Heung Yuen Wai Boundary Control Point presented by Prof
Bernard Lim, Professional Advisor, and CEDD, on 31 January 2011.
Briefing on Lung Tsun Stone Bridge Remnants presented by Kai Tak Office
of CEDD on 24 February 2011.

Briefing on the Conceptual Study for Bay Area of the Pearl River Estuary
presented by Planning Department for members of HKIA, HKILA, HKIP
and HKIUD on 1 March 2011.

A visit to Transport Commission of Shenzhen Municipality for informal
exchange on urban planning and design of Hong Kong and Shenzhen
was held on 5 March 2011.

A members’ discussion session regarding the Government Hill and
redevelopment of Central Government Offices west wing was held on 7
March 2011.

Briefing on new / revised JPNs and PNAPs for the implementation of
the new measures to foster a quality and sustainable built environment

= i'sit;té ﬁhenzhen Government for informal presented by BD to HKIA members on 10 March 2011.
exghange on the urban design and planning
— ¥Mar-11

3 &F

FSHIERETEEGRMP ILUITEE)

- R201MF1AB » TATRIESREBXEBREMBEIRE N ERE B
B0 RSt ESE -
R2011F28248 - TATRIOESEUISERSEIPAZEHN "E2EH
BIMRE ) EPEERARSEH o
R2011E3/18 - REISASBRENSE « SBRENSE - REBH
M2 (RINIDEEERBEZREBTEE) M-
R201E3F5BFHRYIMISBENEZEE - FEBARYINHREIE5E
SHEITIEIETNRIM ©

R2011E3RATE > SIBFWAPBINEESHEEZRITEEIRE

R2011E3H108 - EFEQBSEENBRIEIT TEBILZEHRET - MSYRH
TBIREURIT | FNEIEMGISTE0HT/1IB5I00FERS -

/.

i | ABEA rojsgct - HKIA Young Architect
Projéct Fund 2010
~ oMar-11

AT
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Board of Educational Affairs (BEdA)
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Professional Assessment Committee

Professional Assessment 2010

Results of written papers were released on 1 March 2011.

Passing rate for each written paper as follows :

Paper 1 (Statutory Controls in Building Works) 42.20%
Paper 2 (Building Contracts, Professional Practice,

Professional Conduct, Conditions of Agreement &

Scale of Charges) 58.84%
Paper 3 (Building Structures) 41.79%
Paper 4 (Building Services & Environmental Controls) 4.55%
Paper 5 (Building Materials & Technology) 63.80%
Paper 6 (Site Design) 69.3%
Paper 7 (Building Design, Construction Details &

Documentation) 61.87%
Paper 8 (Case Study) 91.2%
Written Papers Overall Passing rate 32.77%

116 candidates who have passed all the written papers within 5 successive

Z N L % A
years are eligible for taking the Professional Interview on 9 April 2011. —~FHKIAPisgussion Session on Government Hill /

" Regévelopment of CGO West Wing

Candidates who score 55 — 64 marks in Papers 3, 4 or 5 are eligible for sitting
supplementary PA2010 which will be held on 13 = 15 June 2011.

BEAFNERES

EE581572010

BB R2011E3R1 B A o

BNEFFABNREERNT

HE1 (BEIRER) 42.20%
HE2 (BEEN  FXEEH - FHERT  BEERANE )  5884%
HE3 (BREEE) 41.79%
HE4 (BERRRIRESIE) 455%
B0 (MR ) 63.80%
56 (BihEgst) 69.3%
HET (BHEHRET - MIFERSUL) 61.87%
HE8 (BFE) 91.2%
EHABRRBER 32.77%

FRINEIE S B EAEF 21 16BEEREERSIR2011F4898RTHNE
ESEE

S ~ AFOPEUSOODECADIIBET S NR2011FE6 138 E 1582
BZERFL2010945 -
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__~7th Jgint Professional Golf Tournament
16-Mar-11
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Education Development & Accreditation Committee

Agreement for Mutual Recognition of Accreditation Systems of Architectural
Programmes with Architects Accreditation Council of Australia (AACA) was
signed by HKIA and AACA on 30 December 2010 and would be effective for
five years until further renewal.

Continuing Professional Development Committee
- Review of Policy Framework of mandatory CPD programme is in progress

to reflect the implementation details of the reinforcement of mandatory

CPD as per the approval of amendment of Rule 22B and 23B on 24

September 2009.

70 % members have submitted CPD Declaration Form 2010.

CPD E-coupons 2011 were issued to members who have submitted

CPD Declaration Form 2010 by 31 December 2010. 167 Graduate

Members received 5 CPD coupons while 1760 of other membership

categories received 1 CPD coupon.

Highlights of CPD events

8Jan  Site Visit to One LaSalle

13 Jan  Seminar on “"Requirements on GBP Submissions
and Application of Fire Engineering Approach in Building
Design"by FSD

20Jan  Seminar on “WHAT LASTS?" by Tod Williams

19 Feb  Site Visit to Garden City Cyber Port in Shenzhen

17 Mar  Supplier Series on Nanotechnology for Eco Construction by
BOIS Technology Ltd

18 Mar  Seminar on Ei@imRASREAZERE by Raymond Wong

14 Apr  Seminaron “ZEEMEILMPERE?" by Louis Lor

HERRKNTISEES
EBREMNBBERAF DR EENERIHBBR2010F128308HERFT I 2R
RRBHETBIRE - BRHARSE @ BIHRENSEE -

FiIEEXEIBEES
- ZESEARSFETEHESSEIIERAN - MURIN2000F9824858:8
Yo LB SIER B MZsINE2IRA22BF123BH ENEHR
CHEERERR0I0FEFETREESEPRE -
N FRIBFHER TS EUBIHINEIX 62010512831 8281
BIER201 05 EFEERSEPRANEE - SHITERELESSIEMD
SRIBZS - 1760 AR 2 BB 1 RIGS -
FEREEEEREE)
1H88 NEBRIFE—SRZEMER
18138 &EBEMEEHEZ T2RHFTPOIRRZEBRINE KRBT
BI5EZIER 1 BE
18208 Tod Williams Fi&E2 "RIEBEBMEE? , B
28198 MITtEMERAE ZEhESRE
3ATE FERSXNERATEEL "EREERRRPIIKEES |
38188 TWRXSEEHE L T LIENmRSRMEEE | AL
48148 BEIRZENMTHE . T EREAMRY MAHRE? , FBEE
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4. Education & Careers Promotion Working Group
The working group was formed to work out a strategy in promoting
architectural education and profession.

Board of Mainland Affairs (BMA)

1. CEPA
The Department of Housing and Urban-Rural Development of
Guangdong Province recently announced a new legislation on
registration and setting up architectural practices by HK architects
passed Mutual Recognition with the Mainland.

- The Institute is closing liaising with respective authorities in Hong Kong

and Guangdong to seek greater details on implementation and
application for registration.

2. Guangzhou Architecture Tour
- Date: 2-3 April 2011
- Jointly organized with Hong Kong Architecture Centre.
Places to visit: Guangdong Museum, Guangdong Opera House,
Guangdong International Finance Centre, Guangzhou Tower
and Sha-Mian G9'@).

3. Survey on members’ workplace in mainland
- Launched on 2 March 2011.
With an aim to enhance communication and involvement with
members residing and working on the Mainland.
Members are invited to return their completed questionnaire by 16

March 2011.
4. SRR R TR\ \KA\/glncq%r;isngoEw\qent for Prospective HKIA
TRERRRERAB RIFEIF—RIINEEEE 21-Mar-11
A B F5E

1. (AREBRREIERBICERRIHE)
EREEEANARZ RO EEA G RERE AN S BREN M
FFRERMBHMEERM—IRINER ©
SERNAFBHENERSEREPIRSEEME - FEEES M
FEHPHEAENEADED

2. BENERERE
- 5@ - 2001154828238
© BREBHESRBBREPOBSRY

SEYR  EERLWDE  RIASE  BIDESHDL  BMER
WE o

3. HHTEAMIIFNESBERNSESSEMFEEHRE
- RBIBR201MEIF283W -
DAD0sBEE A EE R TFEEMREMERER -
EEHA2011F38168. 2N RZOEERE o
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4. 2011 Mainland and Hong Kong Construction Industry Forum
- Date: Forum — 27-30 May 2011, Study Mission — 30-31 May 2011.
+ Place: Luo-yang, He-nan Province (IR &i35M)
- Theme: IFFBHHAE — BELICBIMEVRENSERE
- Members are welcomed to attend this annual exchange forum.

5. Council Courtesy Visit to Beijing

- Date: 27-29 March 2011

- Authorities visited:
The Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development({EER0i0E
L)

- The Architectural Society of China (PEIZEE2 )

« Ministry of Commerce (F5353h)

+ Hong Kong and Macao Affairs Office of the State Council (8§

- The United Front Work Department of the CPC Central Committee
(HFeE83E)

- The delegates had fellowship dinner with members in Beijing.
Various topics, including registering and setting up practices on the
mainland, mutual collaboration with mainland architectural industry etc,
were exchanged with Mainland authorities.
Assistance in organizing the visit was solicited from the China Liaison
Office in HKSAR.

4. 201 AMEREEEREXRE
BHA : g - 20118E58278%308
2R - 2011558308 %3168
S R [eah =] )
- FEC OEBNmEE - BRUEBWmHORENSERE
- IS ERMBEES I RAIRRIE o

%ouncil Courtesy Visit to Beijing

57:29 Mar 11 5. BEEHR

//// ‘ - BEF: 20114 38 27-298

/ - FEEHEBAI

- BIREERAERET

- PEEESE

- BXREHS

- EBRBRBHBPEAE
chH oo iE —BLAR TEES
KEMEITRESHERE ©
RERPITMEAMETMARERAS - BRI TE O BIRIFE LSRR
SHESZEHETT 3 227 ©
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Board of External Affairs (BExA)

1. Academic Exchange Committee
Fontainebleau Schools Summer Programme 2011
HKIA will participate in Fontainebleau Summer School Exchange
Programme in Paris this year scheduled from 29 June to 5 August 2011.
Invitations were extended to M.Arch 1 & 2 students from HKU and CUHK.
2.  ARCASIA / CAA Committee
ARCASIA Office Bearers Meeting
Immediate Past President Anna Kwong was elected as the ARCASIA Zone C
Vice President for the term 2011 - 2012. She attended the first Office Bearers
meeting on 10 January 2011 in Bali, Indonesia.
3.  Community Development Committee
Guidelines for Voluntary Services
A set of guidelines for the consideration of new external request for
HKIA's volunteer community services was initiated by the Committee for
Operations Manual Review Committee’s consideration.
30-Hour Famine
As invited by World Vision (HK), the Committee will provide professional
advice and manpower to build an exhibition space for the event on 16 and
17 April 2011 at Aberdeen Sports Ground.
NGRS
1. ZBRREEE
011 FEERABESEREHNRE
EBREMNSESRYFEBABNEBPNASRER—FRAN ZFiRY
B4 2EERS DEER2011F6529E8 35BIZHAZRRIR ©
2. DINEEENHE/ REHNERMBERZES
INERMBESE
REREVOIGEEMDERLIREMNGFEBCERIERF - EHR2011-20124 ©
YR SHIR201MEF1 A10BENEERESRTHE—REEEE °
3. MEEMERTEREZEEE

BHIRP ISR
TRIBER/TSRUTRRFNIEK  ZESCHETE I —EEmHR
FFMEEEEGEREF -
BE230)EED
[EEBERTYE  TESLIFA011E48160R1718ES B ESHZRM 2
EBNVRBIS B2 IR T RZEA 58D
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4. Overseas Excursion Committee
An excursion to Southern India spanning from 1 - 9 October 2011 was
proposed by the Committee according to members’ expression of interest.
The Committee is planning the itinerary and tendering process of travel
agent.

5. International Union of Architects (UIA) Committee
UIA2011 TOKYO World Congress
- UIA2011 TOKYO World Congress will be held from 25 September to 1
October 2011 in Tokyo in which exhibition booths for HKIA and UIA
Region IV Work Programme “Architecture for All" respectively would be
hosted.
President Dominic Lam, Chairman of Board of External Affairs Leslie Lu
and Chairman of Board of Educational Affairs Marvin Chen will attend
= the event representing HKIA while Fellow member Joseph Kwan will
W also attend the Congress is his capacity of the Director of UIA Region IV
‘ | ',' / Work Programme "Architecture for All”
' LY F ’ -2 architectural students will be put forward as the official student
delegates to the Youth Jamboree as part of the Congress.

: "f/eni;e/Bifgnnale Response Exhibition "Quotidian 6. 12th Venice Biennale International Architecture Exhibition -
Arghiitecture” Press Conference Hong Kong Exhibition

A el - The Venice Biennale Response Exhibition will be held at the Former
Central Police Station Compound in Central from 30 April 2011 to 25
June 2011.

-+ A Press Conference was held on 13 April 2011 at HKIA premises.
Ms. Elizabeth Tse, Permanent Secretary for Commerce and Economic
Development, will be the Guest of Honor for the Opening Ceremony on
30 April 2011.

4. BIIEEEBEES
RESERM  ZEZREE2011FI1081-90LHRNERESSRETE &
EgEERTRBIRKTILAIEBIROVIIF -

5. EBEEEMEEEEE

UINONERRAS F4O0URBESE

< UIA20MERABER2011EIA2BE1081 BIE R REY - BBRE6M
LZFEREEMESFENE (AR TR EZERBDSEAE
HERELD o
MWHEHEE  INSEHLEREMAERIBE B EBERIASIERFN
EEBREMBSLFLTY  EFZESMEILTEFRBFEEMGS
PR (ZARE) TIEIVEARIBBITHE o

- {URESEEBLGISHBIEREBEEREK  SHEBEEAS

6. Ft_EREHEFREZEETFR-FTERE
- BRHEFRZOERIIR2011F48308268258ERIPRESREY o
HEBRMERR2011F48 138 SBEEMBSWER B o
BBRIGOESEREREBEEWERIASICLLRA2011FLIB0BRITHHRE
BIRELTERE -
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Board of Internal Affairs (BIA)

Annual Awards 2010 Committee

- 71 entries were received this year. The processing by the jury board was
successfully completed in mid January 2011.
The official result announcement of the Annual Awards 2010 will be
made at the Press Conference on 3 May 2011 at HKIA Premises.
The Annual Awards 2010 Prize Presentation cum Exhibition Ceremony is
scheduled for 6 May 2011 at Park Court, Pacific Place.
A timetable and venues of the Annual Awards Roving Exhibition at
Pacific Place, Hong Kong Heritage Discovery Centre, Tai Wo, Lok Fu and
Murray House has been posted on HKIA website for members’
information.
Mrs Carrie Lam, GBS, JP, Secretary for Development will be the Officiating
Guest at the Award Presentation, and Opening Ceremony at 7:00pm.
The Annual Awards 2010 Special Issue will be available in early May 2011
for members' collection.

Members Activities & Young Architects Committee

Welfare & Young Members Sub-committee

Welcoming Event for Professional Assessment Candidate was scheduled for

21 March 2011 at HKIA Premises.

Young Architects Sub-committee

- Green Arbitration Hiking along Pat Sin Leng Country Park was jointly
organized by the Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators — Young Members
Group and HKIA-Young Architects Sub-committee on 6 March 2011.
Young Architect Project Fund 2011 has been launched on 1 March 2011.
Submission deadline is 15 April 2011.

RBFEHE

010 EFEREED
SEHIKRTNSBIER o STBER2011E1 BPaBRIZM IS8
HSHR201 1 B3B8 2B MERET201 0EF RIS ME » WENA A

FRIER
STEIR2011ES B6BEEE ARG EISPark Cour tE2172010FEFE 42853 8172
BRE o
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3. HKIA 55th Anniversary Ball Committee
- The HKIA 55th Anniversary Ball 2011 is scheduled for on Saturday, 5
November at Level1, Convention Hall, Hong Kong Convention &
Exhibition Centre.
The Honourable TANG Ying Yen Henry, GBM, GBS, JP, Chief Secretary for
Administration, will be the Guest of Honour.

4. Media Resources & Publication Committee
HKIA Annual Report will be available in late April 2011 for members'’
collection at HKIA Premises.

Special Projects

1. Hong Kong - Shenzhen Bi-city Biennale of Architecture and

Urbanism 2009

- Hong Kong'’s Exhibition Closing Ceremony was held on 27 February
2009 evening in West Kowloon Cultural District following a series of
forums starting in the same afternoon with prominent professionals
coming from architecture, urban planning, design and arts for academic
and cultural sharing.
Shenzhen Exhibition Closing Ceremony was held on 22 January 2010
evening with presence of representatives from the Hong Kong
organizers.

3. BEEENMBESSOEAFRARESRES
- EBEREMBESFTEAZGTE011F11H58 (B BiRfiEEE
BERBPLOSHERET -
SR THERNEHFIIRERFAOHILTSAEIEERES ©

4. EMRENEES
2010 F EBRFEMBSERFRNFAREELSWSEMR BB

RBlEE)

1. 2009F8- R 2R E M EF R
- SBERBARIIN2009F2821BERREBNEILERIT - 8 NFIN
P s e ST —RORIE - BE S WEE B RBISRBLALIISEL
nnual Awards xhibition Opening I 25 o
Ceremony cum Prize Presentation REMITRI AL

6-May-11 - RYIREASIUR2010F1 228 R8T - SBEESRERLF ©
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HKIA Spring Reception
HKIA Spring Reception was held on 25 February 2010. There were

around 50 participants celebrating the Festival at HKIA premises.

Architectural Exhibition in China
- The objectives of the project are to promote the service provided by

Hong Kong architects in the Mainland to elevate the branding of Hong

Kong architects and to explore more business opportunities for

architectural practices in Hong Kong by showcasing the projects done

by Hong Kong architects. <M '
. . . ~ ) B S

;aqrgeted‘QUes for the exhibition gnder consideration includes Beijing, ?"é\@yﬁ\

anghai, Guangzhou and Chongging =7
The exhibition is anticipated to be launched in late 2010.

EEERMSTHEES
SEREMBSHBBEER2010F2825884T - LEBHIB0A ©

PEIEER

- HABIZENEHESBREMEAMBRESERY - AEBREEH
TELHIEH -
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FEEEHAER201 0EEEE[ERRE) ©

i

Daniel CHI, FHKIA
HKIA Honorary Secretary

SEREMBSEHFWER
s seeneesFes
24 March 2011
20114238248

L 70NV and and Hong Kor)g/ Construction
R9774 ,QﬂJstryfFo-r’ung,bn ”lSustainab’Ie Urban Form :
" %Leservau(’);f% Development of Historical &
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The Second Quarterly General Meeting 2011
Honorary Secretary Report
23 June 2011
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Board of Practices (BP)

1. Lunch Meeting with Registered Practices (RPs)

- A series of lunch meetings with RPs was arranged for sharing the
common issues encountered by architectural practices today and
working out what the Institute could do for them. 8 lunch meetings
were held and round 74 RPs out of 164 have participated in the sharing.
A list of issues identified would be consolidated subsequently for follow

up.

2. Seminar on the New Arbitration Ordinance on 9 June 2011
In view of the New Arbitration Ordinance (the "Ordinance”) would
become effective on 1 June 2011, Contract and Dispute Resolution
Committee (CDRC) is organizing a seminar on 9 June on the captioned
to address the important features of the Ordinance to our members.

A
/k/ PD 'miimar on adaptive reuse system in China
i 23./?477 |

=

WNFEEF_SZTEASEHUERRBS
2011568234

HESHY

1. NAIEEFES
PESHLRLTEERM —RIFES - DZRSEENSHMERM
B 1R NTIBEPEURSI S HINTFES - FESEREIERER
PRI o

2. 2011EE6R9IBMPHAROIAETS
S EUED] (R TRAIL ) KER201MFE6R1BREN - BESK
RAFAMSHEESRNOBIBRTREE  QSERBRIIEREH -
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3. Review on Pll Scheme from Marsh

- Marsh has continued to carry out the PIl Scheme for HKIA in the
year of 2011. In the period from 30 December 2010 to 3 May 2011, there
were 26 applications in total. 15 clients (72%) out of these 26 have joined
the scheme. Although the participation rate remained at a high level of
72%, the total number of applications and participants has yet to meet
the insurers' expectation.
Legal and Finance Committee is attempting to get the list of firms
participating in the scheme which can indicate whether the scheme is
more favored by smaller or larger firms.

4. Review of Disciplinary Proceeding
To facilitate the review of disciplinary proceeding, CDRC has set up a
taskforce which comprises 2 Council Members, 3 CDRC Members and
Registrar. Findings on the review and recommendations would be made
to the Board of Practice and the Council by the end of this year.

3. IREIBESIRETE
© MarshiR20NFHBRSBREMNBSRHUEXETRESTE - EZ2017
FHA3B AR - HINEI26IREPFEZ  16I1FFEA (72%) NONGZEHE] o &
PREBFZERT2% - WEPBABRSEABRZZRRATRE ©
ERERPHEE G E@Mar shERRSEFSTBINATBE - MIFARMPLR
LS BRELETE ©
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5. Practices Survey 2011
- One more question was added this year to survey the interest of
architects who possess the PRC Class | Licensed Architect Qualification
in applying for the BR&EITHEIZATIMIAEER. The results of
the survey were compiled and have been sent out to the 37 RPs which
participated in the survey.

6. E-newsletter “What’s new” for dissemination to non-HKIA
members
- To promote the creative works of RPs to potential clients and stake
holders who are non-HKIA members, the Business Promotion Committee
would issue an e-newsletter showcasing the recent projects of our RPs
on a regular basis.

== + Aol

nIvLIm |
. ‘\‘”‘“M | "“ 7. Networking function

of Arf

Membership Committee proposed organizing two networking functions
‘ for RPs. Eric Wong (&%&7]) and Christie Wu (5883 would be invited

é* =L =T for sharing their experiences and tips on running business. The first

‘m\ k il R SRE \ u event would be held in the mid-September and 20-30 representatives of

iy UH\‘) :llf \HH 3 4 RPs are targeted to join.

L nd diia Lunch

i | 10din-11)

|

5. 20MPTBTEHRE
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E3XHESMPEHITRATEE ©
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Board of Local Affairs (BLA)

1.  Submission of Written Views / Response to Local Affairs

The Institute delivered the following written views regarding various

local affairs listed below :
Written views to respond to stage 1 public engagement on Planning
and Engineering Study on Development of Lok Ma Chau Loop was
submitted to Planning Department on 19 March 2011.
Written views to respond to stage 2 public engagement on Lung
Tsun Bridge remnants was submitted to CEDD on 19 March 2011.
Written views to respond to stage 3 public engagement on Hong
Kong Island East Harbourfront Study was submitted to Planning
Department on 25 April 2011.
Written views to respond to the public consultation on the
construction of one-and-a-half additional floors at Central Piers nos. 4,
5 and 6 was submitted to CEDD on 17 May 2011.

ZNE S

K7y A/
_—HKIACAD Seminar on Convergence and
1. A EREREESE /OEAN SR In: /u/memallzatlon of Architecture in Society of

BEUUTAMBHREWTSEER *
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The Institute met with the following bodies to deliver views on the

following issues :

- A meeting was held with Buildings Department regarding the
registered inspectors for the mandatory building inspection scheme
on 24 March 2011,
A meeting was held with Development Bureau and Buildings
Department to present views regarding the proof of ownership of
land for GBP submissions and validity of modifications and
exemptions on 3 May 2011.
A meeting was held with the Executive Director (Project Delivery)
of WKCD Authority to reflect the concerns of the Institute on
the development of WKCD including development packages and
procurement strategy.
President represented the Institute to deliver a presentation on the
views and expectations on the latest development of the West
Kowloon Cultural District project at the meeting of LegCo Joint
Subcommittee to Monitor the Implementation of the WKCD Project
on 16 May 2011.
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- R2011EF38248 - MEFE GRS ENEMeRASRE R
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HKSZ2011 - Lunch and meeting with
HK - Shenzhen counterparts
21-Jun-11
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Nominations

- Ms IEONG In Leng Yvonne and Ms FONG Suet Yuen Carolin were
nominated to Hong Kong Green Building Council as the standing and
alternate representatives respectively of the Green Labeling Committee
on 20 April 2011.

Mr Franklin YU was nominated to Hong Kong General Chamber of
Commerce as the member of Real Estate and Infrastructure Committee
on 20 April 2011.

Mr HAI Tuen Tai Freddie was nominated to Development Bureau to
replace one of the appointees to the Appeal Board Panel of Construction
Workers Registration Ordinance on 20 April 2011.

Mr HUI Man Bock Bernard was nominated to Hong Kong Housing Society
to be the member of the Hong Kong Quality Building Assessment Panel
for Voluntary Building Assessment Scheme of HKHS on 20 April 2011,
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3. Events/Projects

The following events / projects organized by BLA and its various

Committees were completed :
Two visits to Transport Commission and Urban Planning, Land and
Resources Commission of Shenzhen Municipality for informal
exchange on urban planning and design of the two cities were held
on 5 March 2011 and 2 April 2011 respectively.
A special general meeting was held by the Institute on 31 March
2011, at which the motion of treating the minimum remuneration
under the “guidelines to HKIA on members’ participation in invited
submissions for architectural consultancy proposal”as recommended
was adopted by the meeting.
The proposed revisions to the appendix of the Rules of the Conduct
of Architectural Competitions had been endorsed by Council at its
4th Meeting on 14 May 2011.
A CPD seminar on Adaptive Reuse System in China was delivered by
Prof Tan Gang-yion 2 June 2011.
HKIA held a professional workshop to receive views and expectations
regarding no-frills flats on 4 June 2011. About 50 participants from
HKIA and allied professional institutes and architectural schools
attended the event.
BLA supported to the 2nd media lunch of the Institute held on 4
June 2011. The Institute’s views regarding no-frills flats and
unauthorized building works were presented to the media.

3. &®/IRE

KB RBEBTNEZESEMW I UTES)

- R2011E3B58402011F4828 @ DRIER)IMBEHZEGRRF
YNIMRBNELTEREZEE © smmovAHRBIAREHEITIFED
Rt ©
R2011F38318 - BBBFAFRIBEARE  HESH (FEBHUER
BREBABZEES) B5IPIBNRERM - BRIKBHTITENRE
BIRFEZENE A LESBIA -

R2011F68148 - B8185] (BIRREBRNVKRA) NMHREIESS
EONEH @A o

R2011F6 A28 RYHFETHERZBE - DEBRIRBRPESL
BRRHE -

R2011EF6F4BRWTAFS - WEE "EMAE, TERFNERR
HAZ - 950D BIRETBEZRENEE « BHETEERANRRERRA
KSNLREE

FSHERBEEAFE_NBREFESRMIE 5l "EMAE,
FEBTIENRRYERESGER -

_~~Venjge Biennale 2010 Response Exhibition
Cloding Forum & Photo Session
= 24un-11

42 The Hong Kong Institute of Architects « Annual Report 2011



Board

1. Pr

of Educational Affairs (BEdA)

ofessional Assessment Committee
PA2010 Professional Interview was held on 9 April. Out of 127 candidates
who sat for the Interview, 94 candidates passed, representing 74.02%.
Supplementary PA for Papers 3, 4 and 5 will be held on 13 — 15 June.
There are in total 150 applications.
PA2011 registration starts from now until 30 June.
PA2011 Lecture & Seminar Series (28 lectures) are well attended and are
held during mid May to early October.
The proposal of conducting Papers 3,4 and 5 in 2 — 3 times a year was
adopted by Council. Implementation details will be worked out by the
Committee.

2. Education Development & Accreditation Committee

Revised HKIA/ARB Accreditation Document was endorsed by Council.
Tea gathering session with heads of departments / schools of
architecture of HKU, CUHK, CityU and Chu Hai College will be held on 30
June.
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Continuing Professional Development Committee

1st reminder and 2nd reminder issued to defaulters of CPD Declaration
Form 2010 on 1 April and 12 May respectively.

As at 31 May 2011, 12% members have not submitted CPD Declaration
Form 2010. Any members who do not submit the form by 30 June will
deem “zero” CPD hours in 2010 and need to make up outstanding hours
in2011.

Highlights of CPD events :

- 16 April Factory Visit to Nippon Paint in Guangzhou

- 9-12 May Singapore Green Visit

- 24 May Seminar on "HDB success stories in innovation for
public housing projects” by Housing Development
Board, Singapore

- 24 June Seminar on “BEIDEIEEMIZERAREHZE
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Board of Mainland Affairs (BMA)

1. CEPA
- The Institute is still liaising with the Department of Housing and Urban- - ‘
Rural Development of Guangdong Province and HKSAR Development 5 5 o By ~~v'-—5"-1".ﬂ"‘;_b?< ) A _ N
Bureau on registration and setting up architectural practices by HK £ "1" Yoo V. 3

architects passed Mutual Recognition with the Mainland including the
new legislation exam (Z#)8I5H) announced by Guangdong.

2. 2011 Mainland and Hong Kong Construction Industry Forum

- This annual forum, jointly organized by the Ministry of Housing and
Urban-Rural Development (MVOHURD) and HKSAR Development Bureau,
was held in Luo-yang, He-nan Province on 27-31 May 2011.
Theme of the Forum was Sustainable Urban Form: Preservation and
Development of Historical & Cultural Cities.
President Mr. Dominic Lam representing HKIA attended the forum.
HKIA participated in the concurrent exhibition on HK's achievements on
heritage conservation. The HKIA Annual Awards 2008 Special
Architectural Award - Heritage winning project Ping Shan Tang Clan
Gallery cum Heritage Trail Visitors Centre was showcased.

RS
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3. Qian-hai MOU
- The HKIA is preparing to sign MOU with the Authority of Qian-hai
Shenzhen-Hong Kong Modern Service Industry Cooperation Zone of
Shenzhen CRYIMBIBFBIRNRFBESIEEBEIES), with an aim to
promote HK's architecture profession to this newly developed district.

4. Tianjin delegation visited HKIA
- Delegation of The Construction and Transport Commision of Tianjin (X
RTINS ABZE ) visited HKIA on 31 May 2011,
President Mr. Dominic Lam, Hon Secretary Daniel Chi and Registrar Rita
Cheung received the group and introduced to them HKIA's structure and
development.
Tianjin delegation invited HKIA for reciprocal visit.
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Board of External Affairs (BExA)

1. Academic Exchange Committee
Fontainebleau Schools Summer Programme 2011
- Recommended by the Committee after interview, 3 students from HKU
would be granted with scholarship from the Fontainebleau Schools to
cover partial tuition fee for this year’s Summer Program from 29 June - 5
August 2011 in Paris.

2. ARCASIA / CAA Committee

ARCASIA Forum 16th
The 32nd ARCASIA Council Meeting cum ARCASIA Forum 16th,
organized by the Vietnam Association of Architects, will be held from 15 -
20 August 2011 in Da Nang, Vietnam. Official delegates include:-
1. Dominic Lam, President of HKIA
2. Marvin Chen, Chairman of BEdA
3. Anna Kwong, Vice President of ARCASIA Zone C

ARCASIA Awards 2011/2012

- Winning projects and short-listed projects of 2009 and 2010 HKIA Awards
and winning projects of 2008 and 2010 Quality Building Awards were
invited to fill the nominations from HKIA amongst the 12 categories of
ARCASIA Awards 2011/2012. Deadline for the first submission of
documents was on 15 June 2011.
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3. Community Development Committee

30-Hour Famine
Led by the Community Development Committee members who have
provided professional advices in the set up of the exhibition space for
the 30-Hour Famine organized by World Vision, 47 HKIA volunteers
participated in the onsite installation and construction on 14 and 15
April 2011 at Aberdeen Sports Ground.

Professional Volunteer Service Accreditation Programme
Members who have been devoting to institutional and architectural
related volunteer services were encouraged to submit their Accreditation
Hours by 30 June 2011. Recommended awardees will be presented with
Appreciation Certificate at the 3rd QGM on 15 September 2011.

4. Overseas Excursion Committee
An excursion to Southern India would be organized by the Committee
during 29 September — 9 October 2011 according to the expression of
interest from members.

3. TtERRBRESZ
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4B14-15BREBESETSSE S BEBEHS I 2HEE0EE) 0 BT
PESTEIEHBESR - IRIRISHEN LR

SETRRA x5S
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5.

International Union of Architects (UIA) Committee
UIA2011 TOKYO World Congress
- UIA2011 TOKYO World Congress will be held from 25 September to 1
October 2011 in Tokyo in which exhibition booths for HKIA and UIA
Region IV Work Programme “Architecture for All” respectively would be
hosted.
President Dominic Lam, Chairman of Board of External Affairs Leslie
Lu and Chairman of Board of Educational Affairs Marvin Chen will attend
the event representing HKIA while Fellow member Joseph Kwan will also
attend the Congress in his capacity of the Director of UIA Region IV Work
Programme “Architecture for All"
2 architectural students from CUHK will be the official student delegates
to the Youth Jamboree as part of the Congress.
Transport for All Conference 2012
- HKIA was invited by the Hong Kong Society for Rehabilitation to support
the Transport for All Conference 2012, which will be held in January 2012,
HKIA will be the supporting organization while Trevor lu, Deputy Director
of UIA Region IV Work Programme “Architecture for All", was nominated
to join the Organizing Committee of the event representing HKIA.

12th Venice Biennale International Architecture Exhibition -
Hong Kong Exhibition

The Opening Ceremony of Venice Biennale Response Exhibition was held at
the Former Central Police Station Compound in Central on 30 April 2011 at
3pm. Miss Elizabeth Tse, Permanent Secretary for Commerce and Economic
Development, was the Officiating Guest and Ms. Alessandra Schiavo, The
Consul General of Italy, was the Guest of Honour. 136 guests attended the
Opening event. The exhibition is open to the public from 30 April - 25 June
2011, Tuesday to Sundays (Monday closed) 10am — 6pm.
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Board of Internal Affairs (BIA)

1. HKIA Annual Awards 2010
- Prize Presentation & Exhibition Opening Ceremony was successfully held
on 6 May 2011.
The Institute was honoured to have Ms. Eva Cheng, Secretary for Housing
and Transport, to be the Guest of Honour. (Mrs. Carrie Lam, Secretary for
Development sent apologies due to urgent arrangement.)
Roving exhibition shall be held from May to July. Exhibition schedule is

L E 0\ available at HKIA's website.

~HKW/Summer Workshop in Computational - The Annual Awards 2010 Special Issue are now available for members’
G D&@n - Lecture on Advanced Engineering for

collection.

2. 55th Anniversary Ball
-+ Tobe held on 5 November 2011, at Hong Kong Convention & Exhibition
Centre.
A, + Theme of the ball is Oscar Hollywood Era.
Mr. Henry Tang, Chief Secretary for Administration, accepted the
Institute’s invitation to be the Guest of Honour of the Anniversary Ball.

3. New Members Welcoming Party
To welcome over 80 HKIA Members-to-be.
To be held in the evening of 27 July 2011 at the Craigergower Cricket
Club.

AN wmems
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ARCASIA 32nd Council Meeting cum Forum 16
15-20Aug 11
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4. Young Architects Project Fund 2011
No submission was received on deadline 15 April 2011.

5. HKIA Journal
The HKIA Journal issue 60 shall be available in end-June.
Theme of issue 61 is Macau Projects. Members are welcomed to submit
their articles.

6. HKIA Annual Report 2010
The HKIA Annual Report 2010 shall be ready in Mid-July.

4. BERFENREEE2011
BEZEIEBH2011F43158EREBHERKL

5. BBEEMBZTHR
EBEFENES 00RO FETH ©
SEOVHBREBERRPIRE - EUDSEMS -

/Guangdong Legislation Exam
@iing Session
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Special Projects

1. Hong Kong-Shenzhen Bi-city Biennale of Urbanization and

Architecture 2011

Formation of Steering Committee
Led by Professor Bernard Lim, a Steering Committee (SC) composed of
members from past Biennales Curators and Steering Committees, and
representatives from the Hong Kong Institute of Planners, Hong Kong
Designers Association and Shenzhen counterparts was formed to put
forward a CreateSmart Initiative (CSI) application amounted to HK$7.3M
to Create Hong Kong on 13 May 2011.
The project aimed to be held from late December 2011 to February 2012
in coincidence with the Shenzhen Exhibition.

CreateSmart Initiative Application
Representatives from the SC attended the meeting with CSI Vetting
Panel on 2 June 2011. The prospective funding support from CSI would
be around HKS$5.3M. Pending CSI written confirmation.

RIKIRE
1. 201FYl - SBEH/EREHEFR

DAVA=CE IS

© BMEBEHRES BFEEFRRARARBEEZEEMNE @ SBREIETS
BREK - SBRSTEIBSARRERYIMABRESEINARABMIIZEES
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FIEBEE2011F12B N8 ZE2012F 28 BWRE ME S RYIE D0
RE -

BRRIE SR E
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BEB EEBIHH0BIE0E - IRISTSENET ©

HKIA forum on Carbon Emission Reduction in
Household, Office, Retail and Catering
20-Aug-11
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2. Introduction of Architectural Teaching Kit to Secondary school

curriculum

Execution of project
Initiated by Education Bureau, HKIA collaborated with the Community
Project Workshop (CPW) under the Faculty of Architecture of HKU in
proposing a 20-month project to develop a teaching kit on Hong Kong
architecture for secondary school arts curriculum and a series of
introduction and training sessions for the teachers of the secondary
schools.

CreateSmart Initiative Application
A CreateSmart Initiative (CSI) application was submitted to Create Hong
Kong for funding support of HK$2.7M on 28 April 2011. Vice President
Robert Lam and HKIA member Wong Wah Sang, Assistant Professor
from HKU, attended the meeting with CSI Vetting Panel on 2 June 2011.
The prospective funding support would be around HK$2.3M. Pending
CSIwritten confirmation.

2. BEEE: PBYMZRESET J et A

STEIRS - /ﬁﬁ eminar— Learning from Denmark,
BHBERERL  SEREMSSNSBEALRELRHRIEE TIEHEE véden & Finland
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SERREMBSEE- SBAREMERFESELLER011F0828HF
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Daniel CHI, FHKIA

HKIA Honorary Secretary
EBRENMSBSEHUSER
SRR e e =t
16 June 2011
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Board of Practices (BP)

1.  Luncheons with Registered Practices

9 luncheons were held to meet Registered Practices between April and
July 2011. A total of 79 Registered Practices attended the luncheons and
the attendance rate is 47%.
A report summarizing the views, concerns and suggestions received at
the Luncheons was compiled. BP and its committees undertake the
follow up actions and the report would be released to Registered
Practices after suitable edition.

2. CPD Program on Common Pitfalls - Architect’s Responsibility
- A CPD program jointly organized by HKIA & ARB will take place on 11
October.
Architect’s responsibility under the Building Ordinance, HKIA & ARB Code
of Professional Conduct would be addressed at the seminar.
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3. Informal Gatherings between Registered Practices and Buildings
Department/Planning Department/Lands Department

Upon invitation from BP, Plan Department and LandsDepartment are
joining two informalgatherings and share views about application
to TPB and comments to Building Department on approval of GBPs, and
submissions to and approval by Lands Department respectively with our
Registered Practices.
Deputy Director of Plan Department Ms Ophelia Wong and Director of
Lands Ms Annie Tam would join these gatherings respectively.
Gathering with Lands Building Department was confirmed to be held
on 17 October. Another gathering with Building Department is under
negotiation.

4. Study on Consultant Selection System

- In view of that the fee awarded by the government was too low, and
the current procurement method failed to obtain innovative designs, a
taskforce was formed under BP to review other country / area's
government (e.g. China, UK, Singapore and US) procurement method on
architectural consultants and to check if their merits can be
recommended to HK government.
The taskforce was expected to come up with a proposal to Council by
February 2012.

3. ANIBENEFE/RIAZ/MBIBZNIFENRS
- HESHILEE SREIBANRIRSSRBNAISEMIFENRE 0=
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HKIA CPD Shenzhen Factory Visit by Shui Wo
10-Sep-11
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5. Review of Agreement Between Client & Architect & Scale of
Professional Charges
- Practice Issues Committee is proceeding with the review of the
Agreement. The committee tended to redefine the scope of work
architects are providing. Lists of standard services, additional services
and excluded services would be compiled in first place.

6. Exhibition for Registered Practices
- Suggested by Registered Practices, BP would organize an exhibition
similar to that of university graduation shows to raise citizens' awareness
of local architects as well as their talents and contributions to Hong
Kong.

5. RESFHEEFRMMHHRBRNER
BN/ NEMESHEEBIERIRIZE - EEBRSEN TR
PRt TFOVEEE - BRFERERTS, HITIBRIFAA BISHIARES

6. RTSEREZ
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2 MIRFARE AR MGV R P S BIFLER -

3rd Quarterly General Meeting
15-Sep-11
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Board of Local Affairs (BLA)

1.  Submission of Written Views / Response to Local Affairs

The Institute delivered the following views regarding various local affairs

listed below :
presentation on the views and expectations on the latest development
of the West Kowloon Cultural District project by President at the meeting
of Joint Subcommittee to Monitor the Implementation of the WKCD
Project of the Legislative Council on 16 May 2011.
letter to the Bills Committee on Buildings (Amendment) Bill 2010 of the
Legislative Council on 28 June 2011 expressing views of not supporting
the proposed amendments of the Bill to include penalty (in the form
of fines at Level 4 or 5) of registered inspector and qualified person in the
Buildings (Amendment) Bill 2010 on 28 June 2011.
submission of a historic building appraisal report regarding No.23
Coombe Road to Antiquities and Monument Office to respond to the
invitation of public views on the assessment result of the building on 30
June 2011.
written submission to Airport Authority Hong Kong to respond to the
public consultation on the Hong Kong International Airport Master Plan

2030 on 1 September 2011. ‘,‘/EP/%G/u}angdong Legislation Exam: Training
Segsion |
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7 ///Lf; //>)( LA 2. Nominations
2L L e - MrHUI Man Bock Bernard was appointed by Hong Kong Housing Society

T to be the member of the Hong Kong Quiality Building Assessment Panel
3 ﬁnﬁxﬁfg bl for Voluntary Building Assessment on 26 May 2011.
e s - Mr LAU Kwing Lam Glenn was appointed to the Advisory Committee on
u Barrier Free Access of Buildings Department on 20 July 2011,

I\ Mr LAM Ping Hong Robert was nominated to CIC to be a member of its

1 . Focus Group on Projected Construction Expenditure on 28 July 2011,
S Ft L8 - Mr LAM Ping Hong Robert was nominated to the Construction Industry
- Council for consideration of appointment as member of CIC for the new

President ¢f South African Institute term on 30 August 2011.
/ - Mr LAM Chung Wai Tony was nominated to Buildings Department to

be a member of the Technical Committee on Building Safety and Health
Requirements for Historic Buildings under the Buildings Ordinance on 31
August 2011.

3. Events/Projects

The following events / projects organized by BLA and its various Committees

were completed :
HKIA Forum on Carbon Emission Reduction on Household, Office, Retail
and Catering on 20 August 2011
Being a supporting organization of the public engagement on
Combating Climate Change : Energy Saving and Carbon Emission
Reduction in Buildings conducted by the Council for Sustainable
Development, a forum on Carbon Emission Reduction on Household,
Office, Retail and Catering was organized by BLA and was successfully
held at Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre on 20 August

2. B3
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2011, with 110 persons participated in the forum. The 10 speakers from
allied professional institutes and invited green groups presented on the
local building sector carbon footprint, the importance in demand-side
management of energy in Hong Kong, how the building sector could
contribute carbon reduction target in Hong Kong, introduction of energy
efficient devices for buildings and relevant overseas experience, and
how low carbon existing buildings could be promoted through barrier

N =

eff);Report 2011

removal and policy support, followed by floor discussion with panel 1K = TR =

speakers.

CPD Seminars / Visits

CPD visit to SCAD Hong Kong Campus (the former North Kowloon
Magistracy) on 18 June 2011.

CPD seminar on Chinese renaissance architecture in Hong Kong on 7

KAEEESBRREANERN « RESITRBIHIFIFLER
SIERTSME R R EEERRER AR 15
DR BIRAEmGREE -

15k

CPD Seminar on Learning from Demark, Sweden and Finland on 24
August 2011.

International design ideas competition for Liantang / Heung Yuen Wai
Boundary Control Point Passenger Terminal Building

HKIA was a supporting organization of the Competition. Prize
presentation ceremony was held on 1 September 2011. Results of the
competition is available at competition website : http://www.lthywbcp-
design.hk/.

Lantern Wonderland Design Competition

The Institute was a supporting organization of the Competition. The light
up ceremony was scheduled for 3 September 2011. Winning entries
would be displayed at the “Mid-Autumn Lantern Celebration” at Victoria
Park between 3 and 13 September 2011.
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Board of Educational Affairs (BEdA)

1. Professional Assessment Committee (PAC)

-+ Supplementary PA2010 for Papers 3, 4 and 5 was conducted on 13-15
June 2011. Passing rates of each paper as follows :
Paper 3:71.43%
Paper 4:42.31%
Paper 5:79.63%
25 candidates passed all written papers after taking the supplementary
PA2010 are eligible to sit the Professional Interview to be held on 17
September 2011.
As at registration deadline on 12 August 2011, 474 registrations for
PA2011 were received.

2. Professional Assessment Review Task Group
- To uphold the professional standard and to make Professional
Assessment more effective and user-friendly, the Council adopted a
number of changes on the Professional Assessment system to be taken
place in PA2012. A briefing session to PA candidates on the new

el / initiatives will be organized on 20 September 2011.

%ﬁg session to Advisers, Office Supervisor

Zandidates on new initiatives of PA X L X

3. Education Development & Accreditation Committee (EDAC)

To maintain the dialogue with local architectural schools, a tea gathering
was organized among representatives of architectural schools of
HKU, CUHK, CityU and Chu Hai College with the President, Honorary
Secretary, Chairman of Board of Educational Affairs and EDAC members
on 30 June 2011.

HEEHS

1. BEUFEES
- EREERIZT20105%53 © B4R B0 ER2011F68138E 1585847 -
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B4 42.31%
% 50 79.63%
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4. Continuing Professional Development Committee (CPDC)

+ As at the cut-off date on 30 June 2011, 200 members (6.1 %) have not
submitted CPD Declaration Form 2010 and they are required to make up
the outstanding hours in the remaining months of 2011,

CPD Checking Panel selected 2% (62 forms) from the submitted CPD

Declaration Form 2010 for checking.

Highlights of CPD events :

28 June Sharing Session on CPD Singapore Green Visit

16 July  Site Visit to Science Park Green 18 (Building 20)

18 July  Seminar on High Performance Drywall System for Hospital
Projects by Lafarge Boral Gypsum in Asia (LBGA)

10 Sept  Factory Visit to Shui Wo International Building

5 Education & Careers Promotion Working Group
To promote architectural education and careers prospects of architects
to secondary school students, a tea gathering session with careers
masters of secondary schools has been arranged on 10 September 2011.

4. HEEXERBZREZ
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63288 FEFXFEBTIIERECERENSEE

7H168 SERSBRRERRIEZ (2055K28)

7188 BLBAERERESRTIZIRE LNSMEEBEIRAE
98108 SEMSEIRNERRMBRATIRY IS

Media Luncheon on Combating Climate Change
7-Oct-11

b. HERBEFEHERETIIFIGE
RIDPEEHBZEHNENABAISR - B2BR2011FIF108EPEBEH
BFFEMIABNCRESRHERIR °
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Board of Mainland Affairs (BMA)

1. CEPA-2011 Legislation Examination in Guangdong
- Organized by the Registration Centre of the Guangdong Housing and

Urban-Rural Construction Department (BEREERBHAEER D), the
Legislation Examination for 412 HKIA members who have attained PRC
Class | Architect Qualification (MR-ed members) through Mutual
Recognition Exercises from 2004-2008 will take place in September 2011.
168 out of 412 MR-ed members registered for the examination which will
last for 150 minutes on 24 September from 2:30pm to 5:00pm in
Guangzhou(EI).
A briefing session for the aforesaid members took place at the Joint
Professional Centre on 19 August during which more than 150 MR-ed
members attended.
Before the exam, a 2-day training course is scheduled for 16-17
September at Shenzhen Jingtian Hotel (RIS BEIS).

2. Delegation of HKIA Registered Practices Visit Qianhai
+ On 12 July 2011, President, Hon Secretary, together with 17
representatives from 9 Registered Practices and Department of

) minLar - Reta;ning,tF;ecyUc,I\i]r;gSCagdHReytSmg Architecture of The Hong Kong University visited Qian-hai Shenzhen-
lkage: Lessons frrom e eritage . . S v— gDy N
n/sef\’,ation Awards Programme 2000-2011 2 Hong Kong Modern Service Industry Cooperation Zone (BIS@FEBIRMN
RIFECIER).
RIEFHE

1. (RHEREEBEREUERTEEMRRLH) - 2011 ERETMHN

FRRAE

- BDERLEHRPESEPOER - 2011 FIBHEREIE2004-2008 At 5 57
EREANSPEARHIE —REMEENERV41 22 EBRENE
SESRMPWHMNFERAUF c 4128 BEPIBEESI I RIF24
B TF205300 250 IEFE BN ER PGV 1500 $8 5815 o
R2011EBBIIBAZTERESP LA LASERYNAHRNAS - BiB1603
BBGHRONEELSE o
EHBIY - 2IERIB16B21TBHERISRBBEZ 3 2REEFAIG

B3l o
2. BEERMSSZRITEAXRESHAE

2011E7H128 8K WERIKRBIRATBELURSEBAZEZERN
1TIRERSE SAERBIRARBESIFR -
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Representatives of local allied institutes including the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors, Hong Kong Institute of Planners and the Hong
Kong Institute of Landscape Architects also took part in the delegation.
The visit aimed to give a better understanding on competitive edges of
Hong Kong architects and architects’ practices to Qianhai counterparts
in order to explore collaboration between Qianhai and HKIA.

3. Meeting with Delegation of Shenzhen Nanshan Science &
Technology Institute
- Authorized by the Authority of Qian-hai Shenzhen-Hong Kong Modern
Service Industry Cooperation Zone of Shenzhen (FYIMBNEFBIRN
RIFESIEREIR), the said delegation visited HKIA on 4 August 2011
and met with President, Honorary Secretary and Board of Mainland
Affairs to touch upon the collaboration between Qianhai and HKIA.

RipBREBENE - BIESBASNESE  SBREISSNESBRIR
BEHHNRLSI T BREE °

ENSBESEBNEYDBIERSERENRRNERMOBSESE - ~GCanding with Registered Practices and Planning
RIS BRSSO SIS - Degattment

13-Oct-11

3. HEREUNMERSHBRAREEE
R SHEMERYIMeRBRAREESFREIE[METR
011E8R4BFEHSEBREMNBE  WHER  WERRAMBHLEES
BHRANBNEBRENSS 2BNSIFHE -
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Board of External Affairs (BExA)

1. Academic Exchange Committee
- Fontainebleau Schools Summer Programme 2011
The following 3 students from HKU would be granted with scholarship
from the Fontainebleau Schools to cover partial tuition fee for this year’s
Summer Program from 29 June — 5 August 2011 in Paris:-
i) Charles Lam
ii) Samantha Wan
i) Kenneth Sit

2.  ARCASIA /CAA Committee
- ARCASIA Awards 2011/2012
3 out of 20 past HKIA Annual Awards winning projects which were
nominated to ARCASIA Awards 2011/2012 on 15 June 2011 namely Villa
Amanzi, EcoPark Administration Building and 1881 Heritage, won the
ARCASIA Awards 2011/2012 as announced in the ARCASIA Forum 16 in
Danang on 16 August 2011.

SN

—_

BMREREES
2011 EEERS B2 REHRZ
MRIBEBRABELESEZERAOELERIBHNESE - BLUSZUR
68298 Z8A5BEZENERRIZILDEE o
i) Charles Lam
ii) SamanthaWan

iii) Kenneth Sit
Gathering with Registered Practices and Lands
Department

17-Oct-11 2. DNEREMHE/ REFEEMPZEESZ

DMEREENFHE2E2011/2012
R2011EF8B16BEIRBE16BMEEENHBHIBL - F0ESBRE
2SI BEREFEPHMBER-Ananzi BIE « BREITEHEA018813&
b - FEAEEE2011/201 25 MR EREMI R ©

Kong Voluhteer Award
Ceremony
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Community Development Committee

- Development of Teaching Kit for the appreciation of architecture in
secondary school curriculum

In collaboration with the Community Project Workshop (CPW) of
Faculty of Architecture of HKU, HK$2,445,900 was granted by Create
Hong Kong in executing the captioned project. CDC would oversee and
provide professional advices for setting up of the curriculum content and
support the training sessions for teachers at the later stage of the project
The 4th Hong Kong Volunteer Award

The Involve in Design, Empower with Action (IDEA) Project, winner of
HKIA Young Architects Project Fund 2010, was nominated to the 4th
Hong Kong Volunteer Award.

Give a Day Get a Disney Day

Members who have fulfilled 8 hours of volunteer services since May 2011
were encouraged to apply to the captioned campaign for redemption of
a one-day complimentary admission ticket to Hong Kong Disneyland via
HKIA on first-come-first-served basis while stock last until 31 December
20171.

Overseas Excursion Committee

Upon the deadline for call for sign up on 27 July 2011, 21 participants
registered to the excursion to Southern India from 29 September —

9 October 2011.

ERRIREES
PBHIZZRB38
LEMEBARBRELRMEIAES TIEHSIERE PSR 2 2ES5)
B o WERERIREEBE T2, 445, 00BN IE o T REIRITEREZES
REEEE  ARNEREATRHEERR @ EIRERIMAIENSIIR
FRfRfseeE -
FEOESBHEEETE
0105BREMNBSSTRENSEEDEMER - "SMEB5T - Y217
B}  SRESEENBSRERIES -
BTRERTITE
BRI TSN SRRFNEEB2011Fo AR EBEghmete—
BRENISS - SRISKE  BETEZR20115F128318

BINSEEEES

Z2011F7H2718 58 RB BB - HINEI21IIERBE102011F98298-10
RIBHENErREEREE -

BENH IR =REHTERES
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5. International Union of Architects (UIA) Committee
UIA2011 TOKYO World Congress
-7 members would attend the Congress:-
i) Dominic Lam — President (HKIA official delegate)
i) Marvin Chen — BEdA Chairman (HKIA official delegate)
i) Leslie Lu — BExA Chairman (HKIA official delegate)
iv) Joseph Kwan — UIA Region IV Work Programme “Architecture for All"
Director
v) Stephen Ho - UIA Committee Chairman
vi) Gidget Lun — UIA Committee Member
vii) Wallace Chang — UIA Committee Member

6. 12th Venice Biennale International Architecture Exhibition -
Hong Kong Exhibition
The closing event was held on 25 June 2011 which was well received. Ms.
Bonny Wong and Mr. Sin Chung Kai attended the Closing Forum on behalf
of West Kowloon Cultural District Authority.

NS E=S

KA ag;@onboatTeam Annual Dinner 5. BfRf2EMHEERE2

22,0ce11 0 RREERZEMHEAE

, © UFTIISBHRE IAE

) BRMCE- (SBRRMBSESNE)
i) HESHHBEREAL (SBRREMNSEELHNE)
i) INFBHHBEREN (SBERMBSEHNR)
iv) BIFFZEEMBEEEOE (EARRE) TR EE IR
V) BREREIHEEESERIRE
v) BRERETHEZETMEMRZ
vii) BIFRE2RETH S ZE T MELIRIS

6. FtT_EREHERZEETR-FTERE
EIRIGENR201 1 FTR20BREE - BNRNILBEIERNAEK  BEERY
TREPRELELREEARRIE
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Board of Internal Affairs (BIA)

7

1. New Members Welcoming Party
Held in the evening of 27 July 2011 at Craigengower Cricket Club.
Attended by over 60 new Members.
36 new Members expressed interest in joining HKIA's sports teams and
other committees of HKIA.

Sauat v
TS\
A“ ’Q‘\‘ =X

N

2.  55th Anniversary Ball
To be held in the evening of 5 November 2011 at Convention Hall, Hong
Kong Convention & Exhibition Centre.
For details of the HKIA 55th Anniversary celebration series, please visit
HKIA website.

Xossceprd

3. HKIA Sports Teams Corporate Sponsorship
To raise funds for HKIA's sports teams to participate in more activities and
promote their performances.
6 Registered Practices kindly offers sponsorship of $120,000 ($20,000 x 6)
for the year of 2011-2012.

RESES ST
1. BEDIRY
- 20115 T A2T B ERERNEAR G RIBDIRY °

ERHABO0DIHEELE -
HP3HEEE TN N\ESEEZRNSESEHEFNHMEESZ -

2. SHEAFEHEE
- BEEEMSwssEEEREER2011E11 858 (BEN) BSE23ER
Bh/MNRIT o
RSO B EBHMRYNEENGIE - ARLEBBRIEE o

3. BEEEMEZENEEREMNEHAEL
RERSEEZENBSEDEFEESNIMPEBEERIR - BEMIIE
EREZRMDSHIMETERUARNESERITEDEROVEF
BERATIEER2011-2012FERHUEHBIE 1 2EEENER 6K
FESHMSIBBE2EEILL) -

» L s 3 |
@ The Hong Kong

7

o An Evoldtion of Human

- Kai Tak River

il
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4. HKIA First Sports Day
Date: 21 April 2012, Saturday
All members and Registered Practices are invited to participate in the
event.

5. HKIA website non-flash version
To facilitate browsing HKIA website with all kinds of web-surfing devices.
The non-flash version is finished in August 2011 and in use now.

6. HKIA Journal Issue 62 - New Working Environments
Members are invited to contribute their articles on the topic “New
Working Environments”.
Submission deadline: 15 October 2011.

7. Quality Building Award 2012
Theme: Building Excellence for the Future.
Members are invited to nominate projects to the award.
Nomination deadline: 14 October 2011.

4. BEEEMNISZEEEIHH

B : 201248218 (B877)
BOMEEENNTEERBSN

5. BHEEREISEZEE-IFEEMRE
SRS ER-IFBERT SHELRRASER LREANESERR
ENMESHE
FEENBRRAT2011F8 81 B TR IR N ER o

6. BEREEENSTO2HISH-MTIFRIR
IBEGEEENMBA T LFRE, (VE62HSRME
IO : 20115108158

7. 2012BEEEXE
R MR AR
BNEERTIRESE
IRBELLGE : 20115108148
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Special Projects

1. Hong Kong-Shenzhen Bi-city Biennale of Urbanization and

Architecture 2011

CreateSmart Initiative funding support
As approved on 5 July 2011, HK$5.493M would be funded by
CreateSmart Initiative for the project.

Appointment of Curator
Chief Curators: Gene King and Anderson Lee
Co-Curators: Julia Lau, Tris Kee

Exhibition schedule and venue
The exhibition aimed to be held from mid February to late April 2012 in
Hong Kong Heritage Discovery Centre and part of the Kowloon Park,
Tsim Sha Tsui

HFIRIEE

1. 200 - BBWH,/ ERENETFR

PRI SR BT
FE201FTRBHE - REESERIITHEIN "RIREE AR
FBEES. 493 ©

EoREREA
BEA - X6 TR
BIEREA © BIXE ~ iR

RERE RIS
FEBHE2012F28 P RABEASBXMERAEBN SOV IBNEBAEET -

M
Wga\'
Daniel CHI, FHKIA
HKIA Honorary Secretary
EEREMBSHRHWER
RIS segnssres
8 September 2011
20119388
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L —CPD v"m‘nar:‘ Kings Cross Central - The vision
‘ ara/eality of a new international urban quarter
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The Annual General Meeting 2011
Honorary Secretary Report
15 December 2011

Board of Practices (BP)

Dialogues with Planning Department, Lands Department and
Buildings Department

Two informal gatherings with Planning Department and Lands
Department were held on 13 and 17 October respectively for direct
dialogues and discussions with our Registered Practices (RPs) on issues
such as applications to TPB / submissions and approvals by Lands
Department.

25 and 20 representatives of RPs have showed up respectively. BP
expects to hold such gatherings each 6 months to ensure a continuity of
communication between the government and RPs.

Another gathering with Buildings Department for discussions on
submission and approval of plans will be held on 8 December.

2. CPD Program on Common Pitfalls - Architect’s Responsibility

The CPD program jointly organized by HKIA and ARB on Common
Pitfalls — Architect’s Responsibility under the Building Ordinance, HKIA
& ARB Code of Professional Conduct held on 11 October 2011 was well-
received. Over 130 Members have attended the seminar.

01N FRAFAERHUWERES
20115128158

eSS SR
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Business Promotion Committee E-newsletter

- The first issue of the e-newsletter Architectural News on the theme of
"Green and Sustainability" has been published.

This e-newsletter showcasing recent projects of RPs reaches 5500 non-
HKIA stakeholders via email.

The next issue would be on the theme of “Interior Design” and was
expected to be issued in late December.

BIM Taskforce Report

The BIM Taskforce has prepared a report touching on the definition of
BIM and its implications on various architectural phases.

Upon further modification, this report would be reported to RPs as
guidelines.

HKIA Directory of Architectural Practices 2012

As the Directory forms an effective channel for the promotion of RPs,
it will continue to be published in 2012. As former years, the Directory
would be published in English and traditional Chinese.

To facilitate interested parties in the Mainland, apart from the PDF copies
in English and traditional Chinese, PDF copies in English and simplified
Chinese will also be uploaded onto the HKIA website this year.

%Tﬁ}ﬁﬁzia%%%i&’
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Board of Local Affairs (BLA)

1.  Submission of Written Views / Response to Local Affairs
The Institute delivered the following views regarding various local affairs
listed below :
Letter to the Secretary for Development to further reflecting the
Institute’ views on the requirements of proof of ownership for building
plan applications and validity for modifications and exemptions on 15
September 2011.
Written submission to respond to the public consultation on the
arrangement for filling the LegCo vacancies was submitted to
Constitutional and Mainland Affairs Bureau on 20 September 2011.
Press release to respond to the 2011-2012 Policy Address on 12 October
2011,
Written submission to respond to WKCD stage 3 public engagement on
proposed development plan submitted to WKCD Authority on 28
October 2011.
Written submission to comment on the recommendations of the
consultancy study on review of indoor air quality management in Hong
BT , Kong sent to Environmental Protection Department on 31 October 2011.
~~CPD Seminar: Permaculture - A Bottom - up - Written submission to respond to the public consultation on the
. Design Approach for Building an Eco-City o . . ) ) .
restriction of sale of energy-inefficient incandescent light bulbs delivered
to Environment Bureau on 4 November 2011.
Written submission to respond to the public engagement exercise on
Combating Climate Change : Energy Saving and Carbon Emission
Reduction in Buildings delivered to the Council for Sustainable
Development on 4 November 2011.

N8 T

1. AMEHRERXEEER/OERMEFR
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Press release to respond to the public consultation on the proposed
legislation to regulate the sale of first-hand residential properties on 29
November 2011.

Written submission to respond to the stage 1T community engagement
on planning study on future land use at Anderson Road quarry —
feasibility study on 30 November 2011.

2. Nominations

2. 1B

Mr WU Pak Lai was nominated to Hong Kong Accreditation Service to
serve on the Accreditation Advisory Board Working Party on Construction
Materials Testing on 14 October 2011.

Mrs CHENG CHAN Ching Ying Elizabeth was nominated by Council to
West Kowloon Cultural District Authority to represent in the Organizing
Committee on Design Competitions for WKCD Projects on 14 October
2011,

Four members and Authorized Persons, including Mr CHAN Kok Lin
Roger, Ms NG Yuen Ching Alice, Mr LAU Kam Sing Dickie, Mr TANG Wai
Man Tony, were nominated to Buildings Department to serve on the
Building Safety Loan Scheme Vetting Committee on 15 November 2011.

Mr KAN Cho Yau was nominated to Buildings Department to serve on
the Technical Committee on Minor Works on 15 November 2011.

R201MFE1B298 » SLIRE—FTETYEEEZSEHINTRE - B
HRFERR -
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3. Events/Projects

The following events / projects organized by BLA and its various Committees

were completed :

- HKIA members’ Opinion Survey on Public Consultation on Arrangement
for Filling LegCo Vacancies between 2 and 16 September 2011
CPD Seminar on “Your Trash Our Green Building Materials” on
16 September 2011
Participation in Eco Expo Asia 2011 by holding HKIA/PGBC joint booth
between 26 and 29 October 2011
Exhibition of International Design Ideas Competition for Liantang /
Heung Yuen Wai Boundary Control Point Passenger Terminal Building at
HKIA premises between 6 and 14 October 2011
CPD Seminar on “Retaining, Recycling and Reusing Heritage : Lessons
from the UNESCO Heritage Conservation Awards Programme 2000-2011"
on 7 October 2011
Green Tour 2011 and participation in World Sustainable Building
Conference 2011 between 7 and 22 October 2011
HKIA briefing session on the new Code of Practice for Fire Safety in
Buildings on 31 October 2011
CPD Seminar on permaculture on 14 November 2011

A i'h/aqmg Session for CPD Shenzhen Factory - Guangzhou field trip on adaptive reuse projects between 18 and 20
‘,ﬁ/ Shui Wo November 2011

Participation in the exhibition of 9th Ministers Forum on Infrastructure
Development in Asia Pacific Region between 15 and 16 December 2011

3. &#F/IEB
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Board of Educational Affairs (BEdA)

1. Professional Assessment Committee (PAC)

- 43 out of 61 candidates passed the second PA2010 Interview on 17
September.
PA2011 Papers 1 to 7 will be held during 22-25 November and
29 November — 1 December 2011.
By deadline on 1 November 2011, 236 candidates who plan to take
PA2012 had nominated their Advisers and Office Supervisors.
The briefing sessions on new initiatives of PA on 20 and 27 September
were attended by over 200 candidates and a small number of Advisers
and Office Supervisors.
PA2012 — 1st quarter (Papers 3, 4 and 5) is now open for registration
until 31 December 2011. A list of open-book reference was posted on
HKIA website.

HAEEHT

1. SXNTEES [ PD, ‘é/r/ninar on New Challenges - from
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2. Contmumg Professional Development Committee (CPDC)
CPD Declaration Forms from 62 members (2%) were selected for random
checking and members were asked to submit the CPD Record Forms
which were found in order.
177 out of 3278 members did not submit their CPD Declaration Form
2010. Out of 3101 members who submitted the form, 29 members did
not satisfy the minimum CPD requirement in 2010.
Deadline for submission of CPD Declaration Form 2011 on 31 December
2011
Starting from 1 January 2012, enrolment fee for CPD seminars will be
increased from HKS$50 to HKS80 for members while from HK$150 to
HK$180 for non-members.
Highlights of CPD events :
28 Oct — Seminar on “An Evolution of Human Landscape — Kai Tak River”
by Prof. Wallace Chang
3 Nov — Seminar on Kings Cross Central — The vision and reality of a new
international urban quarter for London by Dr. Chris Gossop
22 Nov — Seminar on New Challenges - from Community Engagement
to Design for Sustainability and Changes by Prof. Bernard Lim
5 Dec - Seminar on "Activators”by Jurgen Mayer H
6 Dec — Hong Kong - The Golden 5 Years (2010-2014) and the Decline
that may follow by Franklin Lam
17 Dec - Intensive CPD Seminar “ Update on Local Practice Issues that
Architects should know”

2. H%g% EEEES
62BEBE (2%) NIFEEFREBPRFLERIDE - BINPHIBEMER
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Education Development & Accreditation Committee (EDAC)
Application fee for validation and revalidation of architectural

programmes at HK$310,000 and HK$290,000 respectively was endorsed

by the Council.
Advisory Visit to Chu Hai College is scheduled for 22-23 December 2011.

Membership Admission Committee (MAC)
68 out of 81 Student Members have graduated in 2010/2011 academic
year. Their membership was terminated and they were invited to join

Graduate Membership.

Education & Careers Promotion Working Group
The tea gathering session with secondary schools career masters was

5.
organized on 10 September to promote architectural education and
careers prospects of architects to their students. It was attended by 16

career masters from 13 secondary schools.

HEERKNTISEEEE
KIESEBE  RRSNFTIRESHIRONPHFEDBIERI0, 000%

3.
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KA l/hai'rng with Architectural Students'
Association, A.S, HKUSU

— 28-Nov-11
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Board of Mainland Affairs (BMA)

1. CEPA 2011 Guangdong Legislation Exam for HK architects who
have had attained PRC Class | Architect Qualification
- CEPA legal examination 2011 organized by the Department of Housing

and Urban-Rural Development of Guangdong province ("Guangdong
counterparts”) was held on 24 September 2011 in Guangzhou.
169 HKIA members who have had attained PRC Class | Architect
Qualification took the exam and all of them got a straight pass.
The 100 % passing rate has left a mark at the history of HKIA.
A Certificate Presentation Ceremony will be organized in late December
2011 before the Christmas Eve. Senior officials of Development Bureau
and Guangdong counterparts will be invited as the guests to award
certificates. Details to be informed.
On 2 November 2011, HKIA representatives including President,
Honorary Secretary, Board of Mainland Affairs Chair Elizabeth Cheng
and CEPA Committee Chair Edward Shen had a meeting with
Development Bureau about CEPA issues, especially on the registration
for practices under the Guangdong Pilot Scheme.
HKIA will continue to work with the Government and Mainland
counterparts to realize members'aspiration in registration for practice on
the Mainland.

| d [ 7= '
/]‘ K7/
LAkC 75 Young Professionals Networking Party
1-Dec-11
> 7

/

RS FEE

1. HSPEARHKNE—RFIMEEMSBOUBTEBREN (AMLESTE
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A
© DERSEBAMABEZRE ( "EREOE[, ) EHWEICEPA 20115
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IDRAIFIE S EEEIE o
BOBNBEEREESEEREMSESEL LB TR —H -
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Board of External Affairs (BExA)

1.

2.

3.

Fontainebleau Schools Summer Programme 2011 Sharing
Session
- The following 3 students from HKU were granted with scholarship from
the Fontainebleau Schools to cover partial tuition fee for this year’s
Summer Program from 29 June - 5 August 2011 in Paris:-
i) Charles Lam
i) Samantha Wan
i) Kenneth Sit
The 3 students delivered a CPD sharing session on 9 December 2011
at HKIA premises and contributed an article for inclusion in the 3rd issue
of HKIA Journal in 2011 to share their valuable experiences with
members.

ARCASIA Committee on Social Responsibility
Joseph Kwan, Director of UIA Region IV Work Programme “Architecture
for All', was elected by the ARCASIA Council to be the first Chairman of
ARCASIA Committee on Social Responsibility (ACSR) at the 32nd ARCASIA
Council meeting on 16 August 2011 in Danang, Vietnam.

CoIIaboratlon with Heep Hong Society
In collaboration with Heep Hong Society, volunteers would be recruited
to join the Community Development Committee to organize a series of
events such as ‘building and geometry’, ‘pebble painting” and ‘fence
painting’ at the new centre, with the kids from October 2011 to March
2012.

INFEHT

2011&73&@5? BREMFEDEE
DTR3REBR2E2LEERNCELRBENELES  BLSZM2011568
298%8858 B,J\EHHD%&BTBQEQE °

i) Charles Lam

ii) Samantha Wan

i) Kenneth Sit
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Post-tour Tea Gathering and Sharing Session

- 18 participants departed for India on 29 September 2011 and returned
on 9 October 2011. A post-tour gathering and sharing session would
be organized the Overseas Excursion Committee. Participants would
contribute an article in the forthcoming HKIA Journal to share their
valuable experiences.

UIA2011 TOKYO World Congress
HKIA Delegation
11 members attended the Congress:-
i) Dominic Lam — President (HKIA official delegate)
i) Marvin Chen — BEdA Chairman (HKIA official delegate)
i) Leslie Lu — BExA Chairman (HKIA official delegate)
iv) Joseph Kwan — UIA Region IV Work Programme “Architecture for All"
Director
v) Stephen Ho - UIA Committee Chairman
vi) Gidget Lun — UIA Committee Member
vii) Wallace Chang — UIA Committee Member
viii) Thomas Cheung — ARCASIA/CAA Committee Chairman
ix) Ada Hui — HKIA member
x) Chen Yue - Official student delegate from CUHK
xi) Alice Fung — Official student delegate from CUHK
UIA World Congress 2017
Seoul would be hosting the 26th World Congress of Architecture in 2017.
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6.

6.

Teaching Kit (CSI Project - Architecture in Hong Kong: Teaching
Kit for the Appreciation of Architecture in Secondary School
Curriculum)

&b

HK$2,445,900 has been granted by Create Hong Kong for HKIA to deliver
the project.

HKIA has commissioned the Community Project Workshop (CPW), under
the Faculty of Architecture of HKU, to execute the project.

A Taskforce composed of Dr. Wong Wah Sang (Project Director of
Teaching Kit), Leslie Lu (BExA Chair), Marvin Chen (BEdA Chair) and Billy
Chan (Community Development Committee Chair) has been formed to
oversee and monitor the project.

Several consultation meetings have been organized to collect the ideas
from in-served teachers in secondary schools and EdB specialists
between July to November 2011

The project was aimed to be accomplished by early 2013

BN EEES|E
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r on Hong Kong - The Golden 5 Years
and the Decline that may follow
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Board of Internal Affairs (BIA)
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1. HKIA 55th Anniversary Ball
-+ Held in the evening of 5 November 2011 at Hong Kong Convention and
Exhibition Centre.
Attended by about 500 guests, members and collaborators.
Mr. Stephen Lam, Chief Secretary for Administration of the HKSAR, was
the Guest of Honour.

o 1

2. HKIA Annual Awards 2011
Nomination is now open.
Nomination deadline: 28 December 2011.

gl

3. Sharing Session with HKU architectural students
- Held in the evening of 29 November 2011.
Introduced HKIA background, structure and activities to students.
Introduced prospective career path after their completion of
architectural studies.
CUHK sharing session would be made in January 2012.

1T K/
f’uil/,/pgspepartment Gathering
8-Dec-11
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4. HKIA Dragon Boat Team
The team took part in the CPA Cup — National Day Celebration Dragon
Boat Invitational Race 2011,
The team won champion of the Diamond Cup.

5. HKCPS Young Member Networking Event Organizing Committee
- Drink Party
Held in the evening of 1 December 2011 at the HYDE, 2/F, 1 Lyndhurst
Terrance, Lyndhurst Tower, Central, Hong Kong.
Members of 11 professional institutes participated in this mingling party.

6. HKIA Membership Card

- Starting from 1 January 2012, any members wish the Institute to re-issue
membership card, $50 administrative fee will be charged.
Any members request the Institute to urgently issue membership card,
$50 administrative fee will be charged. At the same time, the Institute
will provide members concerned with a letter to certify they have
completed the HKIA's self-study Construction Industry Safety Training
(CIST) course and issued with Green Card upon request.

4. BBEEMBBEEME
- BEE/BRSISHEPCEECAFEMEFR - SBIEEINER
201
BERBRRSHLETE SEHEOERE ©
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Brain-storming Session for HKIA Council
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L Acs 1. HKIA 55th Anniversary Conference
- Date: Saturday, 5 November 2011
Time: 9:00am - 5:00pm
Venue: Theatre 1, Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre

A ; | & Guest of Honour: The Hon Donald Tsang, GBS, GBM, JP,
\I?,( o = v N ; , The Chief Executive of HKSARG
A ¢ : ~ No. of attendance: 570

f
Yy

s
C

jr=

/;'iii'iu S — \ s - Name of Speakers

‘gk'g R B S 1K - Mrs. Carrie Lam

= - Mr.Wang Peng

1 - Mr. Daniel Libeskind

- Dr.Ken Yeang

- Mr.Rocco S KYim

- Mr. Paul Katz

- Ms. EvaCheng

- Mr.Rem Koolhaas's video
- Mr. Brian Lee

s e . - Mr.Keith Griffiths
_—Tleegng with Xinjiang delegation
72—6077'

USIZAEIS

1. SEEEMESSAERE
BER : 201111858 (28377)
FFRS - 479 00-R4F5 : 00
et - BEBBFRED D 126
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HFEE : 5T0A
BE
- MEB#iL L
- ERSGeHE
- Daniel Libeskind4t4
- ISR

‘-Jir)o'fes jonal Institute Workshop on Planning
~ Study/én Future Land Use at Anderson Road - Paul Katzifo4E
//g{% L\ - et

f,cf”/ / - Rem Koolhaas5cAEB0THER
= - Brian Leeft&

- Keith Griffiths#s4
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Name of Moderators and Panelist :

Morning session

- Theme: Humanism as the connector of urbanism in the Megalopolis
Moderator: Mr. Robert Lam

Panelists

- Prof KSWong

- Mr. Barry Cheung

- Mr. Choi Wun Hing Donald

- Prof. David Lung

Afternoon session

- Theme: Movement and Connectivity as generators of activities in a
dense urban setting of our Megalopolis

Moderator: Ms. Ada Fung

Panelists

- The Hon. Patrick Lau

- Ir.Dr. Andrew K C Chan

- Dr.The Hon Marvin Cheung Kin-tung

- Prof Puay-peng Ho

Website: http://55th.hkiaconference.net/
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HKIA one-day CPD Seminar - Update on Local
Practice Issues that ARCHITECTS should know
17-Dec-11
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2. HKIA Architecture Week- Students’ visit

Period: 3 October — 4 November 2011

Number of students: 456 from 24 schools

Number of visits: 24 Visits made to the Architectural Services
Department, Housing Authority, Registered Practices and Department of
Architecture of The University of Hong Kong and The Chinese University
of Hong Kong

3. HKIA 55th Anniversary Photographic competition

Period: 3 October - 31 October 2011

Theme: Our Architecture and City

Open Category: 58 Submissions

Student Category: 25 Submissions

Jury Meeting: On 2 November 2011 evening at HKIA
Results: Posted on 7 November 2011 at www.hkia.net

4. Hong Kong-Shenzhen Bi-city Biennale of Urbanism and

chitecture 2011 (HK/SZ 2011)
Strategic Partners & Supporting Organizations
As at 25 November 2011, Hong Kong-Shenzhen 2011 acquired support
from 3 Strategic Partners and 14 Supporting Organizations
Press Conference
HKSZ 2011 Press Conference was held on 9 November 2011 at Hong
Kong Heritage Discovery Centre.
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Shenzhen Opening Ceremony

- 8December 2011 evening

- Exhibition Period: 7 December 2011 — 18 February 2012

Hong Kong Opening Ceremony

With the theme, “Tri-ciprocal Cities: The Time, The Place, The People” (=

A8 SR - 22/ - ARD)’, the official Opening Ceremony is scheduled

for 16 February 2012. Mr. Stephen Lam, Chief Secretary for

Administration of HKSAR will be the Officiating Guest.

HKSZ 2011 Online Promotion

The following websites & social media pages have been launched in

November 2011:

- Official Website: http://hkszbiennale.org

- Twitter Page: http://twittercom/thehkszbiennale

- Weibo Page: http://weibo.com/hkszbiennale

- Facebook: https://www.facebook.com/pages/2011-Hong-Kong-
Shenzhen-Bi-City-Biennale-of-Urbanism-Architecture/
277018645672475

IFEES

- 201112388 ER

- BB 2011E12878-2012828188

&BHES

TER (=M : 5[ - 224 - AB) IESRIEER2012428
1688y - SEREBRNIHIIEMRBILERTIBRE °
2011 BBRYIEFRIR HHEE

R2011E 11 BRA M RIS 2IREEE :

- B#3 : http://hkszbiennale.org

- Twitter #88: http://twitter.com/thehkszbiennale

- ISR  hitp//weibo.com/hkszbiennale

- BE : bhttps//www.facebook.com/pages/2011-Hong-Kong- HKIA CEPA Legal Exam Certificate Presentation
Shenzhen-Bi-City-Biennale-of-Urbanism-Architecture/ gfrgmolnly
e

277018645672475
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Daniel CHI, FHKIA

HKIA Honorary Secretary
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RIFNS BRENEEEFEE
2 December 2011
201112828
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COUNCIL'S REPORT

The Council have pleasure in present their annual report and the audited financial statements of the Group and of the Institute
for the year ended 31 March 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Institute are holding of meetings, lectures, examinations, exhibitions and competitions and similar
activities. The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2011 are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on page 6 of the annual report.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Institute during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in reserves on page 7 of the annual report and note 18 to the financial statements, respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group and of the Institute during the year are set out in
note 11 to the financial statements.
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COUNCIL AND OFFICE BEARERS

The council and office bearers of the Institute during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Mr. Lam Kwong Ki, Dominic
Ms. Fung Yin Suen, Ada

Mr. Lam Ping Hong, Robert
Ms. Chow Wai Lee

Mr. Wong Kam Sing

Mr. Tang Wai Man, Tony

Mr. Lok Man Fai, Felix

Mr. Chi Wuh Cherng, Daniel
Prof. Chan Hon Wan, Edwin
Mr. Choi Kam Lung, Franky
Mr. Ho Man Yiu, Ivan

Mr. Hui Man Bock, Bernard
Miss Kam Heung Wah, Briena

Ms. Lau Man Kwan, Julia

Ms. Leung So Wan, Susan

(President)

(Effected on 1 January 2011)
(Vice President)

(Effected on 1 January 2011)
(Vice President)

(Effected on 1 January 2011)
(Vice President)

(Expired on 31 December 2010)
(Vice President)

(Expired on 31 December 2010)
(Honorary Treasurer)

(Effected on 1 January 2011)
(Honorary Treasurer)

(Expired on 31 December 2010)
(Honorary Secretary)

(Effected on 1 January 2011)
(Council Member)

(Council Member)

(Council Member)

(Expired on 31 December 2010)
(Council Member)

(Council Member)

(Council Member)

(Expired on 31 December 2010)
(Council Member)

ESTRIAEFBA
FEFBRPATREENRBEFRSOBEZFEAR -

MICTHSEE
BEBUL
MRERITE
[BEt-ten
&EIRESKE
ElES S e
FE B TE
BREEHIR
B e
X EEwRE
XIS E
HEELT
BBut
RREULTLT
DRUABHRAE (25)

80 B0 B g
08 08) 08) 08 %m
an o an

B0l [0l ol ol

=

20
20

REAREI=ESED)
REAREI=ESED)
REAREI=ESED)
HAZE20105E128318)
HAZE20105E128318)
REAREI=ESED)
FHAZE20105E128318)
2011 B1B8ED)

20
(=
(=
20
f

o~~~ o~~~ o~ —

(fFEAZ20105E128318)

(fFEAZ20105E128318)

(fFEAZ20105E128318)

The Hong Kong Institute of Architects - Annual Report 2011

01 FEESBERMBSUHHRK
Y

Mr. Lush Alexander

Ms. So Ching
Ms. Sun Polly

Mr.Tam Tin Fong, Martin
Mr. Tang Wai Kin

Ms. Wai Chui Chi, Rosman

Mr. Yu Franklin

Mrs. Cheng Chan Ching Ying, Elizabeth
Mr. Chen Marvin

Mr. Tseng Yen Wei, William

Mr. Lu Lam, Leslie

Mr. Lu Hing Yiu, Bryant

Ms. Kwong Sum Yee, Anna
Dr. Lu Yuen Cheung, Ronald

(Council Member)
(Expired on 31 December 2010)
(Council Member)
(Council Member)
(Expired on 31 December 2010)
(Council Member)
(Council Member)
(Expired on 31 December 2010)
(Council Member)
(Council Member)
(Council Member)
(Effected on 1 January 2011)
(Council Member)
(Effected on 1 January 2011)
(Council Member)

(Effected on 1 January 2011)
(Council Member)

(Effected on 1 January 2011)
(Council Member)

(Effected on 1 January 2011)
(Immediate Past President)
(Immediate Past President)
(Expired on 31 December 2010)
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Architects / Financial Statment 2011

HONORARY AUDITORS

The honorary auditors of the Institute during the year and up to the date of this report were:
Mr. Pau Shiu Hung
Mr. Ling Chi Kong, Thomas

COUNCIL'S INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Institute or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a council of the Institute had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or existed during the year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events occurring after the reporting date are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by Katon CPA Limited who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment.
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On behalf of the Council
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STATEMENT BY THE HONORARY AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF

THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS

(Registered under the Hong Kong Institute of Architects Incorporation Ordinance)
We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of the Hong Kong Institute of Architects together with the Council's

and the Auditor's reports for the year ended 31 March 2011 and confirm that, in accordance with the Rule 48 of "The Rules of
the Institute", we approve the financial statements and reports referred to above.
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Pau Shiu Hung 88435 4E Ling Chi Kong, Thomas #=fl5c4
Honorary Auditor ZEF5IZEEM Honorary Auditor ZEF5ZE180

Hong Kong, &/&

15 September 2011
2011598158
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS

(Registered under the Hong Kong Institute of Architects Incorporation Ordinance)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Institute of Architects (the "Institute") and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group") set out on pages 6 to 35, which comprise the consolidated and Institute
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2011, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in reserves and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Council's responsibility for the financial statements

The council of the Institute are responsible for maintaining proper accounts and the preparation of annual consolidated
financial statement pursuant to the Hong Kong Institute of Architects Incorporation Ordinance, and the true and fair
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Rule 64 of "The Rules of the Institute" and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Auditor's Responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and true and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the council, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Limitation of audit scope

Because of the absence of audited accounts of the associate, the Group had not adopted the equity method of accounting
for the associate as required by "Investments in associates" (HKAS 28). The financial effects of this departure could not be
quantified.

Qualified Opinion

Except for the matters set out above, in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of the affairs of the Institute and of the Group as at 31 March 2011 and of the Group's surplus and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Hong Kong Institute of Architects Incorporation Ordinance.
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Katon CPA Limited ZFEIREETEMTBRAT

Certified Public Accountants #ZE&5tEM

Hong Kong, 15 September 2011 &/ » 2011598158
Lee Kit Wah Z{#z

Practising Certificate number P1453 #\3£58E4R3E P1453
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Y= eI AT
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011 BiIZ_ZB——F=B=+—B1-FE

2011 2010
Notes P&t HKS & #E HKS s
Turnover Z#%5 4 14,371,763 17,650,189
Costs fiZ
Functions costs GBI 5 (4,283,303)  (7,375,687)
Lecture and examination costs &E&# kB4 (909,535) (819,308)
Publication costs FI#IRA (297,041) (308,442)
Gross profit EF 8,881,884 9,146,752
Other revenue E#BIKA 4 650,590 3,040,199
Less i#l: Employment costs {@FRRA 6 (4,274,335)  (3,806,803)
Other operating and administrative expenses EiEERITIZH 8 (3,233,450)  (2,646,950)
Surplus before taxation BRIREIZRER 2,024,689 5,733,198
Less i@l: Taxation I8
Hong Kong Profits Tax SEFER 9 (44,287) (74,142)
Deferred taxation JEIEFRIE 9 42,690 (2,531)
Surplus after taxation FR{&2%RER _ 2023092 5656525
Other comprehensive income EfhZ@Z/ (H18)
Net gain on revaluation of available-for-sale investments S f{ HEIREEHFINZ/ (B518) 646,663 1,111,451
Other comprehensive income for the year SEEEMEEINZS/ (#I18) . 646663 1111451
Total comprehensive income for the year E=E @I HB5E 2,669,755 6,767,976
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES

ino iR EEEIR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011 BZ_&——F=B=+—HIFE

At 1 April 2009 R—ZEZNFNF—H

Surplus for the year FE$&ER

Other comprehensive income for the year
FEEMZELE

Total comprehensive income for the year
FEZBEUNERRLE

Transfer from retained surplus to sinking fund
FERGFEETEERES

General reserves transfer to surplus or deficit

AR R \EIE/ (F) )

At 31 March 2010 R—E—=F=H=+—H

Surplus for the year FE$&ER

Other comprehensive income for the year
FEEMZELE

Total comprehensive income for the year
FEZBEUINERLE

Transfer from retained surplus to sinking fund
FERGFEETEERES

Sinking fund used in refurbishment
EEESAREGHN T

General reserves transfer to surplus or deficit

AR R NI/ (7))

At 31 March 2011 R_E2—F=R=+—H

The Hong Kong Institute of Architects - Annual Report 2011

Investment

General  revaluation Sinking Retained
reserves reserves fund surplus Total
—RgfE SibiEE BEEE RERER i=E
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
o 818505 (436376 ________ 0 _ 297450646 30127775
0 0 0 5,656,525 5,656,525
0 1,111,451 0 0 1,111,451
0 1,111,451 0 5,656,525 6,767,976
0 0 50,000 (50,000) 0
(87,192) 0 0 0 (87,192)
o 87192 1001451 50000 | 5606525 6680784
731,313 675,075 50,000 35,352,171 36,808,559
0 0 0 2,023,092 2,023,092
0 646,663 0 0 646,663
0 646,663 0 2,023,092 2,669,755
0 0 50,000 (50,000) 0
0 0 (100,000) 100,000 0
(58,787) 0 0 0 (58,787)
_._(58787) 646663 ___(50000) 2073092 2610968
672,526 1,321,738 0 37425263 39,419,527




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
fne MBI ER

AS AT 31 MARCH 2011

R=Z——F=A=+-8

2011 2010
Notes Bt HKS s& s HKS s& s HKS &
ASSETS &E
Non-current assets FERENEE
Property, plant and equipment %%, MERBE 1" 443,104 10,732,184
Available-for-sale investments St 2 15E 14 8,321,738 7,675,075
8,764,842 18,407,259
Currentassets RB&EE
Inventories - Finished goods 5& - S8R 78,157 56,561
Trade and other receivables FEBRTNR EABFEIER 15 9,096,683 6,588,525
Tax recoverable QDR 29,855 0
Bank balances and cash $R1T R IR 565 16 26,645,832 12,665,147
35850527 19310233
TOTAL ASSETS &BE#EE 44,615,369 37,717,492
RESERVES AND LIABILITIES féfEREE
Members' funds EEEE
General reserves — &1 17 672,526 731,313
Investment revaluation reserves 13 & S{&EE(H 1,321,738 675,075
Sinking fund BEESE 0 50,000
Retained surplus RIERER 37,425,263 35,352,171
39419527 36808559
Non-current liabilities JERENEE
Obligations under finance leases MIBEHSEE 19 89,995 0
Deferred taxation JEXEFRIE 20 0 42,690
89,995 42,690
Current liabilities #&8&®& T
Other payables EAMBEIER 21 5,078,157 860,410
Obligations under finance leases RIBHE&E 19 27,690 348
Tax payable E#IFR18 0 5,485
5,105,847 866243
TOTAL RESERVES AND LIABILITIES ftiiREEiR%E 44,615,369 37,717,492

Approved by the Council on 15 September 2011.
REER-ZZ——FNAThBHIESE®A -

o/ . I

Lam Kwong Ki, Dominic Tang Wai Man, Tony
FOEH BIE
President @£ Honorary Treasurer E#58#FE
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R FEARER

AS AT 31 MARCH 2011

R_E——F=B=1+—8

Notes BfisF HKS it
ASSETS &&E
Non-current assets JERENEE
Property, plant and equipment 2 « =K 521 M 443,104
Investments in subsidiaries IRMIEBATIZE 12 5
Available-for-sale investments aJ{tH & 2158 14 8,321,738
Current assets RENEE
Inventories - Finished goods 5& - S8R 78,157
Trade and other receivables FEISBE 3R EL it FELKGR 15 9,006,742
Amounts due from subsidiaries MBS EEBRIE 12 1,555,101
Bank balances and cash $R1T R IR 565 16 13,680,390
TOTAL ASSETS &E228
RESERVES AND LIABILITIES fifeB1E&
Members' funds EEES
General reserves —ia (s 17 672,526
Investment revaluation reserves 3 & & 18 1,321,738
Sinking fund EB&&E% 18 0
Retained surplus Ri&EeH 18 25,901,131
Non-current liabilities JEFREIEE
Obligations under finance leases R B S&1& 19
Current liabilities FEI&1&
Other payables ELtBFE(IFR 21 5,072,157
Obligations under finance leases RIERE&E 19 27,690
TOTAL RESERVES AND LIABILITIES fféfaAaEiRsE
Approved by the Council on 15 September 2011.
KEER-_E—FNBTABDESEZEA -
QM&—-&M
Lam Kwong Ki, Dominic Tang Wai Man, Tony
MOETE BEX
President @ Honorary Treasurer EXREHEE
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2011
HKS &g

8,764,847

24,320,390

33,085,237

27,895,395

89,995

5,099,847

33,085,237

2010
HKS &g

332,184

2

7,675,075
___8007.261
56,561
6,333,029
1,508,927
10,572,253
18,470,770

26,478,031

731,313
675,075
50,000
24,310,405

25,766,793

710,890
348
711,238

26,478,031



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RORMERER

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
HE-_T-——F=A=1+-BILFE

2011 2010
HKS B HKS 8L
Operating activities f&&55&)
Cash from/(used in) operations [Note 22] #&£E8F713 (F15%) IR E (Mi5122) 3,368,393 (783,158)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EJ&8F)18 (79,627) (110,970)
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities ¥E&FENFTS (FTFE) RSP ___3.288766 ___(894,128)
Investing activities X&;EE)
Interest received 2RI & 1,534 2,176
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant ad equipment HEYIEE « MERZBPTKZFUE 10,920,406 0
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEE¥)2 ~ BB & 5216 (345,568) (270,026)
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities IX&;EEIFTS (FT5E) IREF2E _ 10576372 ___(267,850)
Financing activities FIZEE)
Interest paid 232+ (1,790) (4,133)
Obligations under finance leases FIERESE 138453 0
Repayments of obligations under finance leases RIEHESEEMR 21,116) (28,901)
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities RIE;EENFS (FTFE) IR FEE 115547 _ . (33,034)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents IRERIREHEBEIEI0 (HL) F2E 13,980,685 (1,195,012)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year FIZRERIFSHEEE 12,665,147 13,860,159
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year ER CIRERIREEEED 26,645,832 12,665,147
Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents IRERIRESHEEEEERDIT
Bank balances and cash BT RIR #5865 26,645,832 12,665,147
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSERERMYE

1 GENERAL
The Institute is registered under the Hong Kong Institute of Architects Incorporation Ordinance for the general
advancement of Civil Architecture and for promoting and facilitating the acquisition of the knowledge of the various Arts
and Sciences connected therewith.

The principal activities of the Institute are holding of meetings, lectures, examinations, exhibitions and competitions and
similar activities. The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

The address of its registered office is 19/F, 1 Hysan Avenue, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

2 THE ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
In the current year, the Group has applied all the new and revised Standards, Amendments and Interpretations issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA") that are relevant to its operations and effective
for annual period beginning on or after 1 April 2010. The new and revised Standards, Amendments and Interpretations
adopted in the current year are referred to as new and revised HKFRSs.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether these new
HKFRSs would have a material impact on its results of operations and financial position.

Other new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations, which are mandatory for the first time for the
financial year beginning 1 April 2010, are not currently relevant for the Group or do not have material impact on the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2011.

1
FBERE (SERENLELBED) 2M > SNASEREEFRES  DRERINLENEERESOBITRIN
B0 ©
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B2 EMNBRURSBINRERIEE 1 58 19 8-

2 R (EBHMBHRSZER)
RAFE » ARIRXNBEBESHEILB B ZPTENE RIEIZESTER B3] A REE - MXSEREERSEEIERR
“E2-TFONA BB - AEERMIIEIRIBETHER  B5TRERE (| DINREE " #1E5] RIKBSI S BUHIRS
B, ) o

FEBEREAYHRE PR TIERMEE RE MOV HIFT RACEETNERM BFIRSER - AEBIREFHSHFME
8l BETERIRBIRBERCZERENERRZTE - RHEHER « BEIERIRBIBEERIZRERZASHEAE
B EXERMBINELEARE -

HR M2 #51 28 ~ BE] A RERBBVAR_E—2FUE—BRBZYFTEEREN - BIRFNERRERTRIL
RANTIR-B——F=A=T—BOUFREENEATE -
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain properties
and financial instruments, which are measured at revalued amounts or fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards that have
significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in
the next year are discussed in note 27.

3 EAEEEER
(a) BTEEEA
FEUBRERDIRESEMHRSERE - SBYBRSHABEEESBYHRSHER  SBSFHERIRNGHM
ER  SETLBRNZESHEIREE (RIHRH)) 2BKMiRH

(b) MAFBERIR AR B ELE
HEUBRRDRELNABRERE  EMATESTEZYERETEMNTE (R ATESE ) RN W0TX
BETCRPIRRE -

RBLEFEEBYBRSEN ZUFREFEEIERBIFLFIE « [S5TREEER - MXFHE « G5RBRBEFEERZ
[ERKMPIRIEE  BIF » AR FHER - 32505t RBERDIRBETERREIEBBERZFER N OB
BEZSREMREAEEMEL - MSHRIBMEIEER BRIRENAMIRMELNEEREE ZREEMIFLS
SH2E% - BRI NE/RINGEEZ

FEBFHERATIFGST RABBHERRIFLES - SeHESTZEBWEREEH - AIRMSsHESTEENRRNEINESD - W%
IRESHOEHEEIREE MR MRHIR - RIBRISsHEs IR EH R AR HIREIESD

EMIE2TR - CEHAH TFENMHBRARIGSIEEATEMSINIRELEANRAERR  EEBREBUHRSHE
BIfFBEET
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Institute and entities controlled
by the Institute (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Institute has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All significant intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

(d) Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights.
The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

In the Institute's statement of financial position the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Institute on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

3 EXBEBER (18)
(OF r=p-=—
FEUBREBEASERENBLAT ZUHRE - WEKBIESSHEEHIZAROME  IS2SHRESREVHBRE
SEIERHVED - MRS PIERS -
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Associates
Associates are all entities over which the Institute has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.

Interests in associates are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of associates are accounted
for by the Institute on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

The equity method of accounting for the associates is not adopted as the accounts of associates are not available.
(f) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
values, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives at the following annual rates:

Leasehold improvements 20%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 20% - 25%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets
or, where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

3 EKXZETHGE (/&)
(e) BEENT
NI RIENABSHHEE AN E NMELEHIEOMEEEE  BEHEE20%Z50% S ZIEGIRSHE

FEBRBMENT 2R DIENRBFEDREBEIE - MENI2EEEFBBRE R © DR E BIFEUREUL
BN ©

BRRBHENTNERE - HHE LIV A RARIEIEE -

(f) Y05 ~ MUE Beaii
ME « BB RZBIENAEHRBITERRTREBEIIE

YE - BERJMBIAE ITEDRBAGSTIERTH - MEGSHREREER (08) & DUEREHEEEME - 78R

WF:
HENETE 20%
B~ BIERIFAZEH 20% - 25%

DREEERENEE  DIRRAAERTH (NEBEOHGTH  REERE) 8 MEREREEHRENEE
R e
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(g) Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. On initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at cost including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment property are included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

(h) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. At each reporting date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and
other receivables, bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated or not classified as financial assets at
FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

At each reporting date subsequent to initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recognised in equity, until the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
at which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is removed from equity and recognised in
profit or loss (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments, they are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of the reporting period
(see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

- default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

- itbecoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period and observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

In respect of available-for-sale equity securities, impairment losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not
reversed through profit or loss in subsequent periods. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation reserve.
In respect of available-for-sale debt securities, impairment losses are subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair
value of investment can be objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The Group's financial liabilities are classified as other financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (continued)

(i

)

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities (including other payables and obligations under finance leases) are subsequently measured
atamortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the assets is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Inventories

Inventories consist mainly of standard contract forms, Standard Form of Building Contract, Form of Tender which
are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost includes direct costs of purchases and incidental costs in
bringing the inventory to their present location and condition. Net realisable value is based on anticipated selling
price less all further costs to be incurred prior to sale.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(k) Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a basis of specific percentage of the revenue
of the lease in accordance with the contractual term of the leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee
Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception of

the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and a reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve
a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Benefits received
and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over
the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
() Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in finance costs in profit or loss in the period which they are
incurred.
(m) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

i) Members' entrance and subscription fees are recognised to the extent of cash received. Annual subscription fees
are accrued on a time basis.

ii) Lecture and examination fees are recognised when the lecture and the examination are held.

i) Revenue from sales of publications and advertisement is recognised when the publications are sold and
advertisements are published.

iv) Revenue from exhibitions and other functions are recognised when the exhibitions and the functions are held.

v) Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant leases.

vi) Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

vii) Sales of securities are recognised on a trade-date basis when contracts are executed.

viii) Revenue from sales of goods are recognised when the goods are delivered and title has passed.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(n) Taxation
The Institute has been granted exemption from Hong Kong Profits Tax by the Inland Revenue Department for its
excess of income over expenditure in prior years. The Council believes that the exemptions will continue to be
granted accordingly no provision for Profits Tax has been made.

Income tax expenses represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted
for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent

that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(n) Taxation (continued)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

(o) Foreign currencies
In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's
foreign operations are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong Dollar) at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity (the translation reserves).
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(p) Government grants
Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grants will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.

Government grants related to income are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with the
related costs.

Grants related to assets are deducted from the cost of the assets in arriving at their carrying amounts to the extent of
the grants received and receivable as at the date of the consolidated statements of financial position.

(g) Related parties

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the Group has the ability to control, directly or indirectly, the
party or exercise significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or
where the Group and the party are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related parties may
be individuals (being members of key management personnel, significant shareholders and/or their close family
members) or entities and include entities which are controlled or under the significant influence of related parties
of the Group where those parties are individuals, and post-employment benefit plans which are for the benefit of
employees of the Group or of any entity that is a related party of the Group.

(r) Employee benefits
(i) Pension obligations
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans, including the mandatory provident fund as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, are recognised as an expense in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as incurred.

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the reporting date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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TURNOVER AND OTHER REVENUE
EREAREMUTA

Turnover %28

Members' subscription and entrance fees BB 2BRENNRE
Corporate membership fee AEBE22E

Functions income [Note 5] /&I (HisEA )

Lecture and examination fees BB K EH &M

Rental income from investment properties &M% 2 BN
Sales of Architects Practices Directory 2ZEENEB MR MILE

Sales of publications and advertisements EDffl G & BB &SIHES
Sponsor from corporate member ‘A5 SR EER)

Other revenue E#EUEA

Administrative charge TIRELISA

Bank interest income $R1TAI SN

Gain on arising from changes in fair value of investment properties
RERANBEE IS 2 I

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWZE ~ B & 2z

HKIA credit card rebate commissions & B2 HEEMEE R F0O1H

Sales of souvenirs #2&GRIHE

Sundry income BN

Web recruit package #3ZEBISES N
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Group A5EE

2011 2010

HKS & HKS B
6,431,030 6,248,600
570,250 581,000
3,723,708 6,877,677
2,997,100 2,848,400
52,955 492,480
456,000 436,000
40,720 46,032
100,000 120,000
14,371,763 17,650,189
0 42,377

1,534 2,176

0 2,900,000

520,406 0
34,959 36,146

0 240

33,691 12,010
60,000 47,250
650,590 3,040,199
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Receipts and expenses relating to various functions held during the year were as follows: -

REABRITIIRETBHNRARERUT © —

Group AEBH
Income A Expenses Sz 2011 2010
HKS B HKS B HKS B HKS B
2010 Mainland & HK Construction
Industry Forum 2010 AitERS BiREERIE 1,102,118 (1,102,118) 0 (9,332)
A Century of Architecture in Hong Kong 8B E2H 0 0 0 (4,010)
Academic Exchange BIFRET 327 0 0 0 (1,199)
Academic Qualification Assessment IR EE R 18,000 (16,000) 2,000 8,000
Annual Awards BEEE24818
2008 0 0 0 (39,306)
2009 479,852 (492,006) (12,154) 0
Annual Awards Publication B i858 18258 5,992 0 5,992 0
Annual Ball/Dinner BEE2/I6E
2009 0 0 0 31,984
2010 572,468 (694,208) (121,740) 0
Annual Golf Day BF=E/REAIKB
2008 0 0 0 (892)
2010 275458 (194,766) 80,692 0
Annual Report 3§ 0 (28,280) (28,280) 0
APEC Architects e A& & HRIBEEEED 2,800 (946) 1,854 3,454
ARCASIA Function ZoiMi2 5 M2 EE)
2009 0 0 0 (16,528)
2010 0 (24,486) (24,486) 0
Architectural Excursion to Fujian Tulou T2 182 HER=E 59,900 (58,866) 1,034 0
Architecture Tour $2EEhRI5 208,950 (87,510) 121,440 76,520
Architecture Week i2%/E 80,000 (48,999) 31,001 0
Best Paper Award SRfEXEH52 0 (4,254) (4,254) 0
Biennale Architecture Z2EEEEFER
HK&SZ Bi-city Biennale 2009 2009 &85 €EMEFR 0 (570) (570) 9,220
Venice Biennale 2008 2008 EfEHTREEFRE 0 0 0 (170,989)
Board of Practices HIZE#Y 500 (39) 461 0
Business Promotion Committee E£EHERZE D 0 (3,159 (3,159) (76,096)
Coalition of Professional Services &5/85 2R 0 (15,782) (15,782) (8,000)
Commonwealth Association of Architects ZEE#FR iR LML D 0 (1,404) (1,404) (9,937)
Community Development Committee Project (CDC)
TtErREZESIEE 0 (300) (300) 0
Contract and Dispute Resolution Committee
BESHEMNRRSHEES 9,550 (39,134) (29,584) 25,336
Corporate Events /A 3G ED 0 (328) (328) (665)
Courtesy Visit R5HE
Beijing bR 0 (15,863) (15,863) (24,203)
Macau P9 2,396 (7,980) (5,584) 0

c/f 2,817,984 (2,836,998) (19,014) (206,643)
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5 FUNCTIONS INCOME AND COSTS (continued)
GEWARER (18

Group AEE
Income A Expenses Sz 2011 2010
HKS B HKS B HKS B HKS B
b/f 2,817,984 (2,836,998) (19,014) (206,643)
CPD Seminars and Events FHEZXER-H5IEREE) 47,020 0 47,020 97,240
CPD Seminars and Site Visit
FiESXZR-MIaRENSEH 20,750 (4,820) 15,930 0
CUHK Visitation 2010 2010 BB P AESHR 0 (17,842) (17,842) 0
Donation to Local Architectural School
Association/Society EEHhRERREDE /1 BIEH 0 (3,000) (3,000) 0
Dragon Boat and Others BB REMEE 0 (73,306) (73,306) (119,645)
Education and Career Expo Expenses 2010
HERBEBRESER 0 0 0 (72,759)
Education Development & Accreditation Committee
HEBRREMNTIEEES 0 0 0 (43,675)
Environment & Sustainable Development
RIRROFEER 2,250 (35) 2,215 (3,746)
Events of Northern China
Liaison Group Management ZEJbEiZ/\E 0 0 0 (20,328)
Events of Southern China
Liaison Group Management ZErgEZ/]\iE 0 0 0 (19,806)
GreenTour 2010 #*E2E%2E 2010 447692 (470,204) (22,512) 0
General Activity —#2E&) O (80,307) (80,307) 0
Heritage and Conservation ¥k &IERE 3,050 (10,140) (7,090) 23
HKIA Conference 2008 &8 EERMEB25%182008 0 0 0 1,200
HKIA Journal & Newspaper S82 N2 EATI R IRIT 0 (67,724) (67,724) 0
HKIA Student Medal BSBREMBSBLLE 0 (2,650) (2,650) (3,000)
HKIA Taiwan Visit S/82RMBGEEFEHE 25616 (25,616) 0 0
International Standard Online Library BIRNEELR EERIE 160,600 (228,427) (67,827) 4,503
Interweaving City and Museum Walks
RITRNRSBEEPT T HERTT | 27,267 (61,396) (34,129) 0
Joint Booth Expo Asia B#&S B EBIFRNSRIEE 0 0 0 11,969
Joint Professional Sport Activity B&E2EE855E) 16,200 (43,077) (26,877) 20,830
Legal and Finance Committee JZ R FEEZ 700 0 700 4,109
Media Resources & Publication Committee HRR R ENEER 0 0 0 (60,317)
Membership Committee (SPC) NI EEEZEF 0 (132) (132) 0
Membership Lists with Photo &/82EeME S %8k 0 (56,000) (56,000) 0
National Conditions Class ERIEHT 60,629 (63,136) (2,507) 0
New Members Welcoming Event #T& Si0#1E8) 2,550 (18,449) (15,899) (17,327)
Official Trips to Mainland for Meetings Aith Z5&E 0 0 0 (11,712)
Professional Induction Workshop B28R1E S| 91,400 (15,226) 76,174 0
Quality Building Awards BB R2EAE 0 (15,000) (15,000) 0
Receiving Mainland Guests FRIFAMES 0 0 0 (5,080)
Set Up New Website/Website Enhancement
SRITHTIRG /MBS R 0 (17,500) (17,500) 0
Sichuan Reconstruction Projects P8I |E2IEB 0 0 0 1,835
Subscriptions to Professional Bodies B IE2E 0 (120,591) (120,591) 61,317)
c/f 3,723,708 (4,231,576) (507,868) (503,646)
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FUNCTIONS INCOME AND COSTS (continued)

GEWARER (18

UIA B2 S
Overseas Meeting 89N &%
Web Site Launching #BI5EYE)
Work Programme - "Architecture for All"
T2 AR, T/EME
Others Eifth

YAC EFREMNEES
Joint Professional Activities Bt&E B EE5EE)
Young Architects Awards S i25EET4E
Young Architect Project Fund SEZEMEBES
Welcoming Event for Prospective HKIA Members
EREMSSEITE)

EMPLOYMENT COSTS
%N

Salaries and allowances #3285
Provident fund contribution 38i& R
Staff messing and welfare S TINEREF]

COUNCILS' REMUNERATION
LSS

o

it

>
2.

ec

ts  Financial Statment 2011

Group AEE
Income A Expenses Sz 2011 2010
HKS B HKS B HKS B HKS B
3,723,708 (4,231,576) (507,868) (503,646)
0 (17,106) (17,1006) 0
0 (3,936) (3,936) (3,936)
0 (2,909) (2,909) 9,572
0 (360) (360) 0
0 (120) (120) 0
0 (6,000) (6,000) 0
0 (18,360) (18,360) 0
0 (2,936) (2,936) 0
3,723,708 (4,283,303) (559,595) (498,010)
Group AEB
2011 2010
HKS B HKS B
4,095,873 3,635,298
166,039 162,948
12,423 8,557
4,274,335 3,806,803

No remuneration was paid or payable to the Council in respect of their services to the Group during the year (2010 : Nil).

FEEMEMIESREADLEBRUORBMQIESCHNELTHE - C2-—2F: D)
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8 OTHER OPERATING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
HihE B RITHFA<
Group AEB

2011 2010
HKS B HKS B
Accountancy fee B5TER 11,040 10,848
Advertising B 4,522 12,309
Air conditioning charges Z=38& 51,840 41,225
Auditors' remuneration &ZZIENENE 48,000 50,000
Bad debt written off 1ZBRHEH 72,000 0
Bank charges and credit card commission $R{TERRIEMISHE 33,308 79,736
Books and magazines E££F05455 24,585 61,013
Building management fee XEEZIEE 247,247 204,228
Business registration fee B2 £ 10,500 4,900
Cleaning j&8 3,190 2933
Congress expenses [Note 10] Z3&Bsz [Fi5E10] 38,165 5,390
Consultancy fee BRI &R 40,000 0
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment #%, BB R&EITS 234,648 207,128
Electricity and telephone B8R BEE 108,048 91,298
Finance leases interest MEAEF S 1,790 4,133
Formation expenses A7 & 8,720 0
Insurance Rz 99,074 112,878
Legal and professional fees 52 R BEER 91,503 71,252
Management visit to Beijing office BI2IRsHIE RINBER 19,309 2,150
Membership fee written off &2&51H 195,875 25,590
Postage, printing and stationery #5%7, EDRIFICE 241914 198,788
Quarterly general meeting and working meeting expenses ZE @ TF2ERS 230,232 202,056
Rent and rates A% & Z=80 1,107,265 1,107,520
Repairs and maintenance #HSAIIRE 36,483 37,998
Souvenirs o2& 36,430 0
Sponsorship A& 2,000 3,000
Stamp duty ENTERR 2,698 0
Subscription to professional bodies B iESE 55,265 0
Sundry expenses HE 82,158 70,242
Transporatation 3@ 26,378 14,155
Website programming, IT support and upgrading #2851, | TSZIEFFAHR 69,263 26,180

3,233,450 2,646,950
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TAXATION
MRIF

Group AEB
2011 2010
HKS B HKS B85
The tax credit/(charge) comprises: FRIB#EQ)/ FRIBZH) BI5:
Hong Kong Profits Tax: SBF1SiR

Current year 2 E (44,287) (74,142)
Deferred tax credit/(charge) [Note 20] JEMEMRIBIRIERED)/ SZH) [Hi5F20] 42,690 (2,531)
(1,597) (76,673)

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2010 : 16.5%) on estimated assessable profits for the year.
BBFNEROUAERSEERMEFRIZ 16.5% (20104 : 16.5%) 518 o

The tax credit/(charge) for the year can be reconciled to the surplus before taxation per the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as follows:

FEZRIBED, (RBELE ) BIFEWARSZHRZIFRAIEERR (B18) HIRWT :
Group A&EH
2011 2010
HKS B HKS B

Surplus before taxation BRIRBIZRER 2,024,689 5,733,198

Tax charge of Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% (2010 : 16.5%)

MIEZH: EBFRSTHREI6. 5% (2010: 16. 5%) (334,074) (941,487)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose NEFORRSz HOIFRFES/LE (7619) (264)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose NERFRBN ZTRFF R/ 2 85,876 478,525
Effect of zero tax rate of tax exempted institution RIREEHSIRRS/ 2 254,220 386,553
Tax charge for the year FEFRIESZ H (1,597) (76,673)

CONGRESS EXPENSES

FEMAX
Group AEB

2011 2010
HKS B HKS B85
APEC meeting TR E OB EFEB DS 9,665 0
ASC Forum in Beijing PEIZEES (kR ) @B 11,433 0
CEPA Exchange Forum in Beijing ( BRBCBRIRNZHE) RmE (IbR) 5,072 0
Delegation to Fuzhou ig/NE%2E 4,596 5,000
Delegation to Chongging £EZERE 3,367 0
Human Habitat Forum in Beijing SBIABRERBIRETEIIRRIE 4,032 0
Management visit to Beijing BI2RFHIERINEER 0 390

38,165 5,390
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11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
YD, MBI

Group AEEH
Furniture,
fixtures,
Investment Leasehold and office
properties improvements equipment Total
B, BB
wEYE HENEZTRE RFQENME 5t
HKS B HKS B HKS B HKS B
Cost or valuation B AZEE
At 1 April 2009 1R200954818 7,500,000 2,334,067 1,564,780 11,398,847
Additions i™E& 0 172,795 97,231 270,026
Net increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss
sz R iEsBIg I A HEE 2,900,000 0 0 2,900,000
At 31 March 2010 22010538318 10,400,000 2,506,862 1,662,011 14,568,873
Additions i™E& 0 112,200 233,368 345,568
Disposals HE& (10,400,000) (67,600) (14,705)  (10,482,305)
At 31 March 2011 1R2011538318 0 2,551,462 1,880,674 4,432,136

Depreciation #7E

At 1 April 2009 72200954818 0 2,205,925 1,423,636 3,629,561
Provided for the year F£EXZH 0 101,324 105,804 207,128
At 31 March 2010 722010838318 0 2,307,249 1,529,440 3,836,689
Provided for the year F£EXZH 0 112,005 122,643 234,648
Eliminated on disposals HERFEO 0 (67,600) (14,705) (82,305)
At 31 March 2011 FR201148E38318 0 2,351,654 1,637,378 3,989,032

Carrying values BREE
At 31 March 2011 R20114E38318 0 199,808 243,296 443,104

At 31 March 2010 JiR20106:38318 10,400,000 199,613 132,571 10,732,184

The carrying values of investment properties held by the Group as at the reporting date comprised:

FEERRS BB YZENERSSTERBEEDI U T :

2011 2010
HKS B HKS B

In Hong Kong held on: R&BIFA:
Leases of over 50 years A+ Y 0 ~ 10,400,000
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11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
X, MERRE (8

Institute A=

Furniture,
fixtures,
Leasehold and office
improvements equipment Total
BARh, BB
HENEITRE RFEQAERE Rt
HKS &L HKS s HKS s
Cost AT EE
At 1 April 2009 R20095F4818 2,266,467 1,550,075 3,816,542
Additions RE& 172,795 97,231 270,026
At 31 March 2010 220108323318 2,439,262 1,647,306 4,086,568
Additions W& 112,200 233,368 345,568
At 31 March 2011 3R2011432318 2,551,462 1,880,674 4,432,136
Depreciation 72
At 1 April 2009 1R200954818 2,150,085 1,410,542 3,560,627
Provided for the year BEEXSH 89,564 104,193 193,757
At 31 March 2010 220108323318 2,239,649 1,514,735 3,754,384
Provided for the year F£EXZH 112,005 122,643 234,648
At 31 March 2011 1R2011438318 2,351,654 1,637,378 3,989,032

Carrying values BREE
At 31 March 2011 7R2011838318 199,808 243,296 443,104

At 31 March 2010 JiR20105:38318 199,613 132,571 332,184
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12 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

RBATIRE
Institute A&=
2011 2010
HKS & # HKS & #
Unlisted shares, at cost Z_EmAD, 1@AAST 5 2
Amounts due from subsidiaries [Note] MiEBASIEEBRIE [MiEE] 1,555,101 1,508,927

1,555,106 1,508,929

Note : The amounts are interest free, unsecured and without fixed repayment terms.
BiEt : BB AR B ER  WEEPRAREEERERH °

Particulars of the subsidiaries at 31 March 2011 are as follows:
WEAIR_B2—F=B=+—88FB0 T+ :
Percentage of
issued share

Place of Issued and fully capital held by Principal

Name of subsidiaries incorporation paid up share capital the Institute activities

({njEEUNSIEY AN: Y] ORERTE HERERSSL TEXEH

HKIA Services Limited Hong Kong 2 Ordinary shares 100% Investment

EEREMESRFERELT EpS of HK$1 each holding

BB EE BT Tma ERITE

Hong Kong Institute of Hong Kong 3 Ordinary shares 100% Dormant

Construction Project 58 of HK$1 each &
Management Professionals B EE BT Ema

Limited
B8RRI EEIRMESERAT

13 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATE
REHENT 2B

The associated company, Professional Green Building Council Limited, is a company incorporated in Hong Kong under
the Companies Ordinance with limited liability by guarantee. It's principal activities are conducting collaborative research
and public research results on local and global developments of green building, organizing researches seminars and
training courses in green building design and technology and advising the government on the formulation, setting up
and monitoring of a local green building labelling scheme.

WEgNT  IERRERFXFSERAT @ BREBATER  DLERSINESBEAMNINBREELT  EBEHTH

BUABRZRGECRENBIRETSFMARAHMERBR - BIEREKRCEEYRSTNRMOMTENS R IBIR
12 DRHMBIIRSEEF MR REMIRET S - QBUTRAEE -

122 The Hong Kong Institute of Architects « Annual Report 2011



14

15

o
-
i
o,

chit

itects £ Financial Statment 2011

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
OtHECIRE
Group & Institute
rEERAEE
2011 2010

HKS B HE HKS B HE

Unlisted equity securities, at fair value JE_EMIZBATE 8,321,738 7,675,075

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
FEUSRR R ELABFEULER

Group Institute

rEE rEE
2011 2010 2011 2010
HKS s HKS s HKS s HKS s
Account receivables fEIEEFR 3,226,379 5,126,884 3,226,379 5,126,384
Rental receivables fEWFEEBRFR 0 152,245 0 0
Deposits paid &% 312,450 276,271 312,450 260,619
Prepayments F8{J188 5,366,787 745,976 5,366,787 745,503
Other receivables EftBfEIER 191,067 287,149 101,126 200,023
9,096,683 6,588,525 9,006,742 6,333,029

The aging analysis of account receivables at the date of the statement of financial position that are not considered to be
impaired is as follows:

REBRR R BAERRREN R Z A E A EIERIREIRES DT T

Group Institute

rEE rEg
2011 2010 2011 2010
HKS &L HKSE#E HKS & # HKS &
1to 3 months past due BIHBE1E S Z31E 8 57,320 40,228 57,320 40,228
Over 3 months past due EIERBE3E S 1,025,903 1,290,950 1,025,903 1,290,950
1,083,223 1,331,178 1,083,223 1,331,178

Receivables that were past due but nor impaired relate to a number of independent parties that have a good track record
with the Group and Institute. Based on past experience, management is of the opinion that no provision for impairment
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable. The Group and the Institute do not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over theses balances.

EREAB IR ERSENENMRERAEELETREHRRBVEIIZFER - RIBUINKER - BREBRR - BREE
BEWESKES) - MABGRDRIRAY SN0 - RILB/ERELBEASTERERE - REBEMMELEREE
AP o
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16 BANKBALANCES
RITHSER

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from 0.001% to 0.5% (2010 : 0.001% to 0.36%) per annum.
RATHEERZ IS EFRIZRB0. 001 [EX0.5 EFHR (ZZ—24F : 0.001 E20.36 EFEFE) o

17 GENERAL RESERVES
— RS
Group & Institute
rEERTEE
2011 2010
HKS B HKS B85

Balance of donation for Radio Television Hong Kong programs production

SBELH B RIEIBFRIGER 456,897 456,897
HKIA Funds for Public Conferences, Seminars & Exhibitions in 1996

1996 FEATREE XD  REVANSBREMBSES 114,001 172,788
Donation for Public Conference, Seminar, Exhibition, Research and Competition

NRBE IS - BE  HRNRLEEBR 100,000 100,000
Balance of donation from Mr. Stephen Poon in 1995

1995 FEERFIC A IS TRERRE 1,628 1,628

672,526 731,313

18 RESERVES

et
Investment
Institute revaluation Sinking Retained
rEE reserves fund surplus Total
E Rl BEES RIERER iRst
HKS B85 HKS B HKS B HKS B85

At 1 April 2009 320094818 (436,376) 0 21,990,475 21,554,099
Surplus for the year FEZ3RER 0 0 2,369,930 2,369,930
Transfer from retained surplus to sinking fund

KERFETEBES 0 50,000 (50,000) 0
Net gain on revaluation of available-for-sale investments

JHEE 2 RESH PN 1,111,451 0 0 1,111,451
At 31 March 2010 £820108E383318 675,075 50,000 24,310,405 25,035,480
Surplus for the year FEZFRER 0 0 1,540,726 1,540,726
Transfer from retained surplus to sinking fund

KERFETEBES 0 50,000 (50,000) 0
Sinking fund used in refurbishment

BEESARESWH LR 0 (100,000) 100,000 0
Net gain on revaluation of available-for-sale investments

JHEE 2 RESH PN 646,063 0 0 646,663
At 31 March 2011 (82011838318 1,321,738 0 25,901,131 27,222,869
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OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES
MERERE

Group & Institute AEBRABE

Minimum lease

Present value of minimum

payments lease payments
RAGETIRR RIFESIRVIRE
2011 2010 2011 2010
HKS B HKS B HKS B HKS B85
Amounts payable under finance leases:
NERESSEIE MECR
Within one year —&ER 29,148 1,045 27,690 348
After one year but within two years —FEEfRE 2 29,148 0 27,691 0
After two years but within five years fREEERSE 2 65,583 0 62,304 0
123,879 1,045 117,685 348
Less J& : Future finance charges FKREEMR (6,194) (697) N/A N/A
Present value of lease obligations IHE&{&IRE 117,685 348 117,685 348
Less 8 : Amount due within one year shown
under current liabilities
R—EREIE GUSREIEE) (27,690) (348)
Amount due after one year IR—E#4ZIEA 89,995 0

Itis the Group's policy to lease certain of its furniture, fixtures and office equipment under finance leases. The lease terms
are 5 years (2010 : 4 to 5 years). Interest rates underlying all obligations under finance leases are fixed at respective
contract dates was 5% (2010 : 3%) . These leases have no terms of renewal or purchase options and escalation clauses.
AEBCHRAMYHFRNVEEETEERRZE - BIANTUELE (ZE—2F 4855 ) - FIBUHENEE 28R
EDREREINBEEIERE (Z2—2F : 3E) - BRTENORRBERIER - INEE/\RIERK BERT 21EMR

The Group's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors' charge over the leased assets.

FEENREEERELHBBEALTEEEENFERFLS -

Financial lease obligations are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

FTEHEERELVBESHEE -
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20 DEFERRED TAXATION
EFEFRIR

2011 EESER A E S ERE
\.

=
~

The deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior years are as follows:
TRINIEFRSHHBRETRSFEMER 2 TRRIENBEEN (BE) REHES) :

Group AEEH

At 1 April 2009 12200954816

Credited/(Charged) to profit or loss A/ (308 ) WA RSZHFE

At 31 March 2010 /22010838318

Credited/(Charged) to profit or loss A/ (308 ) WA RSZHFE

At 31 March 2011 /32011838318

21 OTHER PAYABLES
H AT

Deposits and receipts in advance &£ K 8IS
Rental deposits received FBEIZE

Accruals FESTIEB

Other payables E{BIESER

The Hong Kong Institute of Architects - Annual Report 2011

Accelerated tax
depreciation

IRIRIBHTE

HKS B85

(40,159)

(2,531)

(42,690)

42,690

0

Group Institute

rEE rEg

2011 2010 2011 2010
HKS B8 HKS B8 HKS B HKS B85
4,631,573 648916 4,631,573 648916
0 143,520 0 0
283,500 51,000 277,500 45,000
163,084 16,974 163,084 16,974
5,078,157 860,410 5,072,157 710,890
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NOTES ON THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERME

Reconciliation of operating surplus to cash from/(used in) operations.
FEERGMEEETHIRTANE (ATFE) JF5REER:

Operating surplus &i8%&EeR
Adjustments for FEZEIEB:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment %, BrE K53 HiITE
Gain on arising from changes in fair value of investment properties
SERAABEE IS 2 NS
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
HEYDZE ~ B R EI
Interest paid SATFI&
Interest received SIAIE
General reverses transfer to surplus or deficit B —RREERBEIZ A (%A ) B8

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
EEETEIRIBERDRE

(Increase)/Decrease in assets & (18H0) /&4 :
Inventories 135
Trade and other receivables FEWBETR K EL b FEIKGR
Increase/(Decrease) in liabilities E1&180, (&4 ) -
Other payables ELfthfEIER

Cash from/(used in) operations #&5EENFTS (FTFE ) IRE

FUNDS RISK MANAGEMENT
EREEER

hitects £ Financial Statment 2011

2011 2010

HKS 85 HKS 85
2,024,689 5,733,198
234,648 207,128
0  (2,900,000)
(520,4006) 0
1,790 4,133
(1,534) (2,176)
(58,787) (87,192)
1,680,400 2,955,091
(21,5%6) (12,558)
(2,508,158)  (3,229,488)
4,217,747 (496,203)
3,368,393 (783,158)

The funds (including sinking fund) are managed for regular refurbishment of the Institute's premises.

Bz (BiEEEES) DARESSUTEHIHLRE -
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

EMTHE
(a) Categories of financial instruments
TMTRSE
Group Institute
rEE rEg
2011 2010 2011 2010

HKSB S HKS8 85 HKS g HKS B HE

Financial assets SRIEE
Loans and receivables (including cash and cash equivalents)
ERRERRE (BERERIETEEERS)

Trade and other receivables FEUNERFR R EL B ELER 3,729,896 5,842,549 3,639,955 5,587,526
Amounts due from subsidiaries MBS fETEBIE 0 0 1,555,101 1,508,927
Bank balances and cash BT RIREHE6% 26,645,832 12,665,147 13,680,390 10,572,253

30,375,728 18,507,696 18,875,446 17,668,706

Available-for-sale investments oJfft-HE 2158 8,321,738 7,675,075 8,321,738 7,675,075

Financial liabilities ERIBE&
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost

Hit =B SRR AR

Other payables E{BfEITTR 395,584 160,494 395,584 16,974
Obligations under finance leases FEHEEE 117,685 348 117,685 348
513,269 160,842 513,269 17,322

(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices

MFRREIEERREER

The Group's major financial instruments include trade and other receivables, bank balances and cash, available-
for-sale investments, other payables and obligations under finance leases. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments include market risk (foreign
currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

FEBTFEETMNT EBFRIERRE EEUER « IRITRIBEIEER - JHEEZINE - HtENIERRMERESE -
ZETRTEFFIENRBREMETINS  ZETRTEMMRERBHEIRBERFIINT - SRERSERESZMEEE
B - DMEREEGRBIHEITEEHBE
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
IR (&

(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices (continued)

MBERIREIEBRRIBER (8

Market risk
hiZ@ ks

Foreign currency risk

ShiE ez

The Group and the Institute are not exposed to any material foreign currency risk as majority of the transactions,
monetary assets and monetary liabilities are denominated in respective entities' functional currencies.
FEBTEIRS  EEEREMERAMINGEEETEE @ Rt NERSEARVIMEBE

Interest rate risk

FUFEE

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to variable-rate bank balances and deposits (see note 16).
The management considers the Group's exposure of the variable-rate bank balances and deposits to interest rate risk
is not significant.

AEEEHRS R THBRGRBHE IR RNERR MEE16) - EBERALRIRIGE BERSZ S RIRITHS
AR GRRILIESE AR 2 FZR@EE

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate obligations under finance leases (see
note 19). The management monitors interest rate exposure and will consider repay the fixed-rate obligations under
finance leases when significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.
FEERETHNERERESEH B2 FEREEFHEFNHIZE0 - SIREREI)ERAFES) - BIRAEATIEREE
* 0 AEERZRESEETEINENELESE -

Sensitivity analysis

HRLE T

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming the amount of variable-rate bank balances and deposits at the
end of the reporting period was the amount outstanding for the whole year.

DAURSURED T DIRBIRIR S AR Z FIRRBRIEL )3 RIMTREBRGRIBRRIRSHR 2GR D2 T REERKRL o

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group's
operating surplus after tax for the year ended 31 March 2011 would increase/decrease by HK$151,670 (increase/
decrease by 2010 : HK$113,638). This is mainly attributable to the Group's exposure to interest rates on its variable-
rate bank balances and deposits.

e RIZRIB ISR 1 00EE SR BT B E ol B RRERF A - BIREBH 201153831 BLEEE 2R FIGI0S K
#9151, 670%7T (2010 = IBIOSIHAMNI113, 6383870 ) o BIRIRITHERR R B aRMITE S BRI R ML A EBEEFIZRE S

The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2010.
201 0FEBIDHTINEARIZ LM ESEEST o
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24 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
IR (&

(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices (continued)

MBERIREIEBRRIBER (8

(i) Market risk (continued)
miZaEE (&)

Other price risk

BtErS Rz

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk on its available-for-sale investments. Management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risk profiles.
FEBIHBECRETEHRNERRR - EEEREBHE—@IRINERKBEEZIREREREIRTE
[Rf o

Sensitivity analysis
B E DT
If the prices of the respective equity instruments had been 5% higher/lower:

B AERIRR A B OVEAZIE 0,5 5% :

- investment revaluation reserves would increase/decrease by approximately HK$416,000 (2010 : increase/
decrease by approximately HK$380,000) for the Group as a result of the changes in fair value of available-for-
sale investments.

BRIHEEZRERATENE - £EE 2 SEREBRSIL, 19416, 0008 ( Z2—2 © AKUBI0
4)380, 000i&5 ) °

In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is not necessarily representative of the inherent price risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

BEERA  SREDNA—EAXREBEBRER  LDHRFRBRIAKKRFEAZER

The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2010.
201 0FEBIDHTINEARIE LM EAEEST o
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
IR (&

(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices (continued)

MBERIREIEBRRIBER (8

(i) Credit risk

SERRE

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when due.

SERBRIEE TS REEERAMEE 2R

The Group and the Institute have designed their credit policies with an objective to minimize its exposure to credit
risk. The Group's and the Institute's "Trade and other receivables" are very short term in nature and the associated
risk is minimal. Subscriptions fees, income from examinations, seminars, courses, rental income and other activities
are collected in advance. Sale of goods is made in cash or via major credit cards. Further quantitative data in
respect of the exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables are disclosed in note 15 to the
financial statements.

FEERESHREAIRNERERRERVEERRKE - AEBREEH) BUGRIBREMEKER" ME FEIES
59HA - BARRIRIGIR/ ) - BB~ INE ~ BH TS » FEREMTBHINRA/TELWE - ERHE®EERSHTE
BRI o BAF5IRZROOMIET 1 bR EE S EUGRIBE N ERMEMRRRNEZTEEN ©

The Group's surplus cash has been deposited with a number of reputable and creditworthy banks. Management
considers there is minimal risk associated with the bank balances.
FEBZRERIBITEREFHNRE THERBEEREHMNIRT - ABIRERRRBETNEERRBIR -

(iii) Liquidity risk

mEEERRE

Liquidity risk is the risk that funds will not be available to meet liabilities as they fall due. The Group and the
Institute manage liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves. The Group and the Institute perform periodically
cash flow forecasts to monitor future cash flows. The subscription fees and entrance fees from members are
growing steadily and provide a stable source of funds to the Group and the Institute. The current financial
strength of the Group and the Institute pose no threat of liquidity to the Group and the Institute.
mEREREEEEEHHFEINETRHNA - AEBRESMURFROBFEREIZREERE - T EHETIR
TRIBA - DEEEAKRIBER - SERSESENIMECETIER  REBRESRUTBENER R « BE
SERESEFINMHEN  HEEEBREBSTEBRRENERE ©
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
IR (&

(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices (continued)

MBERIREIEBRRIBER (8

(iii) Liquidity risk (continued)

MENBETERE (1)

The maturity profile of financial liabilities as at 31 March 2011 and 2010, based on the contractual undiscounted

payments, was as follows:

FAEEZERBERRSHARZSHNEIMNBZBR T HBRIZGHORBIRIBEREIITUT:

Group
rEE

Other payables EfBETFR
Obligations under finance leases REHE&E

Other payables ELBfE(TER
Obligations under finance leases FEHEEE

Institute
rEg

Other payables ELBfE(TER
Obligations under finance leases RIBEESEE

Other payables ELBfE(TER
Obligations under finance leases RIBESEE

The Hong Kong Institute of Architects - Annual Report 2011

31 March 2011
201138318
Less than Over Total carrying
1 year 1 year amount
DIR—F BIR—F k@E
HKS B HKS B HKS B
395,584 0 395,584
29,148 94,731 123,879
424,732 94,731 519,463
31 March 2010
2010538318
Less than Over Total carrying
1 year 1 year amount
DIR—EF DR—F REE
HKS B HKS B HKS B85
160,494 0 160,494
1,045 0 1,045
161,539 0 161,539
31 March 2011
20114383318
Less than Over Total carrying
1 year 1 year amount
DIR—EF BIR—EF faE
HKS s HKS B HKS 85
395,584 0 395,584
29,148 94,731 123,879
424,732 94,731 519,463

31 March 2010

2010538318

Less than Over Total carrying
1 year 1 year amount
DIR—F ZR—F RBE
HKS B HKS &S HKSBHE
16,974 0 16,974
1,045 0 1,045
18,019 0 18,019
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24 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
IR (&

(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices (continued)

MBERIREIEBRRIBER (8

(iv) Fair value estimation
NEGBE
The fair value of financial instruments trade in active market (such as available-for-sale investments) is based on
quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial assets held
by the Group is the current bid price.
EERMSLRSNETMNTE WIHRBEEZIRE) - ARAVEDEEBMIZMRMBREEDRTE - 2EBFAFS
RNEENZMBRERMIZERE

The carrying value less impairment provision of receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair
values. The fair value of financial assets and liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the
future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.

FERGRIB R FEMFRIBRIREE MR RE R ENEEE - SEATENSIENH - iiREMS - THREENBBNAF
BERERAENRDRET LR T REYSNIREHIBHNRIEBIRGSET o

25 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
TCETRERIE

(@) The Group and the Institute as a lessee
FEBRFIBSIEREHEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the Institute had commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented premises which fall due as follows:
RIBSER - REBEAEBREGNEMREEPRFTZIEN » ERRFRERSMRIERAWT ¢

Group & Institute
rEERSTEE
2011 2010
HKS B HKS B85

Within one year —&ER 233,542 1,401,252
In the second to fifth years inclusive RE—EEZFERHERA 0 233,542

233,542 1,634,794

Leases are negotiated, and monthly rentals are fixed, for terms of three years.
HOZFHR—REER=EF -
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OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued)
ICEHERIE (18

(b) The Group as a lessor
FEBFERLEEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants in respect of its investment properties for
future minimum lease payments which fall due as follows:
RIRSHER @ IRIBAEBRREMELEE 5280 - EARRREBSMAROERAWNT ¢
Group
rEH
2011 2010
HKS B HKS B

Within one year —&ER 0 52,955
In the second to fifth years inclusive RE—EEFERHER 0 0
0 52,955

Operating lease arrangements represent rentals receivable by the Group for certain of its premises. Leases are
negotiated for terms of two years.

RERERBECEENENERIZEE - BRN2FHR—RBEER_F -

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
BEBRZER

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Group acquired available-for-sale investments at a consideration of
HK$8,000,000.
RIRSHEARR - 2EBRSHEMUEEBEES, 000, 000 cEEIHEE 21RE °

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
SRR RAEN

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

LA EERRCEIERR

The methods, estimates and judgements the council used in applying the Group's accounting policies have a significant
impact on the Group's financial position and operating results. Some of the accounting policies require the Group
to apply estimates and judgements, on matters that are inherently uncertain. The critical accounting judgements in
applying the Group's accounting policies are described below.
FEESHPERMRB 2GS RAETR SHAEB 2 EZERMBFIRNBNEATE - PO
Flf - BRI RAEEMY - FEBBSIIERCERSFHES R TR

TR BEA N IIFBEET R

ol

(a) Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts
RIFEHR BHEETHE
Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts are assessed and provided based on the council's regular review of aging
analysis and evaluation of collectibility. A considerable level of judgement is exercised by the council when assessing
the credit worthiness and past collection history of each individual members. An increase or decrease in the above
impairment loss would affect profit or loss in future years.
FAEBRBIZSGHRE DN 2 ERSE R H AWM 250 @ STERIKBERRBIL F5HE - BSEEIESEE,L 2
ERYSEMERGENORESL - STEEEREZHE o RERMMERHE 2 BRI SR EFRRFE 2B
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27 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

SRSHHERAE (@)

(b) Impairment of assets
BEZIG51HE
The Group reviews the carrying amounts of the assets at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. When indication of impairment is identified, management prepares discounted future cash
flows to assess the differences between the carrying amount and value in use and provides for impairment loss. Any
change in the assumptions adopted in the profit forecasts would increase or decrease in the provision of impairment
loss and affect the Group's net asset value.
FEFERBREOBREHEERBREENRDTE  METELEEEOREZSZHEE o MERBENSR - &
BERGIGIRIE SRS R EE RIERBEIETRERIERE - TEFTBRAITFTER 2 55 DI S EhHR1E
DosEA BB IE R B R EAEB ZEEFE

(c) Depreciation
HE
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives. The Group
reviews annually the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any. The depreciation expense for future periods
are adjusted if there are significant changes from previous estimation.
ME - MERRBIEE 2INERERETEGIUERFIE - 2£BEFRNBECYFERFHARETEREE (W0
B) o &SR iGEt B aEARES) - BERABZITERSZ O Fi%E

(d) Provision for inventories
E=tcy]
The Group review the carrying amounts of the inventories at each reporting date to determine whether the
inventories are carried at lower of cost and net realisable value. Management estimates the net realisable value based
on current market situation and historical experience on similar inventories. Any change in the assumptions would
increase or decrease the amount of inventories write-down or the related reversals of write-down and affect the
Group's net asset value.
RBREE  FEEERFIGEESSUNFTRTEIRHEME P2 BIEEDIER - BRIG DERBREERMRRIBE
HERDERERRMIED o FTER 2 5% LIRET B ENiFIE NS0 R 5 EHilR.2 21885 HABEE .2 HlR R D R &2
rEBCEEFE

28 COMPARATIVE FIGURES
LB

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year's presentation.
HTHRHAFECEFDEURGELAFEZ2WAIN ©
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directors have pleasure to present their annual report and the audited financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2011 are set out in the statement of comprehensive income on page 5
of the annual report.
The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Company during the year are set out in note 8 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:
Ms. Kwong Sum Yee, Anna (resigned on 27 January 2011)

Ms. Chow Wai Lee (resigned on 27 January 2011)

Mr.Wong Kam Sing (resigned on 27 January 2011)

Mr. Lam Ping Hong, Robert (appointed on 27 January 2011)

Mr.Tang Wai Man, Tony (appointed on 27 January 2011)

Mr. Lam Kwong Ki (appointed on 27 January 2011)

There being no provision in the Company's Articles of Association for retirement of directors, all directors continue in office.

EEBHE
ESEMAREFANTHE_Z——F=A=1T—BLFEZREEREERZMBHRE

EEXE
FATNEBEHRINELR -

EiRRBERDE
FATHE-_F-——E=A=+—OEEE AR A FREAT2EMNE -
ESUFRBRHE -

W% ~ MERRE
FATRENZYE « BERDBSTHED BRI BBREMEN o
53

FADREEAREEABEOMLEER

BhOME/ B (201151 B27TB5R(E)
BEig/ e (2011E182185EE)
BIREAE (2011FE182TEEE)
MEELE  (2011FE1821B8FE)
BEEE (20011F1821BEF)
METEHSEE (20111 B2TBEE)

B AT EBERMR PIEEEESHINET - MEESEESET -
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01 FETBREMBSIRIFBIR
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\

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or its holding company was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or its holding company, a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant event occurring after the reporting date are set out in note 18 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by Katon CPA Limited who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment.

EEREERSH B
RERBDNENETHY - FATAREARRATMEIEF A TR SERNEHEEARR 2SBS0 -

== PaS

SPiray i)

REANFESEBRILENLEANS 2 EE N TR EAPBNDER 2 EIERITHEHBMEINGEZEASH ©
BARDRESTHE

ANGEIER NS RERNT O FEMES ST UL BRI ESIBBEALL TG T OEMEABEB 2N IES
iRt o

BSHRZSIR
FATRIPE D2 BAFIBZSHERUBBREIDE N

RS Em
FATDVESEHERBENTERATE « HEKRSSE - ORBEZIEATAT 2L -

On behalf of the Board
HEEGED

el

Director

=
Hong Kong, 29 August 2011
&8, 2011588298
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REERADMIERE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HKIA SERVICES LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of HKIA Services Limited set out on pages 5 to 19, which comprise the statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2011, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

Directors' responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

BIHERS - AELERMESRBBRATEERER
(REBIEMRIOBERAT)

AREED (T8 'B%F . ) CERFREABZE T NESEERMBESREERAINUHTRE LY BFREBER-Z——
F=A=1T—BNRIUFTRREREEZOULFENEZEINLGE RSB RRIBEAERUR EBRSSTIERAH U A7
o

ESHMBRTRRIENST
FADESALEERESESHLSRBNSBYBRSEARSE (DTG ORFEIE - BERERTPEHRIIRES
RIS o SEIT RSN « BiEREERBBREBMPSIIIRYBRREMOANEE - DUEHBRERTEE RN
SERMEHOEABREL  REEBESNSIER - MREBRFLSROBEHES! o

R EBEMBVET
SENEIRRESENBRYLSUBBRIELER LRSS (D FEH) £ 141 HREEARERSSNS  TELEA
2 o BEMARSWENNSHEIEA TEENRET ST -

SECRREBSSIEIABRME (FBZEER) EITSERIF - BLERBRBFETERBRE - WRERNTES UG
BT FRRESATHENEREREM -
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 March 2011 and of
its profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

B RIVTRFLIERERMUBREAMESTBERIBEERNERE - MEERFEURRESTEI0AIE - BI55T 1S BIREREE
WERMEBYHREATEEAERBANRR - THMEZFARE - SstERREZESRBRABMPEMIRYHREE
RIOUABEIES - ISREHEENESHZR @ Bl FREHBNABHEHMEEERER - S5 BEVEBESMRBHBE RSN
GEMRMAFENSSHESTNSIEN - MRFHBI B IREOERIIRS

E58E BEMESNBEEER RN BEERATTNESREREHER -

=R
BERRUBRERCIER (BBHMBRSEL) ABNARBRIR SATR-B——F=A=+—BNSURRR BLIEH
2ZBI2FNRBIIRERE @ LRIZREB (RIEA) IREREESHEH

B@@*\MW(/

Katon CPA Limited ZEIREFENITHERAT

Certified Public Accountants HZES5TEM

Hong Kong &8

Date: 29 August 2011 BHJ: 2011488298

Lee Kit Wah Z {5

Practising Certificate number P1453 25825885 P1453
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
EEEGER

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
HE_E——F=RA=t—BLEFE

2011 2010

Notes Bzt HKS B HKS A8

Turnover &%%8 4 52,955 492,480
Other revenue EABUTA 4 520,460 2,900,149

573,415 3,392,629

Less j&i: Administrative and other operating expenses 4TI R E it (43,275) (29,391)
Profit before taxation BRISBUEF! 5 530,140 3,363,238

Less i8i: Taxation FRIB

Hong Kong Profits Tax KIS 7 (44,287) (74,142)
Deferred taxation JEEFRIE 7 42,690 (2,531)
Profit for the year 2EE {5 528,543 3,286,565
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AREE )R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
BEE——F=RA=+t—BLEFE

Share Retained
capital profits Total
i =y ipray Nl Bt
HKS B HKSE#E HKS B
At 1 April 2009 11820094818 2 7,755171 7,755,173
Profit for the year AEEHEAY 0 3,286,565 3,286,565
At 31 March 2010 /32010838318 2 11,041,736 11,041,738
Profit for the year AEEHEA 0 528,543 528,543
At 31 March 2011 (32011838318 2 11,570,279 11,570,281
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R FEARER

AS AT 31 MARCH 2011

R_E——F=B=1+—8

Notes M3
ASSETS 8&E
Non-current assets JERENEE
Property, plant and equipment #)2 « = R 33 8
Current assets RENEE
Trade and other receivables FEISBR 3R K EL{th FELSER 9
Tax recoverable T [@IFRER
Bank balances and cash 1T RIREH#56R 10
TOTAL ASSETS BE2%E

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES #E&RXEE

Capital and reserves EAR

Share capital B2 1
Retained profits &%

Non-current liabilities JERENEE
Long term loan from ultimate R BRI N IEES

holding company 12
Deferred taxation JEIEFRIE 13

Current liabilities FEN& &
Other payables E{hfE{FR 14
Tax payable fERITRIB

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES B3 ig X B E12%E

HKS B8

89,941
29,855

12,965,442

2

11,570,279

1,508,957
0

6,000

2011
HKS &g

13,085,238

13,085,238

11,570,281

1,508,957

6,000

13,085,238

2010
HKS & #E

10,400,000

255,496
0
2,092,894

2,348,390

12,748,390

2
11,041,736

11,041,738

1,508,957
42,690

1,551,647

149,520
5485

155,005

12,748,390

The financial statements on pages 5 to 19 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 August 2011

and are signed on its behalf by:

HREEZ B ZHMFRSECR - Z——F/\BT TN BEESETSHERRERE  WHTIESANERRZ

. AL .

Director &% Director &3

The Hong Kong Institute of Architects - Annual Report 2011



HKIA Services Limited - maﬁ?:l S
0 FES AR SERHBRA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
BEE——F=RA=+t—BLEFE

2011 2010
HKS B HKS FS 8
Operating activities {&&558)
Operating profit #&&&EF 530,140 3,363,238
Adjustments for AZEIEBE :
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment #J2£ « = K 3@ITE 0 13,371
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEYIZ « iE R & HUIES (520,406) 0
Gain on arising from changes in fair BBRNMBEEEHY
value of investment property B2 Izs 0 (2,900,000)
Interest received EWFIE (54) (149)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
EBE T CEIRERED 9,680 476,460
(Increase)/Decrease in assets: BE (1810) /5
Trade and other receivables FEISBRE 3R 5 EL{th FELSER 165,555 (46,004)
Increase/(Decrease) in liabilities: B{&1E10,” (JFH4)
Other payables EfBfEITR (143,520) 0
Cash from operations Z58FT181R%E 31,715 430,456
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid I &EFISHR (79,627) (110,970)
Net cash (used in)/from operating activities f&&;58) (T3t ) FTSIREBEE @1 319,486
Investing activities &5
Interest received BSBIFIE 54 149
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment
HEMZE  MERRIBPTIZRE 10,920,406 0
Net cash from investing activities {E&5EE TSR FEE _ 10920460 149
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents IRERIREHEBBIEINEE 10,872,548 319,635
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year FIZRERIFSHEEBE 2,092,894 1,773,259
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year ER ZIRERIREEEED 12,965,442 2,092,894
Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents IRERIRESHEEEEERDIT

Bank balances and cash $R1T R IR 565 12,965,442 2,092,894
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 GENERAL
The Company is a private company incorporated in Hong Kong and its ultimate holding company is The Hong Kong
Institute of Architects, a company registered in Hong Konag.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The address of its registered office is 19/F, One Hysan Avenue, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

2 THE ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
In the current year, the Company has applied all the new and revised Standards, Amendments and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA") that are relevant to its operations and effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2010. The new and revised Standards, Amendments and Interpretations
adopted in the current year are referred to as new and revised HKFRSs.

The Company has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective. The Company has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether these new
HKFRSs would have a material impact on its results of operations and financial position.

Other new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations, which are mandatory for the first time for the

financial year beginning 1 April 2010, are not currently relevant for the Company or do not have material impact on the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2011.

RA PSR MYEE

1 ARt
FRYRREBEMMILOMARLRT - ARRIZERNATRREBEMIESEEEMES -

TANTNEEEBRINET
AN MPS RN S BREEFIBB 15198

2 Rim(EBMBHRSZER)
RAFE » ARTRXNBEBSFEIL S/ ZPTENSI REIBSTER ~ B3] AR 2E - MXFEMEERSFTEHREBR
“E2-TFOA BB - AEERMIIEIRBETHER  B5TRERE (| MINGREE " #1E] RIKBSI S BUHIRS
B, ) o
RATEHRERHHIRE PEACBMBEREVNFHET RIEETNE BEIFREHER - KRR IERIBLIZERS]
EBUBRSHERIRRBIRE PSRRI EMNI S BUBRSERNEEH A NI ZREXBRUBIRNREEE KR

27388
R o

B A2 IEDER « BEARRBIAR-E—TENE —BRB L UBEESREN - BRFTEARAATRIL
RUAATR-B——F= A=+ BHUBBRENEATE
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(@) Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain properties and financial
instruments, which are measured at revalued amounts or fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards that have
significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the
next year are discussed in note 19.

3  BABEHER
(a) ETEHRA
APBHRIDIRBSESSTNNSABM IS BYHFRSHERE  SBUBRSEINBELLSBYHRSHE
8~ EBSTHEAURNBHMIVES - SBLERMISFHERIRSEE (RIEH) ZEKMRE

b) MBERKRIRHIESE
PBREDICBEMABRERE - MUATESEZMERSTEMIE (BB TESE) BRI WTX
BETCRPIRRE -

MELFTEEBUBRESERN 2 BHREFLESIEEFLAE S5t REER - MEFHE -« S5TREBRESFENR
RZBAKMPREE B - W\KAZFHER - ZF bt RAMEE DIRBBEERREIZEBBERZSE
RTIDBEECSREMRAZTAREMIEL - MSHREMNEIEEN BRIRELEMIKRMEENEERBE K
BEEMELESTZEYE - BRETASERIRGHEZ

ANDFFERLPIFGETRABRBIRRME LS - BEHESTZEHWEFEEL - AIBHSSHEIERREHNES -
WEZIREEHESTE SR EE R LREE - RSOSSN RE MR IR HIREESS

190 - EEHEH TEFENMBRERGSIBEAFEMSIBMIRELEANBERR - EEBLESBUHR
SHERIPEBIEST -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual values, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives at the following annual rates:

Leasehold improvements  20%
Office equipment 20%

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of an item of property, plant and equipment determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. On initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at cost including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment property are included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

EXRSETBER (18)

(c)

Y ~ MERRIE
E ~ BB RBEEIZE LA RHTERDBEXERIIR

M - MERZRABZITEDRBEGSTIUERTH - MEGSTRIGRERE (08) & MEREMBEERSE - #7
BERQ0T

HENE 20%
WA 20%

wEmE

SENFEREVERSATITEUMIEE R UFERIGEREZ LR /SN2 - REMENTIZER
A58 - BIEHERSZMNE - EFEDE - REMELZNTEIR - RIREMENTEEEESELE 2BRETN\E
EFEZIRE U IRASIIE UL SR BRIDNR ©

YEMEREENEZIEMER KR LA RARRDEFEEBRIOBEN 2L R - i EREE
MELZEEL (ZZREZEEMSRRFERREERZERE ) RIZEESREZIRE 2 IEEt \Ea -
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on statement of financial position when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Company's financial assets are classified into loans and receivables. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis.

3 EATEHEE (#)

(e)

THTH

BRIMAIEZSHIURIZETHEERE - AREBRREXEDENEEREMEE - ENEERTMEBENIBIRA
FEESE - BNENRTENEERTMEE (BRERKEATEERECENEEREHEERIN) MEE
[EIEZR2ZMA - RIDISESBIEHTERBERINNASIEZRERNEENEHMEBEZ N TEE - BB S BEERET
AEERIEC ENEENEHNBEMEEBIS 2 2 Z A BRS8N

AP ENEERBRERREUGRER - AESBESHINEETNEERRZ OREERDRIZILES - IRER
HAEERZRMIBRATIENMHEZFEARRINEEZEHNEEES -

EERFIRE

BN REE - Bt BB EENSEENA MR SHSWADEFEEHRBNGE - BIEFEREBRHESTREKIRE
W (BIBFERBMERARERIN 2ENABHER - RZERRHETRENINE) BB B EENRAFHN
(938FR) B e EERITIRE RS RISV AR FEVFIR -

FRIINIZEBRRFIRESERSE o
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Financial instruments (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. At each reporting date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables, bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been affected.

For all financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

- default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Company's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period and observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

ERBETBER (18)

(e)

THEE (&)

ER R NGRS

ERRENRBANIFRERENBREMEEEENTEENRZIFTESHE - RINBER R 2SWSEE - ER
REWFIR ( BIERBEERR EMEIFRIRITRIRERER) DR B BRI SERE M AR ES
Bk (R XERMEEREBEZESTIER) -

D S 2

LR E
ENEERSBSHARIGEREFERENS - HESHBBRATERNEECN T ERERFERLSHMPER
RRRERE  ZENEESIERE -

ETREERNENSHRREE:

- BITASRZHTHREAVIEE ; 5L
- REERUTSRERESF SEE 5 5

- ERAYEEERIRENHEE

ETASERMFEREN GZERNEE (WEKERR ) SRERFFRSTEIE - BIRNRES BIREE 2 S8 E
BREEEBENFRCE « BENBRTIEEMZEMENRHE L7 - MREHFAMIER R BIRREMEN
[ESERIBREEEE o

FRIESERFR R BB BB BIRRERIDRIN - IEERRBUGNEZ RBEREFIVNERSSE < BRERREE2E
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after
deducting all of its liabilities. The Company's financial liabilities are classified as other financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including long term loan from ultimate holding company and other payables) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

EXRSETBER (18)

(e)

EMIR (&)
HIEEERRIE
BANTEEF T VB RERRETIRRBES N ZSHNEFATURVBEERRETR ZERDLE

RIETEDIFMEREREBRRALNTEEANIREFERD ZETEN - FRT2EMEBEDBRHEMERNEE -
BERSE
BIRFSERIBEREENMENAMRREEABIEANSZENGE - EFRFNERARENSENRTIERA
FHASY (WEA ) BIEHBIRNIERITIRGSIARRIREWN ( BIEMZISINEREEBMERERNROMEERR
MEREE  RZMAREMGEENITE) ZVI0IERREFEAIR

F SFIZEBRRFIRESERSE o

EHihTHEE

HitEHaE (RIEREREERATINEEREMENR) DERAERERZEIZHEBEMASTE o
BERTH

RN EIT 2L T BIRBWASRIRRE R TRA MR
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(9)

(h)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the assets is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Company as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a basis of specific percentage of the revenue
of the lease in accordance with the contractual term of the leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Revenue recognition

i) Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant leases.

ii) Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

EXRSETBER (18)

(f)

BREENRIEERE

FPTERSBSHABRENVEERBENEENREER  MEEELEEFCHIRHNERBENINS IR
FWR - IGRGEFEENYNLERIFLGE @ MEEMFIFLORMESE (08) - HEEZJWNLEETREST
DRERBE @ BIAEEZRBERREZEYINOEER o BIEBEDRESED RS

f&FERERERYE  ZEEZRBERMEESE2INODRE - LRAFZEETENBEF R ENERBEME
BEEZREE < BEBEEEREFEDRIA

HE
RBRRTUR EREESEERE R ZIEASDRRRDRER2REAZIEN - 193 /RMERE - A MENE

4{/:_\5{[@%\\ ﬂﬁ 4
REBO 2B INNSLIASNNZREBHRNAITASEERAXRIER - BERRLEHIEBNREE 2T EE
RABNNEEEE ZREE - WM BRI FRER RS

YIATESR

i) IEERNZEENNSER SR ERIEOTENES
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i

Taxation
Income tax expenses represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported
in the statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for
using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

3 EXREEHER (#)

(i)

R
MIBFESZ I8 A FAEMFR I ELEE R IR AVHRAD ©

SHEMNRIEDZFEEREFSTE o« EBRMEFNEE2EREXRMMREAAE @ OBRETBBEEEMFER
FEMBTIEZWARLZHIRE » I BEZEWERAXANRRIIOEZIRE - ZATNENFHRIAEE » THIZR
SHREGFN A EBIEOREKFTE -

BERIBRIESS R B REANBERDERBEREARSIBERRIVEFN ZAAEREME 228 - TMEESER
BEERIE  BIERESERESHMARRREART =RESD - MELERIREERIRNE TR BRIVSERRE
o WIRLURHIDRER =R - SEHERAR AT ERBRVENT A ESSTEN 225 (%
BEHERIN ) PrEBEMEERSEMSIH @ BB SEERAE

BERIREE ZRBESRBSHARFFRE WO EAATEBE RHERRNEFN WD 2 ELHELREENE
g o

BLERBEERBEDRESLENBREE ZHBAMBRRBRME - REPRIRCERNERER 2HRE
(RME) 518 - BERIABEREE 2SI ERMZBAEBRHRPBRARINONBEHEERBE ZRBES
ETEMSHEZMBRBR < BUERIADRIBRIRPIESD - RIFZMREZFRE BT IREE2BNANEER
RS - ELIERT @ BERBINMDBIREC 2 BN EERR A PiER
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TURNOVER AND OTHER REVENUE
ERRREAUIA

Turnover E%28
Rental income from investment property $3&#ZE9FRE A

Other revenue EMBIIA
Bank interest income $R1TAISIA
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEEYIZE « MiE &K 531/
Gain on arising from changes in fair BFBEAREEEY
value of investment property ER{S.2 U828

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
PRI IR R

Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging the following:
PRBIBRFESTEMTSIA

Auditors' remuneration ZEEHENE
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment #% ~ BB K& EiTS

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
el

ancial Statment 2011

REERADMIERE
/

2011
HKS B8

52,955

54

520,406

0

520,460

2011
HKS B8

3,000
0

2010
HKS8#5

492,480

149
0

2,900,000

2,900,149

2010
HKS 85

3,000

13,371

None of the directors received any remuneration in respect of their services to the Company during the year (2010 : Nil).

FRTMEMRESRFANDEILTRHORZMAESIENABIE o (20105F : )
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7 TAXATION

IR
2011 2010
HKS B HKS B8
The tax credit/(charge) comprises FRIB#0) / (RIS ) BIF -
Hong Kong Profits Tax &SEFIER :
Current year ZEE (44,287) (74,142)
Deferred tax credit/(charge) [Note 13] JEERRIBEE(Q, (2H) (MIsE+=) 42,690 (2,531)

(1,597) (76,673)

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2010 : 16.5%) on estimated assessable profits for the year.
BBFNERDOAAERGERRERNIZ 16.5% (Z2—TF :16.5%) 518 ©

The tax credit/(charge) for the year can be reconciled to the profit/(loss) before taxation per the statement of
comprehensive income as follows:

AFEEIZRIBED (MAZL ) BEEWESKRZIRRENETR, (B8 ) HIRWT -

2011 2010

HKS s HKS s

Profit/(Loss) before taxation BRFBENEKI,” (#518) 530,140 3,363,238
Tax credit/(charge) of Hong Kong Profit Tax rate of 16.5% (2010 : 16.5%)

MIBRED), (ZH) - EBFIEHE 16.5% (Z2—24F : 16.5%) (87,473) (554,934)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose NEFORRSz HOIFRFE /L 0 (264)

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose NERFRBN ZTRFF 22 85,876 478,525

Tax credit/(charge) for the year FEEFRIBEE[D], (Z2H) (1,597) (76,673)
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
YD ~ R a1

Cost or valuation FAZ BE

At 1 April 2009 12200954818

Net increase in fair value
recognised in profit or loss

ISEE 2R EESRIE D06V HE(E

At 31 March 2010 1R2010838318
Disposals &

At 31 March 2011 1R20114:38318
Depreciation Rf5ITE

At 1 April 2009 FR200954818
Provided for the year EEZH

At 31 March 2010 532010833318
Eliminated on disposals HEERF )

At 31 March 2011 /iR20114:38318

Carrying values iREE
At 31 March 2011 1R2011438318

At 31 March 2010 iR20106:38318

The carrying values of investment properties held by the Company as at the reporting date comprised:

Investment Leasehold Office
property improvements equipment
wEYE HENETRE b ENE=E
HKS s HKS s HKS B8

7,500,000 67,600 14,705
2,900,000 0 0
10,400,000 67,600 14,705
(10,400,000) (67,600) (14,705)
_________ 0 ... 0 ... 0
0 55,840 13,094

0 11,760 1,611

0 67,600 14,705

0 (67,600) (14,705)
_________ 0 eeee_.__0 o._.___Q
0 0 0

10,400,000 0 0

FRTRIRS BEIR B YIRS TEREED T T :

In Hong Kong held on R&EBIFE :

Leases of over 50 years A+ _EFBEY

The Hong Kong Institute of Architects - Annual Report 2011

2011
HKS & #E

0

Total
25t

HKS 7585

7,582,305

2,900,000

10,482,305
(10,482,305)

68,934
13371

—_—

82,305
(82,305)

10,400,000

2010
HKS8 8

10,400,000
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
FEUSRR R ELAB AR IR

2011
HKS B
Rental receivables FEISFEZ RN 0
Other receivables EftfELIFR 89,941
Deposits paid &% 0
Prepayments FA{J188 0
89,941
BANK BALANCES
RITHEER
Bank balances carry interest at market rates of 0.001% (2010: 0.001% to 0.01%) per annum.
IRITISERETIBERIZR0. 001 @SR ( Z2—24 : 0. 00120. 01EFERIZEK) o
SHARE CAPITAL
EZN
2011
HKS B
Authorised JERE :
10,000 ordinary shares of HKS 1 each
10,000 AEEimAs - GATBEE 1 T 10,000
Issued and fully paid E1TREE :
2 ordinary shares of HK$ 1 each

2 RS BB 1 T 2
LONG TERM LOAN FROM ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY
RISIEIRATIEE

The loan is interest free, unsecured and not repayable within one year.

FRERRRBER @ MR RIIF—FREIH -
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2010
HKS 85

152,245
87,126
15,652

473

255,496

2010
HKS8#5

10,000



13 DEFERRED TAXATION
EFEFRIR

The deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior years are as follows:
TRIIB AR SR KBTI SHEEN c T2RLERIBEE (BfE) RBREES)

Accelerated tax
depreciation

IRIIEITE

HKS & #L

At 1 April 2009 220094818 (40,159)

Credited/(Charged) to profit or loss A/ (308 ) WARSZHEF (2,531)

At 31 March 2010 /32010838318 (42,690)

Credited/(Charged) to profit or loss B\ (308 ) WARSZHFE 42690

At 31 March 2011 (22011838318 0

14 OTHER PAYABLES

HAfET R

2011 2010

HKS i HKS &

Deposits received SWiZE 0 143,520

Accruals fESTIEB 6,000 6,000

6,000 149,520
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
EXEEER

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Company's overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Company consists of cash and cash equivalents, bank and other borrowings, and equity,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and risks associates with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the
Company will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends and new share issues as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

FNIEEHER - DERFALAIABERREHLUFSEEELNEE  BFNESEEERERBE 2 RET@MAFIE
BEIEPMRSOW - AT ZEERIGHE EFE— -

FPAZELRBBBEBRERIFEFE « RITREMEERANIRAIELS (BERITRARRSHEFIFTER) °

FREBEEEBRHELRRE - (FRBRZ D ESBEREFNIRSKRABRZIABRR - RBESZE%
FNRTRFBEZER ~ TR MR EFITHE - ITFEREESRE -
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

EMTHE
(a) Categories of financial instruments
EmTEDHE
2011 2010
HKS B S HKS B
Financial assets SRIBE
Loans and receivables (including cash and cash equivalents)
ERRERE (BERERIGEEEIED)
Trade and other receivables FEINBRFRR ELMBFEIER 89,941 255,023
Bank balances and cash iR{T#SER RIS 12,965,442 2,092,894
13,055,383 2,347,917
Financial liabilities =RI&(& - -
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost EfthE R E &1L 8 SR 251 8R
Other payables EABFENTTR 0 143,520
Long term loan from ultimate holding company R B S#IZI N INEES 1,508,957 1,508,957

1,508,957 1,652,477

(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices

ERRIEEIEEREREBER

The Company's major financial instruments include trade and other receivables, bank balances and cash, other
payables and long term loan from ultimate holding company. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments include market risk (interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

FATEBENT ERERUERRREHMELR  IRITRIRERER « EEMRRRIIERATIORAER - 25
TEFFIERIBRIMEHIRE ; 2FENTEBMRRKREEMERR FIXAR) « SERRRRBEERR - HABEIRIN
REFDINOT - EEBREERESMEYHRR  MERRERBIEITESEE

(i) Market risk

iz
Interest rate risk
FUR R
The Company's cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to variable-rate bank balances and deposits (see note 10).
The management considers the Company's exposure of the variable-rate bank balances and deposits to interest rate
risk is not significant.

AP EBHRIBIRITRHEREREMIRERTERRE (iEE10) - EEERATLRIRBEBRETZ 2T BIRITHE
ERR RIS X2 FIRER
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=

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
TR (1)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices (continued)
THREEEEERIGEE #)
(i) Market risk (continued)

misRRE 1)

Sensitivity analysis

BTN T

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming the amount of variable-rate bank balances and deposits at
the end of the reporting period was the amount outstanding for the whole year.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the Company's
profit after tax for the year ended 31 March 2011 would increase/decrease by HK$83,358 (increase/decrease by
2010 : HK$17,437). This is mainly attributable to the Company's exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate bank
balances and deposits.

The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2010.

DURSRUED T DIRBRIBS AR ZFRBRIEL o 3 SIRITREBRERDOBRRBSHRZBER D2 FHEERKR
il

EFFRIB0SHA 100 ERF A B R B RRETAE - AIRRTH 2201153831 BIEFE ZERRIEI05L
EA#I83, 368385 (2010 : 1BANSLFAKI1T7, 4373870 ) o BIRIRITHIEAR B M IBF BMSAEBEEHFIEE

Bz
2010F I DHTINEARIE DM EAEET -

Credit risk
EERK

As at 31 March 2011, the Company's maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Company due to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties, is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the statement of financial position.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the majority of the counterparties are reputable banks or banks
with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

R-IE——F=A=1t—8 FRIRHELRERTEISVTALNIELYFBRMARZZRA EERE © OB
PHRREMINERI SR EMEE ZRBEMEL -

RBEENEERREIIR - SRS —HREBREEREIETERASEEETRZIRT
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16  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
TR (1)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices (continued)
THREEIEBERIEE (#&)
(iii) Liquidity risk
D= EaE
The Company's policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents and have available funding through bank
and other borrowings to meet its working capital requirements.

The Company monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers
the maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g. trade receivables) and projected cash flows
from operations.

The maturity profile of financial liabilities as at 31 March 2011 and 2010, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, was as follows:

FPTHERRRITRHNRERIFEFEBEUREEBRITRAMEEREHAEEELEE -

FPRTBEXBRBLRBDETHEIR  ERABSTHROER - W TESZRANBIERMBHERE (WENK
BRFR) BEIEIB MR AR BIEEEBNAMIRERE -

AR ZEREERBE BEZEHNEIHBZER MABIZEHRBIRIEEREIIRU T :

31 March 2011
201138318
Less than Over Total carrying
1 year 1 year amount
DIR—EF BIR—EF EEN
HKS B HKS B HKS B85
Other payables ELfBfEIER 0 0 0
Long term loan from ultimate holding company
RERIERATNEE 0 1,508,957 1,508,957
0 1,508,957 1,508,957
31 March 2010
201038318
Less than Over Total carrying
1 year 1 year amount
DIR—EF BIR—EF EEN
HKS B HKS B HKS B85
Other payables &R 143,520 0 143,520
Long term loan from ultimate holding company
RERIERATNEE 0 1,508,957 1,508,957

143,520 1,508,957 1,652,477
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17

18

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
ERMTHR (#&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices (continued)
THREEIEBERIEE (#&)
(iv) Fair value estimation
NEEHE
The carrying value less impairment provision of receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their
fair values. The fair value of financial assets and liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting
the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Company for similar
financial instruments.

FEISGRIR K B FRIREUIREEIIFR BB B R - RHATENSGIENS - BREMS - SHeBENATERR
RREHIRENETALIENRTHEISNIREMIENRIFROIRGET

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
TCETRERIE

The Company as a lessor

AATERLEEA

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had contracted with tenants in respect of its investment properties for
future minimum lease payments which fall due as follows:

RIBSHR - RBALTFISEMEEB PRI - EARRRERZNIRNIERIAALT ¢

2011 2010
HKS &S HKS B8

Within one year —ER 0 52,955
EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
WEH®RCEIR

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Company acquired available-for-sale investments at a consideration
of HK$8,000,000.

RIBERE - AEXERBHEUVEBS, 000, 000 THEEIHBE RS -

The Hong Kong Institute of Architects - Annual Report 2011



EeREERADNERE

19 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
SRR RAER

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Lt RN EERRZ E2KIR

The methods, estimates and judgements the directors used in applying the Company's accounting policies have
a significant impact on the Company's financial position and operating results. Some of the accounting policies require
the Company to apply estimates and judgements, on matters that are inherently uncertain. The critical accounting
judgements in applying the Company's accounting policies are described below.

FNDBSTERMRA 2GS RABREHAEB 2 EERUBINRBREATE - DB
FIE - BPPRAEEN - ANIGHPERZERGSTHHBRR AT -

TIRBEANIFEBEETR

anl

(a) Impairment of assets
BEZIG51HE
The Company reviews the carrying amounts of the assets at each reporting date to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. When indication of impairment is identified, management prepares discounted
future cash flows to assess the differences between the carrying amount and value in use and provides for
impairment loss. Any change in the assumptions adopted in the profit forecasts would increase or decrease the
provision of impairment loss and affect the Company's net asset value.

ARIYGREBSOERENEERBILEENRBER BT ELEERT SHE L TEER o & L IR E

2 SEEBRRHIGRRES AU EREERERABEIE TRERDERE - AENRUFHER 2RBELIRE
IS FHE N B EB B RR T ER NG ZEEFE
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HKIA Services Limited -\Financial

FOR MANAGEMENT INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY ZEIRESEH

HKIA SERVICES LIMITED &8 EMESIRFBIRAT

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 8%
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
EZE20114E3831 BILEE

2011 2010
HKS i HKS i HKS s
Rental income FAEUIA 52,955 492480
Other revenue EfBIAA
Bank interest income $R1TAI BN 54 149
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
HEMZE ~ WE KRR 520,406 0
Gain on arising from changes in fair IR"ERARBEEEY
value of investment property ERiS2 Wz 0 2,900,000
520,460 2,900,149
573415 3,392,629
Less: Administrative and other operating expenses & : {TEREMITETH
Auditors' remuneration ZEENEE 3,000 3,000
Bank charges tR1T&MA 450 400
Building management fee XEZIRE 31,791 0
Business registration fee Bi2EsIME 450 2,450
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment ¥% - liERSEITE 0 13,371
Insurance £RES 473 720
Legal and professional fees ;512 % BEEM 5,850 7,450
Rates Z=£ 915 0
Sundry expenses $& 346 2,000
(43,275) (29,391)

Profit before taxation FRIRBEF] 530,140 3,363,238
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'./c..

1965
Choi Hung Estate $24T%B

1969
AlA Building EERFVREAE

1973
i 7 Kowloon Hospital West Wing
i B e NIRRT

1974
Sheraton Hotel EREES

1975
May Tower 158

1976

Sheng Kung Hiu Bishop Mok Sau Tsang
Secondary School
DNEESIEEERZ

1977
Aircraft Catering Building
FEEEEINT

1978
Hong Kong Arts Centre SBEfichit

1979
42 Sassoon Road )\E58E425%
. / Silve RpsE
< »1979‘
WL N AV N DUAANA 7\ 7/ N AN
1980

Hung Hom Bay Centre #THE)iEchil)

1981
SuiWo Court FER3E

1981
Pak SuiYuen B35

eorMerit f=F£5%

12Ul XI5 AKX 1 W

1981

Franki Centre EFTchih

(BT

1981
Cho Yiu Chuen Estate TEZEE0

1982
Landmark BEihEEiS
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List of Past HKIA Annuat Awar
RS SRS S

L}

X;\ﬂ\l IS VAL A7 A5 N
§

ERRS VNS KLANLARLN T
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1982
St. Stephen's College BBTiRR P&

1982
Mei Lam Estate Phase 1 S/ #855—HA

1982
Pak Tak Yuen Phase 1 1885655 —HA

1983
Aberdeen Market Complex
SBEFMBBHEHAE

1983
The Discovery Bay IS/

1983
St. John's Building ESf0@IAE

1983

Yan Oi Tong Community and Indoor
Sports Centre
CEZIEREAREPL

1984

Canossian Convent Primary and Secondary School
2Bl (NERPEE)

1984
Mong Tung Wan Youth Hostel 28R & FE kit

esident’s Prize &

1984
French International School

P

1984
Wayfoong Plaza EZ&chity

1985
Exchange Square XXZEi5

1985
Siu Hong Court Home Ownership Scheme

)

1985
Goldfish & Centenary Pavilions
TRABERSERREEFLILE

1985
The Academy for Performing Arts




gy o i R
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o Y ]
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| . p—— =T

7/
K
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o
I

24

L N AV L N A

1986
6A Bowen Road BEBEEE

1986

Hong Kong Jockey Club Members

Clubhouse, Shatin FEBRE)HEM
1986

Thomas De La Rue Ltd
ENRSBEERATRE

€

1986

Pak Sha O Youth Hostel B/MBREFIRS

1987
Mei Lam Indoor Recreation Centre
EMENEEEE

1987
Ruttonjee Centre ZHGEPIL

ate of Merit

1987
St Joan of Arc Secondary School
LESEPE

1987
Tuen Mun Technical Institute
BRI 5

1988
Bayview Residential Development
FRMOEEE

e of Merit 2z

1988
Harcourt House ERAE

1988
Tsuen Wan Columbarium Z5& 8

ificate of Mer

1988
Ellen's Lodge Bf@TE

1989
The Repulse Bay 82iE

1989
Hong Kong International School
1989

Heng On Estate
RLEREPRAE
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List of Past HKIA Annual Award
FEEEEEEMEBTFIRE—8BFK

P

1989

St e
S Tai FuTai A%

‘,‘(///ﬂmnnmm\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ The Hong Kong Housing Authority
. BB %%%E%géﬁa
71990

Hong Kong Baptist College Campus
Redevelopment

BEREAR

1990
Hong Kong Science Museum
FEREE

i

avs
7

1991
Clague Garden Ti{E&HTER

FEA

NS\

1991
Lok Fu Shopping Centre Il
SEAE_"H

1991
KunTing Study Hall ZRIEB=

Dy &

eside rze SikZe

1992
Kwong Yuen Estate Commercial Centre

IR S

1992
The Royal Hong Kong Jockey Club Happy
Valley Clubhouse EEHETEEAH

Cer €

1992
Visual Arts Centre, Hong Kong Museum

of Art
FBIRBETPL

1

1992

The Royal Hong Kong Jockey Club
Racecourse Jockey Club Box
EERBETSVERERERE

1993
1993 Entertainment Building JR&4/T
A 1993
/ Hong Kong Technical College (Tsing Yi)
A EREEIEER
, / Certificate of M t
= | B

Citibank Plaza BEE®RIT

1994
Dra

rt
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1994
Pubic Toilet at Hing Fat Street
SIS E BT AR

Preside

1995
Peninsula Hotel Extension

FETERETRE

1995
Singapore International School
FKEIRBIR

ert

1995
Ho Sin Hang Engineering Building, CUHK
é%?ﬁk?@%@l%ﬁ@

1995
Hong Kong Industrial Technology Centre
FEIERE DL

ateo BERLE

1995
Chan Nam Chong Memorial School
IRFESic TSR (RBHEED)

P

€ s Prize &<

1996
Hong Kong Temple FHEE2R%

1996
Lingnan College 3&R5Zk%

Certif

P

1996

West Island School FEE&HE
( FAE
1996

Broadway Cinematheque

1997

1997
Jockey Club Environmental Building
BRESRRE

e - A ‘ o

AN B SR VAV (I 7 YN ATV L~ T A 7 XSG DAV L = | 7 1998
/ ) Graduate House FBAZHRER

1998
Hong Kong International Airport
Passenger Terminal

BB ERR

1998
Verbena Heights &148T6E

Si
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2000
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E
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1998

KCRC Hung Hom Station Renovation and
Extension

n%ﬁ%ﬂm%ﬁﬁi@%&ﬁﬁlﬁ

Certificat

1998
Ohel Leah Synagogue
FUBRBAHE

Certifi

1998
FuHouse &%

rize

BE

1999
Tung Chung Crescent ERIZ2iEm¥

1999
Hong Kong Academy of Medicine Jockey
Club Building

EEBREENZRBFTSAE

4
£0¢

1999
Hong Kong Station & Development Phase 1
WEPRIER T E—BRRE

=
&

>rtificate ¢
Certificate o

1999

1999
Health Education Exhibition & Resources
Centre

WESERERAND

2000
Dragonair / CNAC Headquarters
BEMNERPERM (£E) K2

2000
The Hong Kong Museum of Coastal Defence

SEIEEE

2000
Cathay Pacific Airways Headquarters
BERMZEATIREK

ortif y
Certific £,

2000
Tung Chung Town Centre Development
FRmPOLEE (REH)

4

2000

University of Hong Kong Kadoorie
Biological Sciences Building
BEASREREMRSE IR

.
&

Certificat

for

2000

Wing Kwong Pentecostal Holiness Church

2000




2000
Jockey Club Mt. Davis Youth Hostel
§%§@E§§§EB&%

President’s Prize &

2000

HK Garden at '99 International
Horticultural Exposition in Kunming
PEIRAVEFFES - T8

2001

2001
8 Queen' s Road Central 2/FAED83%

AV @A

)
4
)
4

Hollywood Terrace 7aiZ=iEEERE

erit Aw.
erit Aw

F4 Vierit Award &8iE 1
ks

> R 2001

¥ = 56 Plantation Road 1E1&3E565%

a i !’g HKIA Merit Award  &78#

i A

N 2 LA 2001

§ i N

) : /

LY

4

it Award

2001
The Bamboo Pavilion Festival of Vision -
Hong Kong in Berlin

BMLER - 1%

AN ARV

i
L 200

£ 2001
D/ /AN o7 B N AN

I

2001

Developing Innovative School Design
Parameters in Hong Kong for 21st Century

BB BLRAY

2002

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Jockey
Club Primary School
ERRESRARS)S

=

2002
Hillview Court f&f8&E—

rit Award &
ritAward &

le

2002
Boao Canal Village 1##5&E

s UL

BiEF

2002
He Xiangning Art Gallery a5 #1788

yrks O

2002
Kingston Intg

President
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2002
Veterinary Laboratory at Tai Lung Farm

KHEERES (L BRAT
Architec

2003

1 Peking Road JtRE—S5R

2003
Public Health Laboratory Centre

EZ

2003

2003

2003
Improvement of Sai Kung Waterfront
wEEBNETE

President’s Prize &

2003
Lantern Wonderland & AXEE

President’s Prize &

2003
Fairview Park Alliance Church Ei&&i5HE

President’s Prize &

2003
Sau Mau Ping Shopping Centre and Plaza
EXRITBIBRES

2004
Diocesan Boys' School Primary Section
RESER)\EY

2004
No. 21 Severn Road HE&hi&E215%

Award EEzE,
it Award &8%

2004
EMSD Headquarters Building
WETIZEREAR

it Award

2004
SK Telecom Headquarter

rs"Works O

2004

Shantou University Student Activity Centre
Phase |

JWERAZE

\—HA

2004
Fanling Open Space in Area 18 & 21

BEBAIED

President’s Prize




2004

E Tao Fong

b, Sp

N

i 2004

/I Margaret Trench Red Cross School
K BRNERLL TSRS

D!

2004

2004

Universal Accessibility - Best Practices
and Guidelines

IZERT - RBIFRES!

2005

Hong Kong Wetland Park Phase Il
§%.Mﬂ E_H

2005
Tai Kok Tsui Municipal Services Building

AAEHRBARE

Award &8

X\\Q\IXVM\N/ N7 TSR\ 7T 2005

2 Sunny Bay Station fREi

o it Award &/EEZ

£l 2005
A Bridge too Far, A Dream Comes True
RIBEISSHME

2005
Boatyard : Kingship Marine Headquarters (China)

R« RSP IIBIRATRE
Works Outside of H

rks Qutsic

2005
Vanke Chengdu Commercial Complex

FUERER N ZEHE AR

2005

Adrenaline
Presi sPrize &

2005

Residential Development
No. 52 Hollywood Road
FRITEO2R

President's Prize &

2005

i e \ Y B2 A AN ’ The Centres of Central PIEPINE

Av ACCes:

2005

Feasibility Study for Establishment of Air
Ventilation Assessment System

iy

TETTIHRE

2005

Hong Kong Heritage Discovery Centre at
Kowloon Park
FESXIRR
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List of Past HKIA Annual Award \
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Vi) G

L}
NN

ZHL

N

gy
200

Za VAN (/A BSTAY / (RN WVAL

[N L AN

=

/
2006y

SUANA S 7SN TN

2005
HKS+H Plastic and Reconstruction
Surgery Centre

=i

2005
Police Headquarters, Arsenal House

a0

2006
Stanley Municipal Services Building

FETBAE

2006
A Purpose Designed Building for Centralised
Science Laboratories, The Chinese University of
Hong Kong

Bgp

2006
S.K.H. St Andrew's Primary School and S.K.H.
St Mary's Church Mok Hing Yiu College
ENEELENVNBRENE

D EREREPS

terit Award &5
lerit Award &

2006

Education Resource Center cum Public
Transport Interchange at Kowloon Tong
NEBHESRPLVEBLALEARER

t Awarc /
LAWard & B FELS

2006
Clubhouse of Kunshan Shimao Butterfly Bay
BUIERIEHESHR

=2

2006
Kunming EXPO Eco - Town INTEGER project
R BAtHR A RRIS INTEGER R EE T 72

O

=
&)

2006

VICE VERSA Hong Kong, China Exhibition at Venice

Biennale International Architecture Exhibition, 2006

2006 FiB AR RREFRPASBEE
TRV WAL, RE

2006
Reconstruction of Wong Shek Public Pier
BOARRHEERTRE

Presiaent’s Prize &

2006
St Andrew's Church ERZ{EZUEE

2006

Quality of Life for Public Housing with
Emphasis on Health and Safety Issues

BREREZE2AEVOAHBETERNR




s — o
7 ALY

-

: 2007
DV AN 7B N AN

X\\ﬂ\l SRS TV AR N\ 7T~

<

.
S
"a

b i o

LN Y /L

2006
Micro-climate Research Studies for
Sustainable Public Housing Development

T RERRARNMRIZTTE

2006
Beautification of Tsim Sha Tsui Promenade
KA BEBEECTRE

2007
No. 10, 12, 16 & 18 Pollock's Path
LLE10, 12, 16K 183%

2007
Dormitory & Sports Facilities at Diocesan
Boys' School

WESER-BEE « BIIRBSKE

e

2007
Mont Orchid Riverlet Phase 2

2007
HKYWCA Conference Centre and Guesthouse
SBEBHUBFEES

it A

2007
Xiamen International Cruise Terminal

12

2007

All-weather Swimming Pool for China
Holiness Church Living Spirit College

PERREBEPSE2IRIFKM

D, e D, o
Pr rize

2007
megARTstore
megARTs tor e S IRIEAHY

Sp

2008
Jockey Club Creative Arts Centre
BEERITEMPL

2008
HKICC Lee Shau Kee School of Creativity
ERIERBER

AW
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List of Past HKIA Annual Award \
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N\IE
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SN

2069%
EA'

2008

St. Andrew's Church & Kindergarten
DRRIEAE R

2008

Learning Resources Centre, Hong Kong
Institute of Vocational Education (Sha Tin)
§%§¥ﬂ%§@7ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ§§§ﬁ¢lm

Presid rize =

2008
Ping Shan Tang Clan Gallery cum
Heritage Trail Visitors Centre

BRIBRIRSC BB EE ST RS E i

2008

Stanley Waterfront Improvement Project

LR LI

2008
Caritas Lok Kan School

PERNBE

2008
Skyhigh Creative Partners

KRR

urc

2008

"Re-fabricating City"

Hong Kong-Shenzhen Bi-city Biennale of

Urbanism and Architecture 2007
TEEEm , 2007EEB-RYIMmERE

BEFR

2009
Guangdong Museum

FRREEWE

2009

Villa Amanzi

2009
Reprovisioning of Diamond Hill
Crematorium

BEUNFSEETIE

2009

Dormitory and Facility Extension of
United Christian College (Kowloon East)

EREER (RNE) BEBSRIGSARE

2009

Consultancy Study on Building Design
that Supports Sustainable Urban Living
Space in HK

BRSHR : HESBY R HEEER
ZEEH




2009
A School to Learn - New Premises for

Hongdeng Primary School
"IEBT 4 fﬁlﬁﬂd\gﬁﬁgiﬁﬁgﬁﬂ ‘

| =
2009 { = =] 12009
N s L NP

2009

Maosi Ecological Demonstration Primary
School
EFE
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